
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

Audit Board

A meeting of the above Board will be held on

Wednesday 29 June 2016

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman)
Councillor A Bardoe (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor J S Hawkes
Councillor J A Hayes
Councillor A R Lloyd

Councillor Mrs J A Ozog
Councillor D Swinerd



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT BOARD

 AGENDA

Wednesday 29 June 2016

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Declarations of Interest. 

To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any).

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 
2016 

MD
(Pages 1 - 8)

4. Urgent Items 

The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda.

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PUBLIC

5. References from Other Committees (IF ANY) 

There are no references from other Committees at present.

6. Report & Letter from the External Auditor 
(Pages 9 - 30)

To consider the correspondence received from the Council’s 
External Auditor, Grant Thornton UK, LLP.

7. Anti-Fraud Team Annual Report 2015/16 
(Pages 31 - 36)

This report is to update the Audit Board on work undertaken by 
the Anti-Fraud Team during the year ended 31 March 2016 and 
confirms the creation of a new Counter Fraud & Compliance 
Team following the transfer of Housing Benefit fraud work to the 
Single Fraud Investigations Service (S-FIS) within the 
Department for Work & Pensions on 1 February 2016.



8. Update on Progress on the PWC Action Plan 
(Pages 37 - 46)

This report provides the Board with an update on progress made 
against the PWC action plan

9. Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the System of Internal 
Audit 2015-16 (Pages 47 - 88)

This report provides Members with a summary of the findings 
from the review of effectiveness of the system of Internal Audit 
for 2015-16. 

10. Review of Internal Audit Recommendations - Progress 
Report (Pages 89 - 

102)

This report is to update Members on progress of the 
implementation of recommendations agrees with Management 
during this year, and to report on outstanding recommendations 
any outstanding recommendations due for implemented by 30 
April 2016.

11. Audit Reports Issued Since Last Meeting of the Board 
(Pages 103 - 

112)

To inform Members of outcomes of the audits completed since 
the previous report to the Board in March 2016 and to provide 
Members with the opportunity to request clarification or further 
information, if considered necessary.

12. Selective Invoice Checks 
(Pages 113 - 

116)

During the Board meeting held on 13 January 2016 Members 
selected 5 (five) creditor payments for checking to ascertain the 
probity and accuracy of the transactions. Due to staff illness that 
exercise was not completed in time for the March 2016 meeting 
of the Board. The attached report summarises the findings of that 
delayed exercise and provides the Board with the opportunity to 
select five (5) further payments for checking, if required.

13. Annual Governance Statement 
(Pages 117 - 

196)

This report considers the governance arrangements and the 
system of internal control which operated during 2015-16 and the 
review that has taken place [of those arrangements and controls].



14. Internal Audit Annual Report 2015-16 
(Pages 197 - 

214)

This report provides Members of the Board with a summary of 
the work of the Internal Audit Service during 2015-16. The report 
outlines the performance of the Section during the year and, 
based on the work completed, informs the Board of the Chief 
Audit Executive’s overall opinion on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the internal control environment, which is timed 
to support the Annual Governance Statement [presented 
elsewhere in this agenda].

15. Future Appointment of External Auditors 
(Pages 215 - 

218)

This report provides an update on the arrangements for 
appointing external auditors following the abolition of the Audit 
Commission and the end of the transitional arrangements at the 
conclusion of the 2017/18 audits.





1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD

MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit Board held on Wednesday 23 March 2016 at 
7.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman)
Councillor A Bardoe (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor J S Hawkes (Shadow Chairman)
Councillor J A Hayes
Councillor A R Lloyd
Councillor D J Reynolds (Substitute)

ABSENT: Councillor Mrs J A Ozog
Councillor D Swinerd

IN ATTENDANCE: Sarah Martin – Strategic Director (Internal Services)
Tim Sams – Financial Services Manager
Bami Cole – Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager
Liz Olive – Grant Thornton UK, LLP
Matt Dean – Grant Thornton

47. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

The Chairman gave a special welcome to Elizabeth Olive who had replaced 
Andy Mack as Engagement Lead on the Council’s accounts for Grant 
Thornton and her colleague Matthew Dean. Ms Olive had previously audited 
the Council’s accounts during her time with the Audit Commission.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mrs J A Ozog and Cllr. 
D Swinerd (Substitute Cllr. D Reynolds).

48. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST. 

There were no declarations of interest.

49. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 
JANUARY 2016 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the Audit Board held on 13 January 2016 be confirmed as 
accurate.

50. URGENT ITEMS 

The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items of business for the 
Board to consider.



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 23 MARCH 2016

2

51. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY) 

There were no references from other Committees.

52. AUDIT PLAN 2015/16 AND ASSURANCE LETTER FROM THE EXTERNAL 
AUDITOR 

The report from the Financial Services Manager (FSM) enclosed two 
documents from the Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton UK, LLP for 
the Audit Board to consider:

(i) Audit Plan for the audit of the Council’s Accounts for the year ending 
31 March 2016 (Appendix A);

(ii) Annual Letter of Assurance to the Chairman of the Audit Board 
regarding the Council’s Financial Statements for the year ending 31 
March 2016 (Appendix B).

Board Members were advised that the Audit Plan 2015/16 document 
explained the process and timescales for the audit of the Council’s 2015/16 
Statement of Accounts 9Appendix A). The annual Letter of Assurance [dated 
2 March 2016] was submitted by the External Auditor in compliance with 
International Auditing Standards. The Letter sought confirmation from the 
Chairman on how the Audit Board gained assurance over management 
processes and arrangements. The covering report confirmed that the FSM 
was co-ordinating a comprehensive reply to the External Auditor from the 
Chairman.
 
Liz Olive, Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton briefed Board Members on the 
salient points in the Audit Plan document. The Plan identified three (3) areas 
of ‘Significant’ risk for consideration [agenda pages 21-22] two (2) of which 
were ‘presumed’ risks under International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). The 
third risk identified was the Valuation of the Council’s property, plant and 
equipment (PPE) which was included due to its materiality within the accounts 
as well as recent changes to the code in respect of IFRS13. 

Three (3) areas of ‘Other’ risk identified in the Plan [agenda p.23-25] were; 
‘Operating expenses’, ‘Employee remuneration’ and ‘Valuation of pension 
fund’. The audit of these areas was also progressing satisfactorily. The 
Auditor’s Value for Money (VfM) Conclusion would be presented to the next 
meeting of the Board in June. Early testing indicated a positive outcome for 
the delivery of the Council’s Account’s for the year ending 31 March 2016 with 
no issues for the Board to consider.

The Chairman advised the Board that his response to the External Auditor’s 
Letter of Assurance would be positive in all respects.  



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 23 MARCH 2016

3

RESOLVED:

1. That the Board note the contents of the External Auditor Grant 
Thornton’s Audit Plan 2015/16 document for the audit of the Council’s 
2015/16 Statement of Accounts (Appendix A);

2. That the Board note the contents of the Assurance Letter and Appendix 
dated 2 March 2016 from the External Auditor (Appendix B) and the 
intention of the Chairman to respond comprehensively in writing on 
behalf of the Board. 

53. PROGRESS REPORT ON THE INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015/16 

The report provided Members of the Board with information regarding the 
progress made by the Internal Audit Team in delivering the Annual Internal 
Audit Plan for 2015/16, including details of the amendments that had been 
made to the Plan. 

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager (ARAFM) advised Board Members 
that significant progress had been made against the Plan since his last report 
to the Board in January 2016 and subsequent to the publication of the report 
in the March Agenda [pages 39-44]. He distributed an updated Appendix A to 
the report dated 23 March 2016 which recorded that a further four (4) audits 
had reached draft report stage. He advised that all twenty two (22) Audits 
listed in the Plan for completion in the 2015/16 cycle would be concluded in 
April 2016. 

The ARAFM advised that six (6) audits listed had been deferred to the 
2016/17 cycle for operational reasons and referred Board Members to 
paragraph 4.1 of the report (agenda p.40) which set out the detailed case for 
the deferment of the review of the Council’s Electoral Services operation 
(Audit 24) given the impending elections in May (Police & Crime 
Commissioner) and June 2016 (EU Referendum).

The Shadow Chairman questioned the decision to defer the review of 
Electoral Registration but was advised that all registration processes at 
Dartford were undertaken in direct consultation with the Managing Director in 
his statutory role as Registration Officer and that performance was further 
monitored by the Electoral Commission, the national advisory body for 
election services in England & Wales.

The Chairman asked the ARAFM to make arrangements for the Board to 
meet all the members of his recently enlarged Internal Audit team, prior to the 
next meeting of the Board in June.

RESOLVED:

1. That Board Members note the contents of the report and the progress 
made against the 2015/16 Annual Audit Plan by the Internal Audit 
Team;



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 23 MARCH 2016

4

2. That Board Members note the amendment made to Appendix A to the 
Plan as tabled at the meeting on 23 March 2016.

54. AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED SINCE LAST MEETING OF THE BOARD 

The report informed Audit Board Members of the outcomes of audits that had 
been completed since the previous report to the Board on 13 January 2016 
and gave the Board the opportunity to request clarification on any points of 
detail or request further information as deemed necessary.

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager (ARAFM) referred Members to 
Appendix A of the report (agenda page 47) which recorded the details of the 
three (3) audits completed since the last report to the Board in January 2016. 
All the audits had attained a ‘Good’ status for Framework/Compliance with no 
issues.

RESOLVED:

1. That Audit Board Members note the report.

55. REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS - PROGRESS 
REPORT 

This report updated the Board on the progress made in the implementation of 
recommendations agreed with management during the year in addition to 
reporting on outstanding recommendations due to have been implemented by 
31 January 2016.

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager (ARAFM) referred Members to 
Appendix A of his report (agenda page 55) which provided a summary of the 
significant progress that had been made with management to confirm 
implementation of agreed recommendations since January 2016. 

Appendix B to the report set out the reasons given by management for 
delayed implementation, the latest position and the revised implementation 
date for individual recommendations. The ARAFM confirmed that he was 
satisfied that the explanations provided by management were reasonable and 
that all action that could be taken had been.

The Chairman expressed his concern over the delay in the implementation of 
Recommendation 1 – “To ensure that the Council’s contract with Lloyd’s Bank 
is formerly agreed and signed before the end of May 2016”. 

He noted that the Council’s solicitor had been unable to make any progress 
with the other party since February 2016 and that progress lay to a great 
extent outside the Council’s remit. He asked that in such cases, where 
implementation of a Recommendation lay outside the Council’s remit and 
direct control, the report and Appendix be annotated to this effect to aid public 



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 23 MARCH 2016

5

perception and avoid any criticism of the Council and damage to its 
reputation.

RESOLVED:

1. That Audit Board Members note the reasons for delayed 
implementation of audit recommendations as provided by management 
and set out in Appendix B to the report;

2. That Board Members endorse the revised dates for implementation of 
audit recommendations provided by management as set out in 
Appendix B;

3. That for the future, where implementation of an audit recommendation 
lays outside the remit of the Council, this fact be recorded by the 
Internal Audit Team in all audit papers and correspondence to help 
preserve the Council’s reputation and to aid public perception of the 
matter and the action being taken to resolve it satisfactorily.

56. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016/17 

The report set out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2016/17 (attached as 
Appendix A) for formal approval by the Audit Board prior to implementation.

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager (ARAFM) informed the Board that 
the 2016/17 Internal Audit Plan attached at Appendix A to the report [agenda 
pages 65-83] had been prepared in accordance with professional guidance, 
including the new Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 and the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

Members were advised of the following points of detail in the Plan as set out 
in Appendix A:

 Rationale and methodology [agenda pages 66-72];
 New Assurance Opinions Framework [agenda p.72-73];
 List of Audits planned was set out in Annex 1 [agenda pages 75-81].

The Chairman commended the 2016/17 Audit Plan to the Board and noted 
that the division of Internal Audit resources as set out in table format in the 
Plan [agenda p. 71] provided a base plate for future years of operation.

The Shadow Chairman referred Members to the ‘Arrangements to prevent 
fraud and corruption’ as set out in the Plan [agenda p.70] and expressed his 
concern regarding the review objectives to combat Housing Benefit fraud. He 
proposed a counter-point audit of the Council’s Housing Policy, to ensure that 
all Council tenants and leaseholders were in receipt of all appropriate benefits 
according to their circumstances.



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 23 MARCH 2016

6

The ARAFM advised the Shadow Chairman that his concern was specifically 
addressed by the annual review of Council tax arrangements and benefits 
[Item 9 in Annex 1 of the Plan – agenda p. 77]. 

RESOLVED:

1. That Audit Board Members approve the proposed Internal Audit Plan 
for 2016/17 as set out in Appendix A and Annexes 1 and 2 to the 
report.
 

57. FUTURE APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS 

The report from the Strategic Director (Internal Services) summarised for the 
Board the changes to the arrangements for appointing external auditors 
following the abolition of the Audit Commission and the end of the transitional 
arrangements at the conclusion of the 2017/18 audit process.

The SD (IS)   advised Board Members that the Council’s relationship with the 
current External Auditor Grant Thornton UK, LLP was good, but that the 
Council was not allowed to re-appoint Grant Thornton automatically. Three 
options were open to the Council for the local appointment of External 
Auditors as set out in report:

Option 1 Stand–alone appointment [report para 4.2 page 86]:

This would be a costly option requiring the Council to set up an Auditor Panel 
comprising a majority of independent members/appointees under the Act with 
the Audit Board having little direct input into the selection process;

Option 2 Set up a Joint Auditor Panel [report para 4.3]:

The Act enabled the Council to join with other authorities to establish a joint 
auditor panel with the advantage of spreading the costs, but such a joint panel 
would also have to be compiled wholly of or a majority of independent 
members. Further legal advice would be required on the exact constitution of 
such a Panel and with regard to the obligations of each Council under the Act 
the Council would also have to liaise with other Kent authorities to gauge the 
appetite for such an arrangement. A Joint Auditor Panel would be further 
removed from local input, with potentially no input from elected [Dartford] 
Members where a wholly independent panel is used;

Option 3 Opt-in to a sector led body [report para 4.4]:

The third option would be to opt-in to a sector led body appointed by the 
Secretary of State under the Act, removing the need to set up an independent 
Auditor Panel. The opt-in body set up under LGA auspices, would negotiate 
contracts and make appointments on behalf of councils and have the ability to 
negotiate on a national basis; thus maximising the opportunities for the most 
economic and effective procurement of external audit services; on behalf of 
the sector as a whole.  The costs of setting up the appointment arrangements 



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 23 MARCH 2016

7

and negotiating fees would be shared across all opt-in authorities, under the 
leadership of the LGA. The large contract values offered by such an opt-in 
sector led body would enable firms to offer better rates and lower fees. 
However, individual elected Members would have less opportunity for direct 
involvement in the appointment process other than through the LGA and/or 
their stakeholder groups.

The SD (IS) advised that the report was submitted to the Audit Board for 
information at this stage. A follow-up report with recommendations would be 
presented to a future meeting of the Board for referral to the General 
Assembly of the Council (GAC) for approval. 

The SD (IS) further advised that the Kent Finance Officers Group had 
discussed the three Options at a recent meeting and concluded that Option 1 
was likely to be too costly for Councils and that Options 2 and 3 offered better 
value for money (VfM). However, she stressed, that the final decision to 
choose an option for Dartford lay with the Members of the Audit Board and the 
GAC. 

The Chairman confirmed that Grant Thornton could and would take part in the 
submission process for recommending an option to appoint future External 
Auditors for the Council post 2017/18.

In response to a specific question from the Shadow Leader, Officers advised 
that the future contract for the External Auditors post 2017/18 would be for 
between 3-5 years and take account of the changes that had taken place in 
the local government structure up to that point. 

RESOLVED:

1. That Audit Board Members note the future implications for external 
auditor procurement/appointment arrangements, as outlined in the 
body of the report;

2. That a further report be submitted for approval to a future meeting of 
the Board, prior to submission to the General Assembly of the Council 
(GAC); recommending a preferred option for the appointment of 
External Auditors for the Council post the 2017/18 audit cycle;

3. That the Council’s present External Auditors, Grant Thornton UK, LLP 
be invited to participate in the recommendation process as resolved at 
2 above. 

In bringing the proceedings to a close, the Chairman reminded Members that 
at the last  meeting of the Board held on 13 January 2016, five (5) creditor 
payments had been selected by Members for checking by the Internal Audit 
Team. 



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 23 MARCH 2016

8

That exercise had not been undertaken due to staff illnesses, but would be 
completed by the IA team before the next meeting of the Board on 29 June 
2016 and a report recording the outcomes submitted to Members.

The meeting closed at 7.32 pm

Councillor D A Hammock
CHAIRMAN



              
AUDIT BOARD

29 JUNE 2016

REPORT & LETTER FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

1. Summary

To consider the correspondence received from the External Auditor. 

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That Members note the External Auditor’s:

(a) Audit Board Update for Dartford Borough Council.;
(b) The proposed audit fee for 2016/17.

3. Background and Discussion  

3.1 Grant Thornton, the Council’s External Auditor, has submitted one report 
and one letter for consideration by the Board. The report is a progress 
report, which Grant Thornton submits to each meeting of the Board. This 
report (at Appendix A) outlines the progress made in relation to the Audit 
Plan.  

3.2 The letter is the proposed audit fee for 2016/17 (Appendix B).

3.3 Elizabeth Olive and Matthew Dean from Grant Thornton will attend the 
meeting to present the report and letter. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

This is a statutory requirement.  

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications The budget is sufficient to meet the 
proposed audit fee.

Legal Implications None
Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment Potential risk on the estimated fee for 

grant claims if initial testing reveals error 
rates that require substantial additional 
testing. 



              
AUDIT BOARD

29 JUNE 2016

6. Appendices

Appendix A – Audit Board Update for Dartford Borough Council
Appendix B – Planned audit fee letter for 2016/17.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Tim Sams
343148

Financial 
Services/ 
Internal 
Services

N/A



Audit Board Progress and Update 

Report for Dartford Borough Council 

Year ended 31 March 2016 
29 June 2016 

Elizabeth Olive 

Engagement Lead 

T 020 7728 3329 

E  elizabeth.l.olive@uk.gt.com 

Matthew Dean 

Audit Manager 

T 020 7728 3181 

E  matthew.dean@uk.gt.com 

Sangeeta Kakati 

In Charge Auditor  

T 020 7728 3421 

E  sangeeta.kakati@uk.gt.com 



Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

2 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

The contents of  this report relate only to the matters which have come to our 

attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of  our audit 

process. It is not a comprehensive record of  all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for 

reporting all of  the risks which may affect your business or any weaknesses in 

your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 

should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We 

do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party 

acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of  the content of  this report, as 

this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 



Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

3 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Contents 

Contents Page 

Introduction 4 

Progress at June 2016 5 

Value for money 7 

Emerging issues and developments: 

   Grant Thornton and CIPFA Publications 

 

9 



Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

4 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Introduction 

Members of the Audit Board can find further useful material on our website www.grant-

thornton.co.uk, where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. 

Here you can download copies of our publications including: 

• Better Together: Building a successful joint venture company; 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-

company/ 

• Knowing the Ropes – Audit Committee; Effectiveness Review ; 

www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-

effectiveness-review-2015/ 

• Making devolution work: A practical guide for local leaders (October 2015) 

www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/ 

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to 

register with Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates on issues that are of 

interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager. 

This paper provides the Audit Board with a report on 

progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external 

auditors.  

Matthew Dean 
Engagement Manager 
T 020 7728 3181 

E matthew.dean@uk.gt.com 

Elizabeth Olive 
Engagement Lead 
T 020 7728 3329 

E elizabeth.l.olive@uk.gt.com 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/


Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

5 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Progress at 29 June 2016 

2015/16 work Completed Comments 

Accounts Audit Plan 
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the 

Council setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 

opinion on the Council's 2015-16 financial statements. 

 

We also inform you of any subsequent changes to our audit 

approach. 

March 2016 This was presented to and approved by the Audit Board in March 2016, and can confirm 

there have been no changes to the Plan with the exception of an update on our Value for 

Money work, which can be seen within this Report.  

Fee Letter  
We are required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2015/16' by the 

end of April 2015. 

April 2015/April 

2016 

The 2015-16 fee letter was issued during April 2015 and confirmed a fee of £46,405 for the 

2015-16 Accounts Audit.  

We have also recently issued the fee letter for 2016/17, which confirms no change from the 

planned fee for the 2015-16 Audit. This fee letter is on the agenda for this meeting of the 

Audit Board.  

Progress against plan 
On track 

Opinion and VfM conclusion 

Plan to give before deadline of   
30 September 2016 

Outputs delivered 

Fee letter, Progress Reports, delivered  
to plan 



Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

6 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Progress at 29 June 2016 

2015/16 work Completed Comments 

Final accounts audit 
Including: 

• Audit of the 2015-16 financial statements 

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts 

Planned for June – 

currently in progress 

 

We are planning to complete our audit by 1st July as part of the 

transition to the earlier closedown and audit cycle that is required 

from 2018. 

To help the Council prepare appropriate evidence to support the 

financial statements, we have provided a schedule of the working 

papers that we expect and discussed the implications of emerging 

accounting matters with finance staff. 

We have arranged to receive the draft financial statements on 10th 

June, and will report the findings from this work within our Audit 

Findings Report which will be presented to the Audit Board in 

September 2016.  

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion 
The scope of our work has changed and is set out in the final guidance issued by the 
National Audit Office in November 2015. The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves 
that; "the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources". 

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; "in all significant respects, the audited 
body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people". 

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a conclusion overall are: 

• Informed decision making 

• Sustainable resource deployment 

• Working with partners and other third parties 

Field work in March – 

July, formal 

conclusion reported 

by 30 September 

2016 

 

We have set out the result of our risk assessment and the proposed 
focus of our work on pages 7 and 8 of this Report 
 
The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will 
be reported in our Audit Findings Report, which we have mentioned 
above. 
 
We will include our conclusion as part of our report on your financial 
statements which we will give by 30 September 2016. 
 

Other activities 
We provide a range of workshops, along with network events for members 

and publications to support the Council. 

February 2016 

 

 

On-going 

We have provided a local workshop covering changes to 

accounting standards and the Code of Practice, and emerging 

issues and future developments, to support officers involved in the 

preparation of the Financial Statements.  

Further details of the publications that may be of interest to the 

Council are set out from page 12. 



Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

7 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Value for Money 
Background 

The Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 ('the Act') and the NAO Code of Audit 
Practice ('the Code') require us to issue a conclusion on whether the Council has put 
in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion.  

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work in November 2015. 

The Act and the NAO guidance state that auditors are only required to report by 
exception where they are not satisfied that NHS bodies have proper arrangements in 
place to secure value for money. However, we are required to carry out sufficient 
work to satisfy ourselves that proper arrangements are in place at the Council. 

The guidance identifies a criterion for auditors to evaluate, which is:  

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers 
and local people.  

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out in the table to the right. 

Sub-criteria Detail 

Informed decision 

making 

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and applying the 

principles and values of good governance 

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and performance 

information to support informed decision making and performance 

management 

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the delivery of 

strategic priorities 

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system of 

internal control. 

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment 

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of 

strategic priorities and maintain statutory functions 

• Managing assets effectively to support the delivery of strategic 

priorities 

• Planning, organising and developing the workforce effectively to 

deliver strategic priorities. 

Working with 

partners and other 

third parties 

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic priorities 

• Commissioning services effectively to support the delivery of 

strategic priorities 

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the delivery 

of strategic priorities. 



Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

8 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Value for money 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

Risk assessment 

We completed an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's guidance. In our initial 
risk assessment, we considered: 

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous 
years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial 
statements 

• illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its 
Supporting Information 

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your 
arrangements 

We have identified significant risks which we are required to communicate to you. The 

NAO's Code of Audit Practice defines ‘significant’ as follows:  

A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that 

the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the wider public. Significance has 

both qualitative and quantitative aspects.  

We have set out below the risks we have identified, how they relate to the Code sub-criteria, 

and the work we propose to undertake to address these risks 

Significant risk Link to sub-criteria Work proposed to address 

Financial position  

Whilst you are on course to meet your financial 

outturn for 2015-16, this does rely on the use of 

funding sources which will not be as readily available 

in future years. The Council also needs to identify a 

considerable level of savings over next five years as 

part of its Medium Term Financial Plan to reduce the 

level of reserves needed to achieve financial balance.  

Sustainable resource deployment 

This links to your arrangements for 

planning finances effectively to support 

the sustainable delivery of strategic 

priorities and maintain statutory 

functions. 

 

We propose to:  
• review relevant Council and other committee papers;  
• review the 2015-16 financial outturn against plan, and investigate any 

significant areas of over/underperformance and the reasons behind these. 
• review the progress against the 2016-17 financial plan up to the 

completion of our audit; and 
• obtain an update on the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy, 

including progress on identifying the savings required in coming years, 

including discussions with Management on progress to date.  

 



Grant Thornton and 
CIPFA Publications 



Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

10 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Better Together:  
Building a successful joint venture company 

Local government is evolving as it 

looks for ways to protect front-line 

services. These changes are picking 

up pace as more councils introduce 

alternative delivery models to 

generate additional income and 

savings. 

'Better together' is the next report in our series looking at 

alternative delivery models and focuses on the key areas 

to consider when deciding to set up a joint venture (JV), 

setting it up and making it successful.  

 JVs have been in use for many years in local government 

and remain a common means of delivering services 

differently. This report draws on our research across a 

range of JVs to provide inspiring ideas from those that 

have been a success and the lessons learnt from those 

that have encountered challenges.  

Key findings from the report: 

• JVs continue to be a viable option – Where they have 

been successful they have supported councils to 

improve service delivery, reduce costs, bring 

investment and expertise and generate income 

• There is reason to be cautious – Our research found a 

number of JVs between public and private bodies had 

mixed success in achieving outcomes for councils 

• There is a new breed of JVs between public sector 

bodies – These JVs can be more successful at working 

and staying together. There are an increasing number 

being set up between councils and wholly-owned 

commercial subsidiaries that can provide both the 

commercialism required and the understanding of the 

public sector culture. 

Our report, Better Together: Building a successful joint 

venture company, can be downloaded from our website: 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/build

ing-a-successful-joint-venture-company/ 

 

Grant Thornton reports 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/


Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

11 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Reforging local government: Summary findings of  financial 
health checks and governance reviews 

The recent autumn statement represents the biggest 

change in local government finance in 35 years. The 

Chancellor announced that in 2019/20 councils will 

spend the same in cash terms as they do today and that 

"better financial management and further efficiency" will 

be required to achieve the projected 29% savings. Based 

on our latest review of  financial resilience at English 

local authorities, this presents a serious challenge to many 

councils that have already become lean.  

 

 

• the majority of  councils will continue to weather the 
financial storm, but to do so will now require difficult 
decisions to be made about services 
 

• most councils project significant funding gaps over the next 
three to five years, but the lack of  detailed plans to address 
these deficits in the medium-term represents a key risk 

 
• Whitehall needs to go further and faster in allowing localities 

to drive growth and public service reform including proper 
fiscal devolution that supports businesses and communities 

 
• local government needs a deeper understanding of  their 

local partners to deliver the transformational changes that 
are needed and do more to break down silos 

 
• elected members have an increasingly important role in 

ensuring good governance is not just about compliance with 
regulations, but also about effective management of  change 
and risk 

 
• councils need to improve the level of  consultation with the 

public when prioritising services and make sure that their 
views help shape council development plans. 

Our report is available at  

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-

government/, or in hard copy from your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager. 
 

Our research suggests that: 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/


Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

12 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Innovation in public financial 
management 

In December 2015 we issued a report, 

which drew on a survey of  almost 300 

practitioners worldwide, also includes 

insights from experts at the International 

Consortium on Governmental Financial 

Management (ICGFM) and the 

Massachusetts Institute of  Technology's 

Centre for Finance and Policy. 

The report is the latest in a decade-long series jointly 

published by Grant Thornton and the ICGFM and it 

covers four major topics that, globally, will impact on the 

future of public financial management: 

Changing practices. Our research showed that the 

biggest issue ahead will be finding the political 

commitment to support more difficult innovations on 

the agenda – such as increasing public engagement.  

The right PPP formula. 90% of respondents felt that 

substantial investment in infrastructure was required to 

drive economic growth. In this age of austerity, most 

governments are also seeking ways to attract outside 

investment – with the majority using some form of 

public-private partnership (PPP). Many countries remain 

inexperienced with such arrangements and the results of 

their application have been mixed. There has been little 

improvement since our 2011 survey, which shows that it 

takes a long time to develop the requisite skills and 

experience to make PPPs work. 

Transparency with technology. Public financial 

managers are convinced of the importance of enhancing 

transparency and most are trying to be innovative in this 

area. However, most are using outdated digital tools. 

Fewer than half use social media to enhance openness. 

Even among the best, most transparency efforts are 

focussed on releasing data sets than data insights. 

The new normal. Public financial management remains 

weighed down by the effects of the global financial crisis, 

but respondents also focussed on important 

developments since 2008, such as the Eurozone 

problems and the collapse of commodity prices. This 

suggests that public financial management is having to 

come to terms with not just the lessons of one major 

financial crisis, but with how governments can live with 

less over the long term. 

Our report, Innovation in public financial management, 

can be downloaded from our website: 

http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/in

novation-in-public-financial-management/ 

Grant Thornton reports 



Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

13 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

2016 Transparency Report 

Grant Thornton's commitment to quality 

underpins all that we do and this is 

reflected in our 2016 Transparency Report. 

 

We have more than 42,000 people in over 130 countries 

and this report is a public statement of our commitment 

to provide high-quality services to businesses and 

organisations operating throughout the world. 

It is designed to help  clients, audit committees, 

regulators and the public, who make up our many 

stakeholders, understand us better. 

The report covers the three key aspects of our business, 

namely: 

• Audit and assurance; 

• Taxation; and 

• Advisory services. 

The report provides information on our audit 

methodology and sets out how we monitor the quality of 

our work and engage with external regulators. 

 

 

 

It also covers our arrangements for governance and 

management and sets our most recent financial 

information. 

The report can be downloaded from our website: 

www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-

firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-

2016.pdf 

Alternatively, hard copies can be provided by your 

Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager. 

 

Grant Thornton reports 

http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf


Audit Board progress report and emerging issues and developments – Dartford Borough Council 

14 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally  

Fighting Fraud and Corruption 

Locally is a strategy for English local 

authorities that is the result of  

collaboration by local authorities and 

key stakeholders from across the 

counter fraud landscape . 

This strategy is the result of an intensive period of 

research, surveys, face-to-face meetings and workshops. 

Local authorities have spoken openly about risks, barriers 

and what they feel is required to help them improve and 

continue the fight against fraud and to tackle corruption 

locally. 

Local authorities face a significant fraud challenge. Fraud 

costs local authorities an estimated £2.1bn a year. In 

addition to the scale of losses, there are further 

challenges arising from changes in the wider public 

sector landscape including budget reductions, service 

remodelling and integration, and government policy 

changes. Local authorities will need to work with new 

agencies in a new national counter fraud landscape. 

The strategy: 

• calls upon local authorities to continue to tackle fraud 

with the dedication they have shown so far and to 

step up the fight against fraud in a challenging and 

rapidly changing environment 

• illustrates the financial benefits that can accrue from 

fighting fraud more effectively 

• calls upon central government to promote counter 

fraud activity in local authorities by ensuring the right 

further financial incentives are in place and helping 

them break down barriers to improvement 

• updates and builds upon Fighting Fraud Locally 2011 

in the light of developments such as The Serious and 

Organised Crime Strategy and the first UK Anti-

Corruption Plan 

• sets out a new strategic approach that is designed to 

feed into other areas of counter fraud and corruption 

work and support and strengthen the ability of the 

wider public sector to protect itself from the harm 

that fraud can cause. 

The strategy can be downloaded from 

http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-

centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally 

 

CIPFA publication 

http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally


GRT102468 





 
 

Graham Harris 
Managing Director 
Dartford Borough Council 
Civic Centre 
Home Gardens 
Dartford 
Kent 
DA1 1DR 
 
 
21 April 2016 

Dear Graham  

Planned audit fee for 2016/17 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 provides for the introduction of a new 
framework for local public audit. Under these provisions, the Audit Commission closed in 
March 2015 and the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government delegated 
some statutory functions from the Audit Commission Act 1998 to Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited (PSAA) on a transitional basis. 

PSAA will oversee the Commission's audit contracts for local government bodies until they 
end in 2018, following the announcement by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) that it will extend transitional arrangements until 2017/18. PSAA's 
responsibilities include setting fees, appointing auditors and monitoring the quality of 
auditors' work. Further information on PSAA and its responsibilities are available on the 
PSAA website. 

Scale fee 

PSAA prescribes that 'scale fees are based on the expectation that audited bodies are able to 
provide the auditor with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with 
supporting working papers, within agreed timescales'.  

There are no planned changes to the overall work programme for local government audited 
bodies for 2016/17, bar the adoption of new measurement requirements for the Highways 
Network Asset.  

CIPFA/LASAAC is expected to confirm, subject to consultation, that the 2016/17 Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom will adopt the measurement 
requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Highways Network Asset. 

As Dartford Borough Council is not a highway authority, this change for accounting for 
highways assets is not applicable.  

PSAA have proposed that 2016/17 scale audit fees (excluding work completed on the 
Highways Network Asset) are set at the same level as the scale fees applicable for 2015/16. 
The Council's scale fee for 2016/17 has been set by PSAA at £46,405.    

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Grant Thornton House 
Melton Street 
London NW1 2EP 
 

T +44 (0)20 7383 5100 
 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

 

http://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/what-we-do/


 2 

The audit planning process for 2016/17, including the risk assessment, will continue as the 
year progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary as our work progresses.  

Scope of the audit fee 
Under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit 
Office (NAO) is responsible for publishing the statutory Code of Audit Practice and 
guidance for auditors from April 2015. Audits of the accounts for 2016/17 will be undertaken 
under this Code, on the basis of the work programme and scale fees set out on the  PSAA 
website. Further information on the NAO Code and guidance is available on the NAO 
website. 
 
The scale fee covers: 

 our audit of your financial statements 

 our work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of 
resources (the value for money conclusion) 

 our work on your whole of government accounts return (if applicable). 
 

As outlined above, the fee for any additional work in respect of the Highways Network Asset 
is not included in this fee. 

PSAA will agree fees for considering objections from the point at which auditors accept an 
objection as valid, or any special investigations, as a variation to the scale fee. 

Value for Money conclusion 

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. 
 
The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on value for money work in November 2015. The 
guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion 
on whether the Council has put proper arrangements in place. 
 
The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 
In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys resources to achieve 
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 
 

Certification of grant claims and returns  

The Council's indicative grant certification fee has been set by PSAA at £19,485. This fee 
covers the cost of certifying the housing benefit subsidy claim only and is based on final 
2014/15 certification fees. 

The indicative fee for certification work is based on the expectation that you provide the 
auditor with complete and materially accurate claims and returns, with supporting working 
papers, within agreed timeframes. 

Assurance engagements for other schemes will be subject to separate arrangements and fees 
agreed between the grant-paying body, the Council and ourselves 

  

http://www.psaa.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Proposed-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees-consultation-for-local-government-and-police-bodies1.pdf
http://www.psaa.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Proposed-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees-consultation-for-local-government-and-police-bodies1.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/


 3 

Billing schedule 

Fees will be billed as follows: 
 
 

Main Audit fee £ 

September 2016  11,601 

December 2016          11,601 

March 2017 11,601 

June 2017 11,602 

Total 46,405 

  

Grant Certification  

March 2017 19,485 

 

 

Outline audit timetable 

We will undertake our audit planning and interim audit procedures in November 2016 to 

March 2017. Upon completion of this phase of our work we will issue a detailed audit plan 

setting out our findings and details of our audit approach. Our final accounts audit and work 

on the VfM conclusion will be completed in June 2017, along with our work on the Whole of 

Government Accounts return. 
 

 
Phase of work 

Timing Outputs Comments 

Audit planning 
and interim audit 

November 2016 
to March 2017 

Audit plan The plan summarises the 
findings of our audit 
planning and our approach 
to the audit of the 
Council's accounts and 
VfM. 

Final accounts 
audit 

June 2017 Audit Findings 
(Report to those 
charged with 
governance) 

This report sets out the 
findings of our accounts 
audit and VfM work for the 
consideration of those 
charged with governance. 

VfM conclusion November 2016 
to June 2017 

Audit Findings 
(Report to those 
charged with 
governance) 

As above 

Whole of 
Government 
Accounts 

June 2017 Opinion on the 
WGA return 

This work will be 
completed alongside the 
accounts audit. 

Annual audit letter October 2017 Annual audit letter 
to the Council 

The letter will summarise 
the findings of all aspects 
of our work. 



 4 

Grant certification September to 
December 2017 

Grant certification 
report 

A report summarising the 
findings of our grant 
certification work 

 

Our team 

The key members of the audit team for 2016/17 are:  

 Name Phone Number E-mail 

Engagement 
Lead 

Elizabeth Olive 020 7728 3329 elizabeth.l.olive@uk.gt.com  

Engagement 
Manager 

Matt Dean 020 7728 3181 matthew.dean@uk.gt.com  

In Charge 
Auditor 

Sangeeta Kakati 020 7728 3421 sangeeta.kakati@uk.gt.com  

 

Additional work 

The scale fee excludes any work requested by the Council that we may agree to undertake 
outside of our Code audit.  Each additional piece of work will be separately agreed and a 
detailed project specification and fee agreed with the Council. 

Quality assurance 

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service.  If you are in any way 
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in 
the first instance. Alternatively you may wish to contact Paul Dossett, our Public Sector 
Assurance regional lead partner, via paul.dossett@uk.gt.com.  

Yours sincerely 

 
 
Elizabeth Olive 
Engagement Lead 
For Grant Thornton UK LLP 

 

 

mailto:elizabeth.l.olive@uk.gt.com
mailto:matthew.dean@uk.gt.com
mailto:sangeeta.kakati@uk.gt.com
mailto:paul.dossett@uk.gt.com


            
AUDIT BOARD

29 JUNE 2016

ANTI-FRAUD TEAM YEAR END REPORT 2015/16  

1. Summary

This report is to update the Audit Board on work undertaken by the Anti-
Fraud Team during the year ended 31 March 2016 and confirms the creation 
of a new Counter Fraud & Compliance Team following the transfer of 
Housing Benefit fraud work to the Single Fraud Investigation Service (S-FIS) 
within the Department for Work & Pensions on 1 February 2016.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Members note the work undertaken by the Anti-Fraud Team in 
2015/16 and the organisational changes made in respect of fraud 
investigation arrangements post the transfer of benefit fraud work to the 
Single Fraud Investigation Service (S-FIS).

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 The report sets out details of the activities of the Anti-Fraud Team during 
2015/16, including the transfer of all benefit fraud work to the S-FIS in 
January 2016 and confirms the arrangements for a new Counter Fraud & 
Compliance Team within Dartford Borough Council created on 1 February 
2016. 

3.2 With effect from 1 February 2016 responsibility for investigating Housing 
Benefit fraud passed to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 
Single Fraud Investigation Service. Dartford Borough Council continues to 
process and administer claims for Housing Benefit and therefore retains 
residual responsibilities in relation to the provision of Housing Benefit 
information in respect of investigations undertaken by S-FIS and the 
processing of referrals received from various national anti-fraud initiatives. 

3.3 The Anti-Fraud Team continued to investigate instances of alleged 
Housing Benefit fraud until the end of 2015 when enquiries were wound 
down and preparations made for the transfer of all live investigations to 
the Single Fraud Investigation Service.   



AUDIT BOARD
29 June 2016

Summary of Issues in the Report

4 The update details within Appendix A summarises the team’s activities in 
regards to:

 A summary of the team’s performance in relation to the detection and 
investigation of benefit fraud between 1 April 2015 and 31 December 
2015. 

 Confirmation of the team’s performance in relation to the detection 
and investigation of Council Tax fraud and Tenancy fraud between 1 
April 2015 and 31 March 2016.

 Details of the new Counter Fraud & Compliance Team created on 1 
February 2016 following the transfer of benefit fraud work to the 
Single Fraud Investigation Service.

5 Dartford Borough Council is determined that the culture and ethos of the 
organisation is one of honesty and opposition to fraud and corruption. The 
authority has reacted quickly to the relevant changes imposed so that 
resources are in place to continue to provide a high quality service for the 
Council in the detection and investigation of a range of frauds which the 
Council may encounter, which fits within the Council’s zero tolerance 
approach to fraud and corruption.  

6 Members are requested to note the contents of the report and endorse the 
work of the team.

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications The cost of the new team has been met 
from the budget of the old fraud team 
and from funding from the major 
preceptors. Although it is anticipated 
that the team will generate additional 
council tax and business rates income, 
a large proportion of this additional 
income will be passed to the major 
preceptors. As the income cannot be 
guaranteed or predicted with any 
certainty, it has not been built into the 
budget. 

Legal Implications None
Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints.



AUDIT BOARD
29 June 2016

Appendices

Appendix A – 2015/16 Anti-Fraud End of Year Report

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Housing 
Benefit, Local 
Council Tax 
Support

N/A Glen Moore
01732 227471

Bami Cole
01322 343023 

Audit, Risk 
& Anti-
Fraud

N/A



AUDIT BOARD
29 June 2016

Appendix A

Anti-Fraud Team

Year End Report 2015/16

1. Introduction

This report is to update the Audit Board on the work undertaken by the Anti-Fraud 
Team for the year ending 31 March 2016 and confirms the creation of a new 
Counter Fraud & Compliance Team following the transfer of benefit fraud work to 
the Department for Work & Pensions, Single Fraud Investigation Service (S-FIS) 
on 1 February 2016. 

2. Background

The Anti-Fraud Team was established on 1 September 2010 combining the Benefit 
Fraud Investigations Teams from Dartford Borough Council and Sevenoaks District 
Council as part of a wider partnership arrangement joining the two Councils’ Audit, 
Fraud, Revenues and Benefits services together. 

Based within the shared Audit, Risk & Fraud Team, the team predominately 
investigated allegations of benefit fraud on behalf of the two local authorities with 
any residual resources being dedicated to assisting with issues of Council Tax 
fraud and Tenancy fraud. 

In December 2013 the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced the creation of the 
Single Fraud Investigation Service (S-FIS) within the Department for Work & 
Pensions to investigate all welfare benefit fraud under a single remit. The transfer 
of local authority investigation staff to S-FIS commenced in October 2014 (and was 
completed in March 2016), with Dartford Borough Council passing responsibility for 
the investigation of Housing Benefit fraud to the Single Fraud Investigation Service 
on 1 February 2016.

Dartford Borough Council is committed to providing an effective anti-fraud service 
which is supported by efficient policies and sanctions for those that offend. Counter 
fraud is the responsibility of everyone in the council and by ensuring that effective 
measures are in place to prevent, detect, investigate and report that public money 
is spent where it should be, on services for the community.

Failure to investigate fraud will see money leaving the council by way of fraud or 
error and failure to tackle this effectively could lead to loss of revenue for the 
council and loss of reputation. Dartford Borough Council has taken the opportunity 
to retain some of the specialist investigative resources from the Anti-Fraud Team, 
which were due to transfer to S-FIS and created a new Counter Fraud & 
Compliance Team. More detail can be found in section 4 of this report.    



AUDIT BOARD
29 June 2016

 3. Performance

Benefit Fraud 

Housing Benefit overpayments identified by fraud investigations during the period 1 
April 2015 to 31 December 2015 amounted to £370,223 and £66,123 has been 
recovered. 

Council Tax Benefit overpayments identified by fraud investigations during the 
period 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 amounted to £25,250 and £12,531 has 
been recovered.

Six benefit fraud offenders were successfully prosecuted and a further two 
claimants were issued with formal cautions.

Additional revenue of £12,282 has also been generated as a result of 
Administrative Penalties accepted by customers following fraud investigations.

Council Tax Fraud

Council Tax Support overpayments identified by fraud investigations during the 
period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 amounted to £37,273 and £18,576 has been 
recovered. 

Pro-active initiatives in relation to Council Tax discounts and Council Tax 
exemptions yielded additional revenue of £16,512 and £826 respectively.

Council Tenancy Fraud

The Anti-Fraud Team continued to work closely with Dartford Borough Council’s 
Housing Department, providing assistance in relation to matters of suspected false 
homeless applications, false right-to-buy applications, council tenancy 
abandonment and sub-letting. 
 

4. Counter Fraud & Compliance Team 

In March 2016 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
published the Local Government Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy 2016 – 
2019, a follow-up to the Fighting Fraud Locally Strategy published in 2011. CIPFA 
warned that the £2.1 billion annual loss to local government fraud could be a gross 
under estimation and areas such as Council Tax fraud and Tenancy fraud were 
singled out as areas of concern.

Key messages highlighted within the report were:

 Local authorities should adopt an ‘invest to save’ approach in respect of 
their counter fraud resources. 



AUDIT BOARD
29 June 2016

 Councils need to look in the right areas, by taking a risk based approach to 
identify fraud.

 Councils should keep ahead of fraudsters by utilising innovation and 
implementing robust systems to prevent fraud entering the system in the 
first place. 

One FTE investigator from the shared service Anti-Fraud Team transferred to S-
FIS on 1 February 2016, leaving 1 FTE Counter Fraud Manager and 2 FTE 
Counter Fraud Officers to create the new shared service Counter Fraud & 
Compliance Team. 

Drawing upon the results of successful Council Tax fraud initiatives in the past it 
was decided to locate the new team within the shared service Revenues & Benefits 
Department to assist in creating a robust fraud & error compliance strategy which 
protects the Council’s local taxation income base. The team will deal with all 
aspects of external fraud such as Council Tax discount & exemption fraud, 
Business Rates relief fraud and tenancy fraud. All internal fraud matters will 
continue to be dealt with by officers from the shared service Audit Department.

The Council Tax major preceptors have been extremely supportive of this change 
providing funding and support in relation to this work with talks continuing to seek 
further investment in sustainable systems to tackle fraud and corruption which will 
allow resources to remain in areas supporting people who desperately need them.  



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

                                                                                                                                   

UPDATE ON PROGRESS ON THE PWC ACTION PLAN

1. Summary

1.1 This report provides the Board with an update on progress made against 
the PWC action plan.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members:

2.1 Note the update against the action plan shown at Appendix A.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 The outcome of Price Waterhouse Coopers’ (PWC) external review of 
internal audit was presented to the Audit Board at its June 2015 meeting. 
The Board agreed an action plan to address the findings of the review. It 
also agreed that a Sub-Group be set up to regularly check progress against 
the action plan. 

3.2 Progress to date against the action plan is shown at Appendix A. Although a 
meeting of the Sub-Group has not been held recently, this updated action 
plan has been shared with the group.

3.3 The Internal Audit team is now at full establishment. It is pleasing to note 
that both the new Principal Auditor and the new Auditor have settled well 
into their posts.

3.4 The action plan highlights that progress to date has been positive with a 
number of the actions already implemented or in the process of being 
implemented. However, it should be noted that some of these actions will 
take time to bed in before they make a real difference to the quality of the 
service provided by Internal Audit.

3.5 It was recognised within the PWC report that the relationship between 
Internal Audit and managers needs to be strengthened. A workshop was 
held with the Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager and service managers in 
October 2015 to understand from both sides how they could better support 
one another to ensure the Internal Audit service provides real value to the 
organisation. Managers are now regularly reminded by the Section 151 
Officer of the importance of the audit role and the need to co-operate fully 
with the auditors. Moving forward, it is proposed that the Audit, Risk and 
Anti-Fraud Manager holds regular workshops with the senior managers to 
discuss audit related matters and ensure that managers understand the 
need for strong internal controls and governance arrangements. The 
auditors now ensure that the audit scoping meetings are more effective in 
ensuring that the audit will provide the level of assurance required by the 
manager. This should also help to ensure that the recommendations 
coming out of the audits are focussed, realistic and add value to the 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

                                                                                                                                   

Council. Performance indicators have also been introduced and will be 
closely monitored to ensure that the time taken from the commencement of 
an audit to the final report stage is kept to a minimum.

3.6 A development plan has been identified for the new Principal Auditor as she 
is new to local government. Once she has fully settled into her role, she can 
start to work with the Audit Team to raise their technical knowledge and 
skills and provide more supervisory capacity.  

3.7 A development workshop for the team was held in December. With the 
team now at full establishment, this provided an opportunity to re-energise 
the team and re-focus on new ways of working to facilitate the delivery of 
Senior Management expectations and added value, as well as ensuring 
that the team are fully compliant with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. The workshop was very well received by all the team and all 
contributed with ideas of how improvements to the audit service could be 
made. An action plan arising for the workshop is currently being 
progressed.

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

4.1 A robust Internal Audit function contributes towards the effective 
management of the Council and facilitates the achievement of good value 
for money in service provision. 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None
Legal Implications None
Staffing Implications The team is now at full establishment.
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment The external review of Internal Audit 

was carried out to measure the current 
performance of the Internal Audit 
service against industry best practice 
and to ensure the service met the 
requirements of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards in carrying out 
its statutory duties. These duties are 
aimed at strengthening internal control, 
risk management and governance 
processes within the Council. The 
review has highlighted areas for further 
development and the action plan shown 
at Appendix A is being implemented to 
strengthen the effectiveness of the 
Internal Audit Team.

6. Appendices



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

                                                                                                                                   

Appendix A Update Against Action Plan

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

1. CIPFA local 
Government 
Practice Note 
2013 

N/A N/A Sarah Martin
01322 343402

Strategic 
Director  
(Internal 
Services)

N/A

2. Public Sector 
Internal Audit 
Standards 2013



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

                                                                                                                                   

Issues Proposed Action Imp. Date Update
1 Organisation & 

Independence

The key objective is to 
ensure  compliance with the 
PSIA Standards in 
maintaining Internal Audit 
independence, whilst at the 
same time strengthening 
closer working with 
management to facilitate 
and ensure the effective  
delivery of organisational 
objectives and management 
expectations

a) Senior management to review the position 
of IA within the organisation and address 
the issue of the CAE, in line with the 
standards/PWC recommendation.  

b) ARAFM to amend Internal Audit Charter to 
reflect PWC recommendations.

c) Partnership management to finalise and 
agree Service Level 
requirements/expectations and formalised 
into an SLA in order to clarify both into 
measureable input/outcomes 

d) The ARAFM to update the Internal Audit 
Strategy to reflect the above, and 
determine what skills and resources are 

In progress

Complete

Complete

In progress

a) During 2015/16, the S151 Officer 
has been acting as the CAE. This 
is not strictly in accordance with 
the PSIAS as the CAE should be 
independent with no operational 
responsibilities. This has been 
agreed as a temporary 
arrangement to give the ARAFM 
more capacity to concentrate on 
implementing the actions arising 
from the PWC review. A meeting 
has been scheduled for 13 June 
with the intention to transfer the 
CAE role to the ARAFM.

b) This was presented to the January 
Audit Board.

c) Now agreed

d) The Draft Audit Strategy is with 
Senior Management for review. 
Once reviewed, it will be 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

                                                                                                                                   

needed in order to facilitate strengthening 
of the relationships with senior 
management and delivery of expectations.

presented to the Audit Board in 
September 2016 for approval.

2 Audit Team

The key issue is to have a 
competent (suitably 
qualified), technically sound 
and accessible audit team, 
with clear definable roles 
and individual objectives, 
supported by credible PIs. A 
team that understands the 
issues which are important 
to the organisation and is 
instinctively sensitive and 
responsive to senior 
management expectations, 
whilst delivering constructive 
and objective assurance. 

a) Senior management to approve recruitment 
to fill existing vacancies of Principal Auditor 
and Auditor Role, in line with the 
organisation chart.

b) Responsibilities of the ARAFM and PA to 
be clearly defined (see organisational chart)

 

c) ARAFM to undertake a skills gap analysis 
of staff and identify relevant training needs, 
including delivery methods.

 

d) ARAFM to define precise objectives and 

Complete

Actioned, 
but in 
progress. 

Done
and  in 
progress

Complete

a) The Principal Auditor and Auditor 
have both now started in post and 
are settling well into the team.

b) These responsibilities have been 
defined and a JD has been 
agreed for the Principal post. The 
roles have also been discussed as 
part of a team meeting. However, 
in view of the need to ensure 
continuity and stability, the 
Principal Auditor’s tasks are being 
phased in gradually, as she is new 
to local government and unfamiliar 
with the audit processes.  

c) Training needs of staff have been 
discussed as part of the appraisal 
process. A team meeting has 
been held to discuss these further. 
Training for time management,   
report writing skills and on 
TeamMate application programme 
will be delivered to all staff; as well 
as other tailor made training for 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

                                                                                                                                   

relevant PIs to facilitate effective monitoring 
of individual performance, to enable more 
precise identification of underperformance, 
in order to facilitate remedial action.

e) Undertake a development day as soon as 
the new team is in place, in order to 
reenergise the team and refocus on new 
ways of working, designed to facilitate the 
delivery of senior management 
expectations and added value, as well as 
the PSIAS. 

Action plan 
in progress

individuals’ needs. 

d) Objectives were discussed as part 
of appraisals. PIs have now been 
set up within Covalent. 

e) The development day took place 
on 18 December and an action 
plan arising from the day is 
currently being progressed. It will 
be updated and shared with 
senior management at the end of 
June 2016

3 Quality Assurance & Audit 
Management

The key issue is to ensure a 
quality assurance process 
which facilitates or enables 
compliance with PSIAS and 
good professional practice, 
including outcomes which 
will lead to sustainable 
improvements and or 
tangible value for money 
benefits. 

a) The ARAFM to refresh the audit needs 
assessment by completing a separate 
comprehensive “Audit Universe” for each 
Council, supported by a full risk 
assessment; to be used for future annual 
audit planning discussions with senior 
management.

b) AFAFM to incorporate key aspects of the 
PWC report relating to 2.3 of their 
recommendations.

Included in 
Annual 
Audit Plan 
for 2016/17

In progress

a) This is a more complex process 
than first anticipated and requires 
dedicated resource. As a result, 
the ARAFM has made provisions 
in the annual plan 2016/17 to 
ensure that sufficient time and 
resources can be devoted to 
completing this exercise in a 
compressive manner. 

b) A workshop has been held to 
discuss reports to Audit Board and 
proposed changes to be 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

                                                                                                                                   

c) The recruitment of a suitably qualified 
Principal Auditor with clearly defined roles 
will facilitate improved synergies and 
resilience; leading to more effective delivery 
of outcomes and senior management 
expectations.

d) The current ISO accreditation to be 
discontinued after this year, generating a 
small financial saving and much greater 
savings in staff time  

e) The ARAFM to undertake the SDC 
Leadership Programme by attending the 
Masterclasses.

Complete 

Complete

Complete

implemented. The team discussed 
internal report templates and 
external examples reviewed. 
Amendments have been made to 
reports templates to be phased in 
from June, in conjunction with the 
new audit management software. 
Audit scope meetings are now 
being held for all audits

c) The new Principal Auditor is now 
in post and her development 
needs have been identified and 
are being addressed.

d) The ISO accreditation has now 
been discontinued.

e) The ARAFM attended the 
masterclass program.

4 Communication & 
Reporting

The key issue here is to 
ensure clear, precise, timely 

a) The Audit Needs Assessment to be 
presented by the ARAFM to MT and 
relevant Committees. 

b) ARAFM to review the report template for 

Complete

Substantiall
y complete 

a) This was presented to senior 
management in February 2016

b) Report templates have been 
discussed and amendments to 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

                                                                                                                                   

and effective engagement 
with management, in order 
to enable the scope, 
objectives and outcomes of 
Internal Audit work to be 
understandable to 
management and also to 
facilitate a clear 
understanding of 
management expectations 
within the audit process; to 
enable constructive 
engagement, including clear 
and concise reporting of 
audit findings and 
recommendations.

audit reports in line with 2.4 (b) of the PWC 
recommendations

c) ARAFM to implement sections 2.4 (c,d and 
f) of the PWC recommendations, affecting, 
Annual Report, Summary Report and 
Validation of Implementation of Audit 
Recommendations 

Ongoing

templates have been made and 
will be phased in, in conjunction 
with implementing the new audit 
management software application, 
from June 2016. 

c) Annual Report recommendations 
have been actioned. PIs have 
been reviewed and actioned.  
Audit Recommendations are now 
being followed up more rigorously. 
Sample checks will now be done, 
where appropriate, to ensure they 
have had the desired impact

5 Quality, Tools and 
Performance Management

The key issue here is to 
facilitate a more efficient 
and accurate audit process, 
with clearly measurable 
outcomes that deliver 
professional requirements 
and management 
expectations.

a) The ARAFM to implement new PIs 
designed to facilitate speedier completion 
of IA work. E.g. PI to measure the timescale 
for delivery of a piece of work, from start to 
draft report, in addition to total time spent 
on the engagement activity.

b) Management to support more stringent 
action where there are notable failures to 
delivery on required performance level 
(quality or quality)

c) To implement new electronic audit 

In progress

ongoing

In progress

a) The PIs are now on Covalent and 
are being monitored. More work is 
to be done to follow up where 
there have been delays between 
finishing the field work and issuing 
the draft report

b) The Principal Auditor is now in 
post. She is aware of the issues 
and will be taking action to 
address as necessary.



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

                                                                                                                                   

management tool to facilitate a more 
efficient audit process, including developing 
the use of IDEA.

d) The ARAFM to define more precisely, 
monitoring responsibilities for himself and 
PA and also agree with SMT what 
indicators they would find useful, for regular 
reporting. 

e) The customer questionnaire to be amended 
to indicate whether management 
expectations have been effectively 
delivered for each activity.

Ongoing

Complete

c) The TeamMate software contract 
has now been signed  and the 
initial system set up is scheduled 
for week commencing 27 June 
2016. ARAFM  is following up on 
the use of IDEA. But this will be 
delayed, pending progress on 
TeamMate.

d) PIs are to be monitored closely in 
one:one meetings with the 
ARAFM

e) The customer questionnaire has 
been amended to reflect this.





AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL 
AUDIT 2015-16

1. Summary

1.1 This report provides Members with a summary of the findings from the 
review of effectiveness of the system of Internal Audit for 2015-16. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members:

2.1 Consider the findings of the self-assessment review of the effectiveness 
of the Internal Audit Service 2015-16 against the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 2013;

2.2 Note the outcome of the review of the self-assessment of Internal Audit 
effectiveness.  

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 In compliance with Regulation 6.1 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, an annual review of 
the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function is carried out, using 
standard guidance and templates to facilitate the process, in accordance 
with proper practice for Internal Audit. This report sets out the outcome of 
the process and the conclusions drawn from it. The results from this 
process also feed into the Internal Audit Manager’s Annual Report and 
the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.  

3.2 This is the third and final report to be produced following the 
implementation of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
which came into effect on 1 April 2013.  The standard has been updated 
by the standard setters, to be implemented from 1 April 2016. This will be 
reflected in the assessment for 2017.   

3.3 Appendix A sets out the details of the self-assessment. The process 
involved the completion of the self-assessment checklist by the Audit, 
Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager, in order to assess compliance with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013, and the result was sent to 
senior management for their consideration and approval, prior to 
presenting it to the Audit Board.   

3.4 Following the assessment, the Audit Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager’s 
opinion is that the Council’s arrangements in place for Internal Audit in 
2015/16 were substantially compliant with the 2013 PSIAS. However, 
there is one material aspect of the standards which is not currently being 
complied with. This is in regard to the position of the designated Chief 
Audit Executive (CAE), who is currently also the section 151 Officer for 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

the Council. By having the S151 as the CAE, there may be a potential 
conflict of interest, resulting in possible threats to the independence and 
objectivity of the Internal Audit Service. Appropriate steps have been 
taken to mitigate the threat to independence. These include the Audit, 
Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager continuing to have direct access to the 
Managing Director and Audit Board Chair and all internal audit reports 
carried out by Internal Audit during the year being summarised for the 
Audit Board within the Internal Audit Progress Report. The CAE 
arrangement was of a temporary nature to allow the Audit, Risk and Anti-
Fraud Manager to concentrate his efforts on implementing the PWC 
review action plan. Arrangements have been made to pass the CAE role 
to the Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager, which will ensure compliance 
with the standards. This matter has been highlighted within the Annual 
Governance Statement for 2015/16.   Notwithstanding this limitation, the 
Internal Audit Service is substantially compliant with the 2013 standards.

3.6 The Audit Board is requested to consider the report and note the opinion 
regarding the effectiveness of the Council’s Internal Audit Service.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

4.1 An independent and objective Internal Audit function contributes towards 
the effective management of the Council and facilitates the achievement 
of good value for money in service provision. 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None
Legal Implications None
Staffing Implications It is the view of the Managing Director 

that consideration will need to be given 
to other functions such as risk and fraud 
to ensure that Audit is completely 
independent from other functions. 
Recognising the size of the Authority, 
complete separation may not be 
possible.

Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment The review of the effectiveness of the 

Internal Audit function is a regulatory   
requirement designed to ensure that the 
service is effective in carrying out its 
statutory duties aimed at strengthening 
internal control, risk management and 
governance processes within the 
Council, including the minimisation of 
fraud risks. The outcome of the self-
assessment indicates that although the 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

audit function is substantially compliant 
with professional standards, there are 
limitations imposed by the duality of the 
designated CAE, being the Section 151 
officer, which poses risks to the 
independence and objectivity of the 
service.

6. Appendices

Appendix A Completed self-assessment checklist 

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

1. Accounts and 
Audit 
Regulations 
2015 

N/A N/A Bami Cole
01322 343023

Internal 
Audit

N/A

2. Public Sector 
Internal Audit 
Standards 2013





May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 1 of 37

APPENDIX A - CHECKLIST - COMPLIANCE WITH THE PSIAS
Please tick to indicate Y = YES, P = PARTIAL, N = NO.

Where ‘partial’ or ‘no’, you should give reasons for any non-compliance, and

any compensating measures in place or actions in progress to address this.

             

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

3 Definition of Internal Auditing

Internal Auditing is an independent, objective 
assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations.  It 
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by 
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes

P There is an Internal Audit 
Charter which has been 
approved by the Audit 
Board. During the year, the 
S151 Officer has been 
acting as the CAE which is 
not strictly in compliance 
with the PSIAS. This was a 
temporary arrangement to 
allow the ARAFM to 
concentrate on 
implementing the actions 
within the PWC 
improvement plan. The 
ARAFM has continued to 
have direct access to 
Management Team and the 
Audit Chair, and a summary 
of the internal audit reviews 
carried out have been 
included within the Internal 
Audit Progress Report 
submitted to the Audit 
Board. Therefore any threat 
to the independence of 
Internal Audit has been 
mitigated. A meeting has 
been arranged to pass the 
CAE role to the ARAFM.

4 Code of Ethics

Public sector requirement:
Internal Auditors in UK public sector 
organisations must conform to the Code of 
Ethics.  If individual Internal Auditors have 

Y  Internal Audit Charter, 
Quality Manual and 
Protocol 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 2 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

membership of another professional body then 
he or she must also comply with the relevant 
requirements of that organisation.

The purpose of The Institute’s Code of Ethics is to 
promote an ethical culture in the profession of 
Internal Auditing.  A code of ethics is necessary 
and appropriate for the profession of Internal 
Auditing, founded as it is on the trust placed in its 
objective assurance regarding risk management, 
control and governance.

The Institute’s Code of Ethics extends beyond the 
definition of Internal Auditing to include two 
essential components:
1. Principles that are relevant to the profession 

and practice of Internal Auditing; and
2. Rules of Conduct that describe behaviour 

norms expected of Internal Auditors.  These 
rules are an aid to interpreting the Principles 
into practical applications and are intended to 
guide the ethical conduct of Internal Auditors.

The Code of Ethics provides guidance to Internal 
Auditors serving others.  ‘Internal Auditors’ refers 
to Institute members and those who provide 
Internal Auditing services within the definition of 
Internal Auditing.

Public sector interpretation:
The ‘Institute’ here refers to the IIA.  Disciplinary 
procedures of other professional bodies and 
employing organisations may apply to breaches of 
this Code of Ethics.

1 Integrity
2 Objectivity
3 Confidentiality
4 Competency

Public sector requirement:
Internal Auditors who work in the public sector 
must also have regard to the Committee on 

All staff are required to 
comply with the PSAIS 
Code of Ethics as part of 
their appraisal objectives.  
Staff understand their 
responsibilities in ensuring 
that the function maintains 
its independence and 
ethical behaviour.

In addition, all Internal Audit  
staff have confirmed that 
they have read the Code of 
Ethics and have regard to 
the Committee on 
Standards of Public Life’s 
‘Seven Principles of Public 
Life’

All Internal Audit staff 
complete an annual interest 
declaration form.

Internal Audit Charter para. 
3.



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 3 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

Standards of Public Life’s Seven Principles of 
Public Life, information on which can be found 
at www.public-standards.gov.uk

5 Standards

Attribute Standards

1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility

The purpose, authority and responsibility of the 
Internal Audit activity must be formally defined in 
an Internal Audit Charter, consistent with the 
Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics 
and the Standards.  The Chief Audit Executive 
must periodically review the Internal Audit Charter 
and present it to senior management and the 
Board for approval.

P The terms of reference for 
the Internal Audit Service is 
set out within the Audit 
Charter and has been 
appropriately approved by 
senior management and the 
Board. The position of the 
CAE during the year has 
not been in strict 
compliance with the PSIAS 
as it has sat with the S151 
Officer, however steps have 
been taken to mitigate any 
threat to the independence 
of the Internal Audit 
function. A meeting has 
been arranged to pass the 
CAE role to the ARAFM.

Interpretation:
The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document 
that defines the Internal Audit activity’s purpose, 
authority and responsibility.  The Internal Audit 
Charter establishes the Internal Audit activity’s 
position within the organisation, including the 
nature of the Chief Audit Executive’s functional 
reporting relationship with the Board; authorises 
access to records, personnel and physical 
properties relevant to the performance of 
engagements; and defines the scope of Internal 
Audit activities.  Final approval of the Internal Audit 
Charter resides with the Board.

Public sector requirement:
The Internal Audit Charter must also:

This is linked to the above  

http://www.public-standards.gov.uk/


May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 4 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

 Define the terms ‘Board’ and ‘senior 
management’ for the purposes of Internal 
Audit activity;

 Cover the arrangements for appropriate 
resourcing;

 Define the role of Internal Audit in any 
fraud-related work; and

 Include arrangements for avoiding conflicts 
of interest if Internal Audit undertakes non-
audit activities.

1000.A1
The nature of assurance services provided to the 
organisation must be defined in the Internal Audit 
Charter.  If assurances are to be provided to 
parties outside the organisation, the nature of 
these assurances must also be defined in the 
Internal Audit Charter.

This is included in the   
Internal Audit Charter 

1000.C1
The nature of consulting services must be defined 
in the Internal Audit Charter.

This is included in the 
Internal Audit Charter

1010 Recognition of the Definition of Internal Auditing, 
the Code of Ethics and the Standards in the 
Internal Audit Charter

The mandatory nature of the Definition of Internal 
Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards 
must be recognised in the Internal Audit Charter.  
The Chief Audit Executive should discuss the 
Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics 
and the Standards with senior management and 
the Board.

This is included in the 
Internal Audit Charter

1100 Independence and Objectivity

The Internal Audit activity must be independent 
and Internal Auditors must be objective in 
performing their work.

P The CAE role should be 
independent of operational 
responsibilities. During 
2015/16 the role has sat 
with the S151 Officer and 
there has therefore been a 
potential threat to the 
independence of the 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 5 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

Internal Audit function. The 
external auditors are 
satisfied that this threat has 
been mitigated by the 
ARAFM having continued 
access to the Management 
Team, including the 
Managing Director, and the 
Audit Chair. All reports 
carried out by Internal Audit 
during the year have been 
summarised for the Audit 
Board within the Internal 
Audit Progress Report 
which has allowed 
Members of the Audit Board 
to challenge any concerns 
they may have over 
independence. A meeting 
has been arranged to pass 
the CAE role to the ARAFM. 

Interpretation:
Independence is the freedom from conditions that 
threaten the ability of the Internal Audit activity to 
carry out Internal Audit responsibilities in an 
unbiased manner.  To achieve the degree of 
independence necessary to effectively carry out 
the responsibilities of the Internal Audit activity, the 
Chief Audit Executive has direct and unrestricted 
access to senior management and the Board.  
This can be achieved through a dual-reporting 
relationship.  Threats to independence must be 
managed at the individual auditor, engagement, 
functional and organisational levels.

Objectivity is an unbiased mental attitude that 
allows Internal Auditors to perform engagements 
in such a manner that they believe in their work 
product and that no quality compromises are 
made. Objectivity requires that Internal Auditors do 
not subordinate their judgment on audit matters to 
others. Threats to objectivity must be managed at 
the individual auditor, engagement, functional and 
organisational levels.

See above



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 6 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

1110 Organisational Independence

The Chief Audit Executive must report to a level 
within the organisation that allows the Internal 
Audit activity to fulfil its responsibilities.  The Chief 
Audit Executive must confirm to the Board, at least 
annually, the organisational independence of the 
Internal Audit activity.

As indicated above, the 
CAE is also the Sec 151 
officer.  A meeting has been 
arranged to transfer this 
role to the ARAFM



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 7 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

A Interpretation:
Organisational independence is effectively 
achieved when the Chief Audit Executive reports 
functionally to the Board. Examples of functional 
reporting to the Board involve the Board:
 Approving the Internal Audit Charter;
 Approving the risk based Internal Audit Plan;
 Approving the Internal Audit budget and 

resource plan;
 Receiving communications from the Chief Audit 

Executive on the Internal Audit activity’s 
performance relative to its plan and other 
matters;

 Approving decisions regarding the appointment 
and removal of the Chief Audit Executive;

 Approving the remuneration of the Chief Audit 
Executive; and

 Making appropriate enquiries of management 
and the Chief Audit Executive to determine 
whether there are inappropriate scope or 
resource limitations.

Public sector requirement:
The Chief Audit Executive must report 
functionally to the Board.  The Chief Audit 
Executive must also establish effective 
communication with, and have free and 
unfettered access to, the chief executive (or 
equivalent) and the chair of the audit 
committee.

Public sector interpretation:
Governance requirements in the UK public sector 
would not generally involve the Board approving 
the CAE’s remuneration specifically.  The 
underlying principle is that the independence of 
the CAE is safeguarded by ensuring that his or her 
remuneration or performance assessment is not 
inappropriately influenced by those subject to 
audit.  In the UK public sector this can be achieved 
by ensuring that the chief executive (or equivalent) 
undertakes, countersigns, contributes feedback to 
or reviews the performance appraisal of the CAE 
and that feedback is also obtained from the chair 
of the Audit Committee/Board.

See comments above. 
Whilst the S151 Officer, 
acting as CAE, has 
operational responsibilities 
and is therefore not strictly 
independent in accordance 
with the PSIAS, the ARAFM 
has continued to have direct 
access during the year to 
the Managing Director and 
the Audit Chair which has 
mitigated this potential 
threat to the independence 
of the Internal Audit 
function. The potential 
threat will be removed 
moving forward by the CAE 
role moving to the ARAFM.

Included under the 
‘Reporting’ and 
‘Independence’ sections of 
the  Internal Audit Charter.



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 8 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

1110.A1
The Internal Audit activity must be free from 
interference in determining the scope of Internal 
Auditing, performing work and communicating 
results.

P See comments re CAE role 
above. But there is a 
degree of independence in 
conducting audit field work. 
Manual (pages 16 and 17).

,111
1

Direct Interaction with the Board

The Chief Audit Executive must communicate and 
interact directly with the Board.

Y Both the ARAFM and the 
CAE communicate directly 
with the Audit Chair and 
attend meetings. 

1120 Individual Objectivity

Internal Auditors must have an impartial, unbiased 
attitude and avoid any conflict of interest.

P Current organisational 
arrangements may 
compromise staff 
independence and 
objectivity, thus leading to 
potential impairments as 
stated above, however 
appropriate steps have 
been taken to mitigate this 
risk. 

For all, Internal Audit staff, 
personal independence 
responsibilities are 
essential. Ethical 
compliance is part of staff 
appraisal objectives. All 
staff are required to 
complete an annual 
declaration of interest 
return.

Interpretation:
Conflict of interest is a situation in which an 
Internal Auditor, who is in a position of trust, has a 
competing professional or personal interest.  Such 
competing interests can make it difficult to fulfil his 
or her duties impartially.  A conflict of interest 
exists even if no unethical or improper act results.  

See above



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 9 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

A conflict of interest can create an appearance of 
impropriety that can undermine confidence in the 
Internal Auditor, the Internal Audit activity and the 
profession.  A conflict of interest could impair an 
individual’s ability to perform his or her duties and 
responsibilities objectively.

1130 Impairment to Independence or Objectivity

If independence or objectivity is impaired in fact or 
appearance, the details of the impairment must be 
disclosed to appropriate parties.  The nature of the 
disclosure will depend upon the impairment.

P There has been a possible 
impairment to 
independence due to the 
S151 also acting during the 
year as the CAE. This 
potential impairment has 
been mitigated by the 
ARAFM having continued 
access to both the 
Managing Director and the 
Audit Chair, however, it has 
been raised as a potential 
issue within the Annual 
Governance Statement. A 
meeting has been arranged  
to move the CAE role to the 
ARAFM which will remove 
this potential impairment to 
independence.

Interpretation:
Impairment to organisational independence and 
individual objectivity may include, but is not limited 
to, personal conflict of interest, scope limitations, 
restrictions on access to records, personnel and 
properties and resource limitations, such as 
funding.

The determination of appropriate parties to which 
the details of an impairment to independence or 
objectivity must be disclosed is dependent upon 
the expectations of the Internal Audit activities and 
the Chief Audit Executive’s responsibilities to 
senior management and the Board as described in 
the Internal Audit Charter, as well as the nature of 
the impairment.

Please see comment 
above.



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 10 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

1130.A1
Internal Auditors must refrain from assessing 
specific operations for which they were previously 
responsible.  Objectivity is presumed to be 
impaired if an Internal Auditor provides assurance 
services for an activity for which the Internal 
Auditor had responsibility within the previous year.

Included under the 
‘Independence’ section of 
the draft Internal Audit 
Charter template - see 
paragraph 6 and Part 4 of 
quality manual

1130.A2
Assurance engagements for functions over which 
the Chief Audit Executive has responsibility must 
be overseen by a party outside the Internal Audit 
activity.

Lead co-ordination for risk 
management is undertaken 
by the ARAFM, but is 
overseen by senior 
management. Threats to 
conflicts are appropriately 
addressed, as the strategic 
risk register is owned by 
SMT and operational risk 
registers are owned by 
relevant service mangers. 

1130.C1
Internal Auditors may provide consulting services 
relating to operations for which they had previous 
responsibilities.

N/A

1130.C2
If Internal Auditors have potential impairments to 
independence or objectivity relating to proposed 
consulting services, disclosure must be made to 
the engagement client prior to accepting the 
engagement.

Public sector requirement:
Approval must be sought from the Board for 
any significant additional consulting services 
not already included in the Audit Plan, prior to 
accepting the engagement.

Consulting activities is not 
considered to be an 
essential part of the audit 
service at Dartford. 

1200 Proficiency and Due Professional Care

Engagements must be performed with proficiency 
and due professional care.

P There is an effective 
framework in place to 
facilitate this, but in practice 
limitations are imposed by 
individual auditor 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 11 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

qualification, knowledge, 
experience and capabilities.
Also, new staff within local 
government or internal audit 
need training and 
development to facilitate 
their effectiveness. A 
successful development 
day was held in December 
2015. Relevant action plan 
is being progressed to 
facilitate necessary 
improvements.

1210 Proficiency

Internal Auditors must possess the knowledge, 
skills and other competencies needed to perform 
their individual responsibilities.  The Internal Audit 
activity collectively must possess or obtain the 
knowledge, skills and other competencies needed 
to perform its responsibilities.

P See above. Also, the team 
is now at full establishment. 
Hence better placed to 
develop a wider range of 
expertise. But this will need 
time to embed before it 
becomes fully effective.

Interpretation:
Knowledge, skills and other competencies is a 
collective term that refers to the professional 
proficiency required of Internal Auditors to 
effectively carry out their professional 
responsibilities.  Internal Auditors are encouraged 
to demonstrate their proficiency by obtaining 
appropriate professional certifications and 
qualifications, such as the Certified Internal Auditor 
designation and other designations offered by The 
Institute of Internal Auditors and other appropriate 
professional organisations.

Public sector requirement:
The Chief Audit Executive must hold a 
professional qualification (CMIIA, CCAB or 
equivalent) and be suitably experienced.

The new Principal Auditor is 
professional qualified. But 
some key staff lack 
adequate professional 
qualifications, but 
appropriate training has 
been identified to address 
this and relevant training 
plans are being 
implemented. Where 
appropriate, professional 
qualification training is also 
being offered.

The designated CAE, who 
is also the Section 151 
officer, has the appropriate 
professional qualification 
and has previous audit 
experience. However, as 
previously highlighted, this 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 12 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

arrangement is not 
incompliance with the 
PSIAS. A meeting has been 
arranged  to move the CAE 
role to the ARAFM.

The Audit, Risk and Anti-
Fraud manager is CMIIA 
qualified with relevant 
experience)

1210.A1
The Chief Audit Executive must obtain competent 
advice and assistance if the Internal Auditors lack 
the knowledge, skills, or other competencies 
needed to perform all, or part of the engagement.

P Where necessary this is 
addressed by use of agency 
staff, but is subjected to 
budget constraints.

1210.A2
Internal Auditors must have sufficient knowledge 
to evaluate the risk of fraud and the manner in 
which it is managed by the organisation, but are 
not expected to have the expertise of a person 
whose primary responsibility is detecting and 
investigating fraud.

P The risk of fraud is a key 
consideration as part of the 
audit process. However the 
effectiveness of how this is 
dealt with during an 
engagement is limited by 
the individual auditor’s 
capabilities. Appropriate 
training is planned for all 
auditors.

1210.A3
Internal Auditors must have sufficient knowledge 
of key information technology risks and controls 
and available technology-based audit techniques 
to perform their assigned work.  However, not all 
Internal Auditors are expected to have the 
expertise of an Internal Auditor whose primary 
responsibility is information technology auditing.

P Where appropriate, 
temporary technical support 
is obtained from recruitment 
agencies. Also the ARAFM 
runs periodic technical 
meetings, as part of the on-
going development and 
quality improvements 
programme for auditors.

1210.C1
The Chief Audit Executive must decline the 
consulting engagement or obtain competent 
advice and assistance if the Internal Auditors lack 
the knowledge, skills, or other competencies 
needed to perform all or part of the engagement.

Consulting engagements 
are not currently part of 
DBC audit protocols.  



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 13 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

1220 Due Professional Care

Internal Auditors must apply the care and skill 
expected of a reasonably prudent and competent 
Internal Auditor.  Due professional care does not 
imply infallibility.

P Due professional care and 
skill is subject to individual 
auditor capability. As 
already cited above, there is 
room for improvement. 

1220.A1
Internal Auditors must exercise due professional 
care by considering the:
 Extent of work needed to achieve the 

engagement’s objectives;
 Relative complexity, materiality or significance 

of matters to which assurance procedures are 
applied;

 Adequacy and effectiveness of governance, 
risk management and control processes;

 Probability of significant errors, fraud, or non-
compliance; and

 Cost of assurance in relation to potential 
benefits.

P This is an area for further 
development, as cited 
above

1220.A2
In exercising due professional care Internal 
Auditors must consider the use of technology-
based audit and other data analysis techniques.

P Use is made of existing 
technology and techniques. 
Additionally we have now 
obtained Teammate and 
are in the process of 
developing functionality and 
migration. Internal Audit are 
also looking to activate the 
use of 
IDEA to facilitate more 
effective interrogation and 
analysis, both of which will 
contribute towards more 
efficiency and improve 
quality of the audit product.

1220.A3
Internal Auditors must be alert to the significant 
risks that might affect objectives, operations or 
resources.  However, assurance procedures 
alone, even when performed with due professional 
care, do not guarantee that all significant risks will 

Y The audit process makes 
provision for this, but again 
is limited by individual 
auditor capabilities. 
Relevant training has been 
identified for individual 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 14 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

be identified. auditors.

1220.C1
Internal Auditors must exercise due professional 
care during a consulting engagement by 
considering the:
 Needs and expectations of clients, including 

the nature, timing and communication of 
engagement results;

 Relative complexity and extent of work needed 
to achieve the engagement’s objectives; and

 Cost of the consulting engagement in relation 
to potential benefits.

Consulting engagements 
are not currently part of 
DBC audit protocols

1230 Continuing Professional Development

Internal Auditors must enhance their knowledge, 
skills and other competencies through continuing 
professional development.

Y Auditors attend the Kent 
Audit Group (KAG) 
conference which covers 
current key audit issues, 
and also relevant training is 
identified during appraisal 
and a training and 
development plan agreed 
with staff.

1300 Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme

The Chief Audit Executive must develop and 
maintain a quality assurance and improvement 
programme that covers all aspects of the Internal 
Audit activity.

Y There is an annual internal 
quality review process and 
a recent external review 
was undertaken. Relevant 
action plans have 
substantially been 
delivered. There is also a 
process in place for 
continuing improvements.

 

Interpretation:
A quality assurance and improvement programme 
is designed to enable an evaluation of the Internal 
Audit activity’s conformance with the Definition of 

This is set out in the Internal 
Audit Charter. 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 15 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

Internal Auditing and the Standards and an 
evaluation of whether Internal Auditors apply the 
Code of Ethics.  The programme also assesses 
the efficiency and effectiveness of the Internal 
Audit activity and identifies opportunities for 
improvement.

1310 Requirements of the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme

The quality assurance and improvement 
programme must include both internal and 
external assessments.

Y The agreed action plan 
includes both IQA and EQA 
outcomes.

1311 Internal Assessments

Internal assessments must include:
 On-going monitoring of the performance of the 

Internal Audit activity; and
 Periodic self-assessments or assessments by 

other persons within the organisation with 
sufficient knowledge of Internal Audit practices.

Y The self-assessment 
process is detailed and 
comprehensive. The results 
are considered by suitably 
qualified and experienced 
senior management

Interpretation:
On-going monitoring is an integral part of the day-
to-day supervision, review and measurement of 
the Internal Audit activity.  On-going monitoring is 
incorporated into the routine policies and practices 
used to manage the Internal Audit activity and 
uses processes, tools and information considered 
necessary to evaluate conformance with the 
Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics 
and the Standards.

Periodic assessments are conducted to evaluate 
conformance with the Definition of Internal 
Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards.

Sufficient knowledge of Internal Audit practices 
requires at least an understanding of all elements 
of the International Professional Practices 
Framework.

1312 External Assessments



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 16 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

External assessments must be conducted at least 
once every five years by a qualified, independent 
assessor or assessment team from outside the 
organisation.  The Chief Audit Executive must 
discuss with the Board:
 The form of external assessments;
 The qualifications and independence of the 

external assessor or assessment team, 
including any potential conflict of interest; and

 The need for more frequent external 
assessments.

Y EQA was recently 
completed by a qualified 
and experienced assessor 
(PWC). Relevant proposals 
and action plan have been 
agreed by senior 
management, with 
satisfactory progress being 
made 

Interpretation:
External assessments can be in the form of a full 
external assessment, or a self-assessment with 
independent validation.
A qualified assessor or assessment team 
demonstrates competence in two areas: the 
professional practice of Internal Auditing and the 
external assessment process.  Competence can 
be demonstrated through a mixture of experience 
and theoretical learning.  Experience gained in 
organisations of similar size, complexity, sector or 
industry and technical issues is more valuable 
than less relevant experience.  In the case of an 
assessment team, not all members of the team 
need to have all the competencies; it is the team 
as a whole that is qualified.  The Chief Audit 
Executive uses professional judgment when 
assessing whether an assessor or assessment 
team demonstrates sufficient competence to be 
qualified.

An independent assessor or assessment team 
means not having either a real or an apparent 
conflict of interest and not being a part of, or under 
the control of, the organisation to which the 
Internal Audit activity belongs.

Public sector requirement:
The Chief Audit Executive must agree the 
scope of external assessments with an 
appropriate sponsor (e.g. the 
Accounting/Accountable Officer or chair of the 
audit committee) as well as with the external 

Y Process was carried out by 
an independent assessor.



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 17 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

assessor or assessment team.

1320 Reporting on the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme

The Chief Audit Executive must communicate the 
results of the quality assurance and improvement 
programme to senior management and the Board.

Y

Interpretation:
The form, content and frequency of 
communicating the results of the quality assurance 
and improvement programme is established 
through discussions with senior management and 
the Board and considers the responsibilities of the 
Internal Audit activity and Chief Audit Executive as 
contained in the Internal Audit Charter.  To 
demonstrate conformance with the Definition of 
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the 
Standards, the results of external and periodic 
internal assessments are communicated upon 
completion of such assessments and the results of 
on-going monitoring are communicated at least 
annually.  The results include the assessor’s or 
assessment team’s evaluation with respect to the 
degree of conformance.

Public sector requirement:
Progress against any improvement plans, 
agreed following external assessment, must be 
reported in the annual report.

This will form part of the 
standard reporting process.

1321 Conforms with the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing

The Chief Audit Executive may state that the 
Internal Audit activity conforms with the 
International Standards for the Professional 
Practice of Internal Auditing only if the results of 
the quality assurance and improvement 
programme support this statement.

P The review highlighted that 
the CAE issue needed to be 
resolved. The other results 
of the assessment indicate 
that the service is 
substantially compliant. 
Areas for further 
improvements were 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 18 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

identified and an action plan 
agreed with senior 
management.

Interpretation:
The Internal Audit activity conforms with the 
International Standards when it achieves the 
outcomes described in the Definition of Internal 
Auditing, Code of Ethics and International 
Standards.

The results of the quality assurance and 
improvement programme include the results of 
both internal and external assessments.  All 
Internal Audit activities will have the results of 
internal assessments.  Internal Audit activities in 
existence for at least five years will also have the 
results of external assessments.

Y

1322 Disclosure of Non-Conformance

When non-conformance with the Definition of 
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics or the 
Standards impacts the overall scope or operation 
of the Internal Audit activity, the Chief Audit 
Executive must disclose the non-conformance and 
the impact to senior management and the Board.

Y The designated CAE will be 
advised by the ARAFM  of 
the issues which are 
required to be raised with 
the Board, both separately 
and as part of the AGS 
process.

Public sector requirement:
Instances of non-conformance must be 
reported to the Board.  More significant 
deviations must be considered for inclusion in 
the governance statement.

See above.



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 19 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

Performance Standards

2000 Managing the Internal Audit Activity

The Chief Audit Executive must effectively 
manage the Internal Audit activity to ensure it adds 
value to the organisation.

P The current CAE 
arrangement poses 
potential conflicts of interest 
which may impact on the 
effectiveness with which the 
service could be managed. 
Appropriate steps have 
been taken during the year 
to mitigate this. A meeting 
has been arranged to 
transfer the CAE role to the 
ARAFM. 

Interpretation:
The Internal Audit activity is effectively managed 
when:
 The results of the Internal Audit activity’s work 

achieve the purpose and responsibility included 
in the Internal Audit Charter;

 The Internal Audit activity conforms with the 
Definition of Internal Auditing and the 
Standards; and

 The individuals who are part of the Internal 
Audit activity demonstrate conformance with 
the Code of Ethics and the Standards.

The Internal Audit activity adds value to the 
organisation (and its stakeholders) when it 
provides objective and relevant assurance, and 
contributes to the effectiveness and efficiency of 
governance, risk management and control 
processes.

See above

2010 Planning

The Chief Audit Executive must establish risk-
based plans to determine the priorities of the 
Internal Audit activity, consistent with the 
organisation’s goals.

P The planning process for 
2016/17 used existing 
information to adopt a risk 
based approach. However, 
not all relevant information 
was readily available to 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 20 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

support the process. Hence 
available information was 
used to best effect, giving 
regard to relevant guidance 
and appropriate 
professional standards, as 
necessary. To this effect, an 
annual plan was prepared, 
pending a detailed internal 
audit review into the Audit 
Universe, which will inform 
more comprehensive, 
strategic, tactical and   
operational planning, in time 
for the next planning phase 
in 2017.

Interpretation:
The Chief Audit Executive is responsible for 
developing a risk-based plan.  The Chief Audit 
Executive takes into account the organisation’s 
risk management framework, including using risk 
appetite levels set by management for the different 
activities or parts of the organisation.  If a 
framework does not exist, the Chief Audit 
Executive uses his/her own judgment of risks after 
consideration of input from senior management 
and the Board.  The Chief Audit Executive must 
review and adjust the plan, as necessary, in 
response to changes in the organisation’s 
business, risks, operations, programs, systems, 
and controls.

Public sector requirement:
The risk-based plan must take into account the 
requirement to produce an annual Internal 
Audit opinion and the assurance framework.  It 
must incorporate or be linked to a strategic or 
high-level statement of how the Internal Audit 
service will be delivered and developed in 
accordance with the Internal Audit Charter and 
how it links to the organisational objectives 
and priorities.

See above. 

The draft internal audit 
strategy has not yet been 
approved. But the Annual 
Audit Plan sets out how 
internal audit activities will 
be delivered.



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 21 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

2010.A1
The Internal Audit activity’s plan of engagements 
must be based on a documented risk assessment, 
undertaken at least annually.  The input of senior 
management and the Board must be considered in 
this process.

The Audit Plan gives 
consideration to the 
Council’s strategic risk 
assessment process. 
However, also see 2010 
above.

2010.A2
The Chief Audit Executive must identify and 
consider the expectations of senior management, 
the Board and other stakeholders for Internal Audit 
opinions and other conclusions.

This process is facilitated by  
engagement  with senior 
management. 

2010.C1
The Chief Audit Executive should consider 
accepting proposed consulting engagements 
based on the engagement’s potential to improve 
management of risks, add value and improve the 
organisation’s operations.  Accepted engagements 
must be included in the plan.

Formal consultancy 
engagements are not part 
of the DBC protocol. 
However, there are 
arrangements in place to 
support the management of 
business risks and the risk 
management framework. 

2020 Communication and Approval

The Chief Audit Executive must communicate the 
Internal Audit activity’s plans and resource 
requirements, including significant interim 
changes, to senior management and the Board for 
review and approval.  The Chief Audit Executive 
must also communicate the impact of resource 
limitations.

Y This is part of the standard 
process. Where 
appropriate, additional 
resources have been 
obtained through 
commissioning of agency 
staff

2030 Resource Management

The Chief Audit Executive must ensure that 
Internal Audit resources are appropriate, sufficient 
and effectively deployed to achieve the approved 
plan.

Y The team is now at full 
establishment. However, 
two new staff are not from a 
local authority background 
and one is new to internal 
audit; and also going 
through qualification 
training. Hence training and 
development is necessary 
to bring both staff up to the 
required standard to make 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 22 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

them fully effective in their 
roles. Appropriate training 
has also been identified to 
improve the effectiveness of 
the rest of the team

Interpretation:
Appropriate refers to the mix of knowledge, skills 
and other competencies needed to perform the 
plan.  Sufficient refers to the quantity of resources 
needed to accomplish the plan.  Resources are 
effectively deployed when they are used in a way 
that optimises the achievement of the approved 
plan.

Public sector requirement:
The risk-based plan must explain how Internal 
Audit’s resource requirements have been 
assessed.

Where the Chief Audit Executive believes that 
the level of agreed resources will impact 
adversely on the provision of the annual 
Internal Audit opinion, the consequences must 
be brought to the attention of the Board.

Y The team is now at full 
establishment. Regarding 
qualifications, the ratio is 
50% relevant qualifications, 
with an additional member 
of staff actively pursuing 
qualification training.  
Opportunities for non-
qualified staff to obtain 
qualification are available 
and staff are actively 
encouraged to pursue 
professional qualifications 

2040 Policies and Procedures

The CAE must establish policies and procedures 
to guide the Internal Audit activity.

Y The Audit, Risk and Anti-
Fraud Manager has 
established policies and 
procedures to guide and 
facilitate the Internal Audit 
Activity. These are under 
review to facilitate service 
improvements and reflect 
stake holder requirements 
and expectations, as well as 
developments in 
professional guidance.

Interpretation:
The form and content of policies and procedures 
are dependent upon the size and structure of the 
Internal Audit activity and the complexity of its 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 23 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

work.

2050 Coordination

The CAE should share information and coordinate 
activities with other internal and external providers 
of assurance and consulting services to ensure 
proper coverage and minimise duplication of 
efforts.

Y The ARAFM meets and 
liaises regularly with the 
External Auditors. (section 
11.5 Audit Charter)

Public sector requirement:
The Chief Audit Executive must include in the 
risk-based plan the approach to using other 
sources of assurance and any work required to 
place reliance upon those other sources.

Part of standard assurance 
process

2060 Reporting to Senior Management and the Board

The CAE must report periodically to senior 
management and the Board on the Internal Audit 
activity’s purpose, authority, responsibility and 
performance relative to its plan.  Reporting must 
also include significant risk exposures and control 
issues, including fraud risks, governance issues 
and other matters needed or requested by senior 
management and the Board.

Y Part of standard audit 
process (See Audit Charter 
para 9 and Quality manual 
(Para 10.3 to 10.5).

Interpretation:
The frequency and content of reporting are 
determined in discussion with senior management 
and the Board and depend on the importance of 
the information to be communicated and the 
urgency of the related actions to be taken by 
senior management or the Board.

2070 External Service Provider and Organisational 
Responsibility for Internal Audit

When an external service provider serves as the 
Internal Audit activity, the provider must make the 
organisation aware that the organisation has the 
responsibility for maintaining an effective Internal 
Audit activity.

Interpretation:



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 24 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

This responsibility is demonstrated through the 
quality assurance and improvement programme 
which assesses conformance with the Definition of 
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the 
International Standards.

2100 Nature of Work

The Internal Audit activity must evaluate and 
contribute to the improvement of governance, risk 
management and control processes using a 
systematic and disciplined approach.

Y Part of standard audit 
process.

2110 Governance

The Internal Audit activity must assess and make 
appropriate recommendations for improving the 
governance process in its accomplishment of the 
following objectives:
 Promoting appropriate ethics and values within 

the organisation;
 Ensuring effective organisational performance 

management and accountability;
 Communicating risk and control information to 

appropriate areas of the organisation; and
 Coordinating the activities of and 

communicating information among the Board, 
external and Internal Auditors and 
management.

Y Part of Audit process as set 
out in the Audit Charter and 
the Quality Manual. 

2110.A1
The Internal Audit activity must evaluate the 
design, implementation and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s ethics-related objectives, 
programmes and activities.

2110.A2
The Internal Audit activity must assess whether 
the information technology governance of the 
organisation supports the organisation’s strategies 
and objectives.

2120 Risk Management

The Internal Audit activity must evaluate the Y See above.



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 25 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

effectiveness and contribute to the improvement of 
risk management processes.

Interpretation:
Determining whether risk management processes 
are effective is a judgment resulting from the 
Internal Auditor’s assessment that:
 Organisational objectives support and align 

with the organisation’s mission;
 Significant risks are identified and assessed;
 Appropriate risk responses are selected that 

align risks with the organisation’s risk appetite; 
and

 Relevant risk information is captured and 
communicated in a timely manner across the 
organisation, enabling staff, management and 
the Board to carry out their responsibilities.

The Internal Audit activity may gather the 
information to support this assessment during 
multiple engagements.  The results of these 
engagements, when viewed together, provide an 
understanding of the organisation’s risk 
management processes and their effectiveness.

Risk management processes are monitored 
through on-going management activities, separate 
evaluations, or both.

All Internal Audit briefs have 
risk management control as 
a standard control object

The risk management 
process is reviewed 
regularly

Internal Audit co-ordinates 
risk assessments and risk 
actions and reports to the 
Audit Board on progress of 
risk management. 

Internal Audit is careful not 
to become too close to 
ownership of operational 
risk areas, as this is a 
management function.

Internal Audit can offer 
advice and guidance on 
control and control 
requirements.

2120.A1
The Internal Audit activity must evaluate risk 
exposures relating to the organisation’s 
governance, operations and information systems 
regarding the:
 Achievement of the organisation’s strategic 

objectives;
 Reliability and integrity of financial and 

operational information;
 Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and 

programmes;
 Safeguarding of assets; and
 Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, 

procedures and contracts.

See above.

2120.A2 Part of standard audit 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 26 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

The Internal Audit activity must evaluate the 
potential for the occurrence of fraud and how the 
organisation manages fraud risk.

process.

2120.C1
During consulting engagements, Internal Auditors 
must address risk consistent with the 
engagement’s objectives and be alert to the 
existence of other significant risks.

Part of standard audit 
process

2120.C2
Internal Auditors must incorporate knowledge of 
risks gained from consulting engagements into 
their evaluation of the organisation’s risk 
management processes.

Part of standard audit 
process

2120.C3
When assisting management in establishing or 
improving risk management processes, Internal 
Auditors must refrain from assuming any 
management responsibility by actually managing 
risks.

Part of standard audit 
process

2130 Control

The Internal Audit activity must assist the 
organisation in maintaining effective controls by 
evaluating their effectiveness and efficiency and 
by promoting continuous improvement.

Y This is part of the audit 
process and included in the 
scope of audit briefs.

2130.A1
The Internal Audit activity must evaluate the 
adequacy and effectiveness of controls in 
responding to risks within the organisation’s 
governance, operations and information systems 
regarding the:
 Achievement of the organisation’s strategic 

objectives;
 Reliability and integrity of financial and 

operational information;
 Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and 

programmes;
 Safeguarding of assets; and
 Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, 

procedures and contracts.

See above and Internal 
Audit files.



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 27 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

2130.C1
Internal Auditors must incorporate knowledge of 
controls gained from consulting engagements into 
the evaluation of the organisation’s control 
processes.

Joined up approach is 
evidenced through technical 
and quality meetings.

2200 Engagement Planning

Internal Auditors must develop and document a 
plan for each engagement, including the 
engagement’s objectives, scope, timing and 
resource allocations.

Y Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files.

2201 Planning Considerations

In planning the engagement, Internal Auditors 
must consider:
 The objectives of the activity being reviewed 

and the means by which the activity controls its 
performance;

 The significant risks to the activity, its 
objectives, resources and operations and the 
means by which the potential impact of risk is 
kept to an acceptable level;

 The adequacy and effectiveness of the 
activity’s governance, risk management and 
control processes compared to a relevant 
framework or model; and

 The opportunities for making significant 
improvements to the activity’s governance, risk 
management and control processes.

Y See above.

2201.A1
When planning an engagement for parties outside 
the organisation, Internal Auditors must establish a 
written understanding with them about objectives, 
scope, respective responsibilities and other 
expectations, including restrictions on distribution 
of the results of the engagement and access to 
engagement records.

2201.C1
Internal Auditors must establish an understanding 
with consulting engagement clients about 
objectives, scope, respective responsibilities and 

All standard Internal Audit 
engagements follow this 
standard. It is not currently 
intended for Internal 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 28 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

other client expectations.  For significant 
engagements, this understanding must be 
documented.

Auditors to carry out 
reviews outside the shared 
services partnership or 
consultancy; this would only 
be at ARAFM level.

2210 Engagement Objectives

Objectives must be established for each 
engagement.

Y See above.

2210.A1
Internal Auditors must conduct a preliminary 
assessment of the risks relevant to the activity 
under review.  Engagement objectives must reflect 
the results of this assessment.

Y Internal Audit Planning and 
Audit Brief

2210.A2
Internal Auditors must consider the probability of 
significant errors, fraud, non-compliance and other 
exposures when developing the engagement 
objectives.

Internal Audit Brief and 
engagement planning 
meetings.

2210.A3
Adequate criteria are needed to evaluate 
governance, risk management and controls.  
Internal Auditors must ascertain the extent to 
which management and/or the Board has 
established adequate criteria to determine whether 
objectives and goals have been accomplished.  If 
adequate, Internal Auditors must use such criteria 
in their evaluation.  If inadequate, Internal Auditors 
must work with management and/or the Board to 
develop appropriate evaluation criteria.

Public sector interpretation:
In the public sector, criteria are likely to include 
value for money.

Internal Audit Brief and 
engagement planning 
meetings

2210.C1
Consulting engagement objectives must address 
governance, risk management and control 
processes to the extent agreed upon with the 
client.

All standard Internal Audit 
engagements follow this 
standard. It is not currently 
intended for Internal 
Auditors to carry out 
consultancy.  



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 29 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

2210.C2
Consulting engagement objectives must be 
consistent with the organisation’s values, 
strategies and objectives.

See above

2220 Engagement Scope

The established scope must be sufficient to satisfy 
the objectives of the engagement.

Y Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files.

2220.A1
The scope of the engagement must include 
consideration of relevant systems, records, 
personnel and physical properties, including those 
under the control of third parties.

Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files

2220.A2
If significant consulting opportunities arise during 
an assurance engagement, a specific written 
understanding as to the objectives, scope, 
respective responsibilities and other expectations 
should be reached and the results of the 
consulting engagement communicated in 
accordance with consulting standards.

Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files

2220.C1
In performing consulting engagements, Internal 
Auditors must ensure that the scope of the 
engagement is sufficient to address the agreed-
upon objectives.  If Internal Auditors develop 
reservations about the scope during the 
engagement, these reservations must be 
discussed with the client to determine whether to 
continue with the engagement.

It is not currently intended 
for Internal Auditors to carry 
out consultancy.

2220.C2
During consulting engagements, Internal Auditors 
must address controls consistent with the 
engagement’s objectives and be alert to significant 
control issues.

Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files

2230 Engagement Resource Allocation



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 30 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

Internal Auditors must determine appropriate and 
sufficient resources to achieve engagement 
objectives based on an evaluation of the nature 
and complexity of each engagement, time 
constraints and available resources.

Y Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files.

2240 Engagement Work Programme

Internal Auditors must develop and document work 
programmes that achieve the engagement 
objectives.

Y Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files

2240.A1
Work programmes must include the procedures for 
identifying, analysing, evaluating and documenting 
information during the engagement.  The work 
programme must be approved prior to its 
implementation and any adjustments approved 
promptly.

Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files

2240.C1
Work programmes for consulting engagements 
may vary in form and content depending upon the 
nature of the engagement.

Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files

2300 Performing the Engagement

Internal Auditors must identify, analyse, evaluate 
and document sufficient information to achieve the 
engagement’s objectives.

Y Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files

2310 Identifying Information

Internal Auditors must identify sufficient, reliable, 
relevant and useful information to achieve the 
engagement’s objectives.

Y Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files.

Interpretation:
Sufficient information is factual, adequate and 
convincing so that a prudent, informed person 
would reach the same conclusions as the auditor.  



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 31 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

Reliable information is the best attainable 
information through the use of appropriate 
engagement techniques.  Relevant information 
supports engagement observations and 
recommendations and is consistent with the 
objectives for the engagement.  Useful information 
helps the organisation meet its goals.

2320 Analysis and Evaluation

Internal Auditors must base conclusions and 
engagement results on appropriate analyses and 
evaluations.

Y Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files

2330 Documenting Information

Internal Auditors must document relevant 
information to support the conclusions and 
engagement results.

Y Part of standard audit 
process. See section 9 
Quality Manual. Also 
evidenced within audit files

2330.A1
The Chief Audit Executive must control access to 
engagement records.  The Chief Audit Executive 
must obtain the approval of senior management 
and/or legal counsel prior to releasing such 
records to external parties, as appropriate.

 These records are not 
released without authority 
except to the External 
Auditors

2330.A2
The Chief Audit Executive must develop retention 
requirements for engagement records, regardless 
of the medium in which each record is stored.  
These retention requirements must be consistent 
with the organisation’s guidelines and any 
pertinent regulatory or other requirements.

Retention of engagement 
records is consistent with 
Council policy

2330.C1
The Chief Audit Executive must develop policies 
governing the custody and retention of consulting 
engagement records, as well as their release to 
internal and external parties.  These policies must 
be consistent with the organisation’s guidelines 
and any pertinent regulatory or other 
requirements.

Will be fully achieved in the 
revised Quality Manual.



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 32 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

2340 Engagement Supervision

Engagements must be properly supervised to 
ensure objectives are achieved, quality is assured 
and staff are developed.

Y With the Principal Auditor 
now in place, there is 
capacity to facilitate proper 
supervision.

Interpretation:
The extent of supervision required will depend on 
the proficiency and experience of Internal Auditors 
and the complexity of the engagement.  The Chief 
Audit Executive has overall responsibility for 
supervising the engagement, whether performed 
by or for the Internal Audit activity, but may 
designate appropriately experienced members of 
the Internal Audit activity to perform the review.  
Appropriate evidence of supervision is 
documented and retained.

2400 Communicating Results

Internal Auditors must communicate the results of 
engagements.

Y Part of standard audit 
process see section 10 
Quality Manual.

2410 Criteria for Communicating

Communications must include the engagement’s 
objectives and scope as well as applicable 
conclusions, recommendations and action plans.

Y Part of standard audit 
process (see Quality 
Manual).

2410.A1
Final communication of engagement results must, 
where appropriate, contain Internal Auditors’ 
opinion and/or conclusions.  When issued, an 
opinion or conclusion must take account of the 
expectations of senior management, the Board 
and other stakeholders and must be supported by 
sufficient, reliable, relevant and useful information.

Interpretation:
Opinions at the engagement level may be ratings, 
conclusions or other descriptions of the results.  
Such an engagement may be in relation to 
controls around a specific process, risk or 

See above



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 33 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

business unit.  The formulation of such opinions 
requires consideration of the engagement results 
and their significance.

2410.A2
Internal Auditors are encouraged to acknowledge 
satisfactory performance in engagement 
communications.

This is part of the process

2410.A3
When releasing engagement results to parties 
outside the organisation, the communication must 
include limitations on distribution and use of the 
results.

Results are not 
communicated to outside 
organisations, except the 
External Auditors

2410.C1
Communication of the progress and results of 
consulting engagements will vary in form and 
content depending upon the nature of the 
engagement and the needs of the client.

2420 Quality of Communications

Communications must be accurate, objective, 
clear, concise, constructive, complete and timely.

Y Part of standard audit 
process and quality review 
system.

Interpretation:
Accurate communications are free from errors and 
distortions and are faithful to the underlying facts.  
Objective communications are fair, impartial and 
unbiased and are the result of a fair-minded and 
balanced assessment of all relevant facts and 
circumstances.  Clear communications are easily 
understood and logical, avoiding unnecessary 
technical language and providing all significant 
and relevant information.  Concise 
communications are to the point and avoid 
unnecessary elaboration, superfluous detail, 
redundancy and wordiness.  Constructive 
communications are helpful to the engagement 
client and the organisation and lead to 
improvements where needed.  Complete 
communications lack nothing that is essential to 
the target audience and include all significant and 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 34 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

relevant information and observations to support 
recommendations and conclusions.  Timely 
communications are opportune and expedient, 
depending on the significance of the issue, 
allowing management to take appropriate 
corrective action.

2421 Errors and Omissions

If a final communication contains a significant error 
or omission, the Chief Audit Executive must 
communicate corrected information to all parties 
who received the original communication.

Y See above.

2430 Use of Conducted in Conformance with the 
International Standards for the Professional 
Practice of Internal Auditing

Internal Auditors may report that their 
engagements are conducted in conformance with 
the International Standards for the Professional 
Practice of Internal Auditing, only if the results of 
the quality assurance and improvement 
programme support the statement.

Y Part of standard quality 
process.  Although we have 
cancelled the BSi 
Membership, we still 
maintain the quality 
standards

2431 Engagement Disclosure of Non-conformance

When non-conformance with the Definition of 
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics or the 
Standards impacts a specific engagement, 
communication of the engagement results must 
disclose the:
 Principle or rule of conduct of the Code of 

Ethics or Standard(s) with which full 
conformance was not achieved;

 Reason(s) for non-conformance; and
 Impact of non-conformance on the 

engagement and the communicated 
engagement results.

Y On the assumption that 
there is no evidence to the 
contrary.

2440 Disseminating Results

The Chief Audit Executive must communicate 
results to the appropriate parties.

Y Standard audit process.



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 35 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

Interpretation:
The Chief Audit Executive is responsible for 
reviewing and approving the final engagement 
communication before issuance and deciding to 
whom and how it will be disseminated.

Part of standard audit 
process.

2440.A1
The Chief Audit Executive is responsible for 
communicating the final results to parties who can 
ensure that the results are given due 
consideration.

See above.

2440.A2
If not otherwise mandated by legal, statutory, or 
regulatory requirements, prior to releasing results 
to parties outside the organisation the Chief Audit 
Executive must:
 Assess the potential risk to the organisation;
 Consult with senior management and/ or legal 

counsel as appropriate; and
 Control dissemination by restricting the use of 

the results.

2440.C1
The Chief Audit Executive is responsible for 
communicating the final results of consulting 
engagements to clients.

2440.C2
During consulting engagements, governance, risk 
management and control issues may be identified.  
Whenever these issues are significant to the 
organisation, they must be communicated to 
senior management and the Board.

2450 Overall Opinions

When an overall opinion is issued, it must take into 
account the expectations of senior management, 
the Board and other stakeholders and must be 
supported by sufficient, reliable, relevant and 
useful information.

Y Part of standard audit 
process.

Interpretation:
The communication will identify:

Annual Audit Report 
produced by the ARAFM



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 36 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

 The scope including the time period to which 
the opinion pertains.

 Scope limitations.
 Consideration of all related projects including 

the reliance on other assurance providers.
 The risk or control framework or other criteria 

used as a basis for the overall opinion.
 The overall opinion, judgment or conclusion 

reached.

The reasons for an unfavourable overall opinion 
must be stated.

Public sector requirement:
The Chief Audit Executive must deliver an 
annual Internal Audit opinion and report that 
can be used by the organisation to inform its 
governance statement.

The annual Internal Audit opinion must 
conclude on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework 
of governance, risk management and control.

The annual report must incorporate:
 The opinion;
 A summary of the work that supports the 

opinion; and
 A statement on conformance with the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and 
the results of the quality assurance and 
improvement programme.

2500 Monitoring Progress

The Chief Audit Executive must establish and 
maintain a system to monitor the disposition of 
results communicated to management.

Y Part of standard audit 
process.

2500.A1
The Chief Audit Executive must establish a follow-
up process to monitor and ensure that 
management actions have been effectively 
implemented or that senior management has 
accepted the risk of not taking action.

See above 



May 2016 Appendix A
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS: Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector

Page 37 of 37

Sectn.
/Std.

Adherence to the Standard Y P N Evidence

2500.C1
The Internal Audit activity must monitor the 
disposition of results of consulting engagements to 
the extent agreed upon with the client.

See above

2600 Communicating the Acceptance of Risks

When the Chief Audit Executive concludes that 
management has accepted a level of risk that may 
be unacceptable to the organisation, the Chief 
Audit Executive must discuss the matter with 
senior management.  If the Chief Audit Executive 
determines that the matter has not been resolved, 
the Chief Audit Executive must communicate the 
matter to the Board.

Y Standard audit practice 

Interpretation:
The identification of risk accepted by management 
may be observed through an assurance or 
consulting engagement, monitoring progress on 
actions taken by management as a result of prior 
engagements, or other means. It is not the 
responsibility of the Chief Audit Executive to 
resolve the risk.





AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 
PROGRESS REPORT 

1. Summary

1.1 This report is to update Members on progress of the implementation of 
recommendations agreed with Management during this year, and to report on 
outstanding recommendations due for implementation by 30 April 2016.

1.2 The process enables Members to review implementation of Internal Audit 
recommendations.  When recommendations have not been implemented, it 
enables Members to seek explanations or agree revised dates.  If Management 
propose not to action recommendations and accept the risk, Members can 
review this decision to determine if it meets the objectives of the Board and 
whether it represents an acceptable level of risk for the Council.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Members review the information in Appendix A to the report and request 
further information or explanation as appropriate.

2.2 That Members note the reasons for delayed implementation of the actions 
and endorse the revised dates for implementation provided by Management, 
as noted in Appendix B.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. The Audit Recommendation Progress report is presented to each 
meeting of the Board to inform Members of the progress made by 
Management to implement the recommendations agreed with Internal 
Audit.  The report also informs the Board where implementation dates 
have been revised, or where agreed recommendations have not been 
implemented.                           

3.2. Appendix A provides a summary of the reports for which Management 
had agreed recommendation implementation dates for the period to 30 
April 2016. Internal Audit has obtained the current status from the 
responsible managers, but it should be noted that where 
implementation has been confirmed, Internal Audit has not yet 
undertaken any additional testing to verify this.  Implementation checks 
will be carried out in due course, usually between 3 to 6 months of the 
agreed implementation date.

3.3. Appendix B provides details of agreed recommendations where 
Management have advised Internal Audit that implementation of  
agreed actions has initially been delayed from the originally planned 
date (for ease of reference, the numbering under the recommendation 
column, refers to the numbers on the original audit report). Enquiries 
with Management indicates that satisfactory progress is being made, or 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

proposed, to implement the agreed recommendations. Management 
also advised that there are no material impacts to the Council, as a 
result of the change in implementation date. However, Internal Audit 
will continue to monitor progress where appropriate and report back to 
the Board as necessary.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

4.1 Not applicable.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None

Staffing Implications Implications may arise from implementation of 
some audit recommendations, but only in 
agreement with Management responsible for the 
areas audited.

Administrative Implications None

Risk Assessment The purpose of audit recommendations is to 
address and manage identified risks. 
Consequently risk profiles may increase in areas 
where the implementation of recommendations is 
delayed, if there are no compensating mitigating 
controls in place.

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix A - Summary of recommendations followed-up.
Appendix B - ‘Overdue’ recommendations where implementation 

delayed.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

None N/A Bami Cole
01322 343023

Internal 
Audit/ 
Strategic 
(Internal 
Services)

None



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOWED UP          APPENDIX A

Audit 

(Number of Recommendations 
originally accepted)

Date final 
report 
issued

Number of 
recommendations 

where 
implementation 

now confirmed by 
management

Number of 
recommendations 

where management 
advise that 

implementation 
delayed 

(Appendix B)

Number of 
recommendations 

where management 
advise that 

implementation is 
no longer intended 

(Appendix C)

Number of 
recommendations 

where 
implementation not 

confirmed or 
alternative date not 

provided
Museum 2013/14 (7) 9/12/13 6 1 0 0

IT Security 2013/14 (5) 22/7/14 3 2 0 0

Agency Staff Contracting & 
Consulting 2014/15 (7)

9/1/15 3 4 0 0

Banking Contract 2014/15 (1) 5/6/15 0 1 0 0

HR Contracting Including Payroll 
2014/15 (4)

29/6/15 3 1 0 0

Valuation & Property Services 
2015/16 (2)

16/9/15 1 1 0 0

Data Protection & Freedom of 
Information 2015/16 (4)

1/10/15 2 2 0 0

Natural Theatre & Hesketh Park 
Cricket Pavilion 2015/16 (3)

20/11/15 3 0 0 0

Waste & Recycling Contract 
2015/16 (3)

22/12/15 3 0 0 0

Performance Management 
Framework 2015/16 (3)

13/1/16 3 0 0 0

Key Financial Systems 2015/16 (2) 22/1/16 2 0 0 0

New Banking Contract 2015/16 (1) 6/5/16 1 0 0 0
 



APPENDIX B

‘OVERDUE’ RECOMMENDATIONS WHERE IMPLEMENTATION HAS BEEN DELAYED

Audit: Museum 2013/14
Recommendation Priority/ 

ranking
Original response Latest Position Revised Implementation Date

1. Appropriate steps should 
urgently be taken by 
management to ensure 
the compilation of a 
complete list of artefacts 
and assets held in the 
Museum and its stores in 
accordance with 
Financial Regulations. 
This should be electronic 
making the retrieving of 
information quicker and 
would be easier to 
update. This system 
would also need to be 
supported by a routine 
process in order to 
ensure that all items 
acquired and disposed of 
by the Museum are 
recorded promptly on the 
system.

High Agreed Action: 
Originally agreed on 8th 
September 2013

The HEPM will make 
enquiries regarding 
funding support from the 
Heritage Lottery Fund 
for preparing an 
inventory.

Responsible Officer:  
HEPM/Museum Officer

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 
September 2013

Latest report from the Heritage 
Manager advised that 
reasonable progress is being 
made, under the circumstances, 
towards completion of the 
cataloguing project. As reported 
to the Board in January, it is a 
lengthy process and the speed 
of progress is not entirely 
dependent on officers of the 
Council. Also there are other 
key priorities for which limited 
available resources have to be 
allocated, for example, the 
preparation for the imminent 
museum alterations. Once this 
is under way, management will 
be in a better position to 
reallocate more resources to 
cataloguing.  

Heritage and Project Manager – 
26/5/16

Audit Manager Comment:
In view of the latest comment 
from management, Internal 
Audit is of the view that 
everything possible is being 
done at present to take the 
cataloguing project forward, 
subject to avoidable constraints. 
Hence Internal Audit will 
continue to liaise with the 
Heritage and Project Manager 
regarding progress of this matter 
and will advise the Audit Board 
further, at the January 2017 
meeting of the Board in order to 
allow sufficient time for progress 
to be made.



APPENDIX B

Audit: IT Security 2013/14

Recommendation Priority/ 
ranking

Original response Latest Position

1. The ICT Manager reviews 
the ICT Security policy to 
ensure that it is:-

 Up to date
 Conforms to industry 

standards
 Consistent and free 

from ambiguity
 Reviewed on a regular 

basis
 Underpinned by 

effective procedures
 Monitored for 

compliance

High Agreed Action:  The 
next review of the 
Information Security 
Policy will take into 
account the points made 
in this recommendation.  
As part of that process, 
the value and 
practicality of 
developing the various 
procedures and 
processes discussed in 
the course of the audit 
will be considered and if 
judged worthwhile 
progressed further. 

Responsible Officer:  
ICT Manager

Recommendation 
Implementation Date:  
December 2014

The ICT manager advised that most underlying and supporting 
policies have been reviewed and work to pull them together is 
continuing but delayed, now expected to be complete in Summer 
2016.  

ICT Manager – 27/4/16

Audit Manager Comment: 
In view of the latest update from management, Internal Audit will 
continue to liaise with management and advise the Board further at 
the next meeting in September 2016.



APPENDIX B

3. The ICT Manager 
prepares a documented 
Disaster Recovery plan and 
ensure that this is 
communicated to relevant 
staff, regularly tested and 
reviewed to ensure that it is 
effective.

High Agreed Action:  
a) The matter is 

intrinsically linked 
with the wider 
business continuity 
plans of the                               
Council and the 
Managing Director 
and Building Control 
Manager in his 
Emergency Planning/ 
Business Continuity 
role and ICT 
Manager are 
involved in the 
discussions. 

 

Responsible Officer:  
ICT manager 

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 
On going

The ICT manager advised that the works have been completed 
and the ICT disaster recovery base equipment has been delivered, 
but awaiting BT Open Reach to install data connection (ordered 
July 2015). Once connected, full implementation can happen.

Revised implementation date: Summer 2016.

Audit Manager Comment: 
In view of management latest update, Internal Audit will continue to 
liaise with management and advise the Board further at the next 
meeting in September 2016

Audit: Agency Staff Contracting & Consulting 2014/15

Recommendation Priority/ 
ranking

Original response Latest position + (source) Revised Implementation Date

1a. The Dartford Council’s 
HR policies & 
procedures should 

Medium Agreed Action:  
Agreed.

1a. Continuing issues regarding 
the BT contract have delayed 
implementation of this 

The HR Business Advisor informed 
Internal Audit that the 
implementation on both 



APPENDIX B

include formal guidance 
on the appointment of 
agency and consultancy 
staff. This will 
encourage greater 
consistency in the 
process followed for 
appointing agency staff. 
The policy should as a 
minimum include;

 The documentation to 
be completed for each 
appointment 

 The justification for why 
an agency staff  is 
required 

 The authorisation 
protocol to be followed.

1b. Monitoring should be in 
place to ensure that the 
correct form for each 
agency appointment 
has been completed as 
per procedures.

Responsible Officer:  
a) HR Business Advisor

b) Principal Finance & 
Procurement Officer

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 
31st March 2015

recommendation.  The new 
implementation date is now 
planned for March 2016.

HR Business Advisor – 8/12/15

1b. Dependant on progress of 
1a above.

recommendations have continued 
to be delayed due to additional BT 
work.  New date set for 
implementation is now 30 June 
2016.

HR Business Advisor – 26/5/16

Audit Manager Comment:
The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud 
Manager will continue to liaise 
with the HR Business Advisor 
regarding progress of this 
matter. The Audit Board will be 
kept informed of developments 
regarding this recommendation 
at the meeting in September 
2016.

3. The Council HR policies 
and procedures should 
include guidance to 
service managers that 
agency expenditure 
should only be coded to 
expenditure code 0170.

Medium Agreed Action:  Agreed 

Responsible Officer:   
HR Business Advisor 

Recommendation 
Implementation Date:  
31st March 2015

As above. As above.



APPENDIX B

4. The protocol for using 
agency staff from the 
Connect2Staff Agency 
should be formally 
documented and 
incorporated into the 
Council’s HR Policies & 
Procedures. Monitoring 
arrangements should be 
in place to ensure the 
protocol is being 
followed. This could be 
achieved by reporting 
expenditure activity for 
this particular supplier on 
a monthly basis.

The protocol should also 
be made available on the 
Council’s intranet in order 
to facilitate easy access 
by management and 
increase awareness of 
the protocol. 

Medium Agreed Action:  
Agreed  

Responsible Officer: 
HR Business Advisor   

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 
31st March 2015

As above. As above.

5. A request to fill form 
should be completed for 
each agency 
appointment in 
accordance with agreed 
protocols. This protocol 
should be formally 
documented and 

High Agreed Action:  
Agreed  

Responsible Officer: 
HR Business Advisor   

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 

As above. As above.



APPENDIX B

incorporated into the 
Council’s HR Policies & 
Procedures. The 
compliance with the 
protocol should be 
monitored 

The protocol should also 
be made available on the 
Council’s intranet in order 
to facilitate easy access 
by management and 
increase awareness of 
the protocol.

31st March 2015

Audit: Banking Contract 2013/14

Recommendation Priority/ 
ranking

Original response Latest position + (source) Revised Implementation Date

1. Action should be taken to 
ensure that the contract with 
Lloyds Bank is formerly 
agreed and   signed before 
the end of May 2015.

Medium Agreed Action:   
Agreed

Responsible Officer:  
Solicitor

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 
31st May 2015

The Council’s Solicitor is 
continuing to progress this with 
Lloyds and is currently still 
awaiting a reply from them. 

Audit Manager Comment:
Senior Management is aware of 
developments and monitoring 
the situation. Internal Audit will 
continue to liaise with the 
Council’s Solicitor regarding 
progress of this matter and will 
advise the Audit Board at the 
meeting in September 2016.



APPENDIX B

Audit: HR Contract Including Payroll 2014/15

Recommendation Priority/ 
ranking

Original response Latest position + (source)

4. Service management 
should review the need for a 
call out payments and 
establish what further action 
is required. 

The Managing Director has 
added that any change to 
call out payments can only 
be at a reduced cost 
compared to the previous 
arrangements.

Medium Agreed Action: 
Agreed. A review is 
currently underway to 
address this matter and 
implement revised 
procedures. 

Responsible Officer:  
Community Safety 
Manager

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 
October 2015

The Community Safety Manager advised that the service is 
currently being reviewed and it is highly likely that there will be 
some significant changes to the way the service is operated. These 
changes will come into effect around October time and will remove 
the need to have out of hours cover entirely. 

Community Safety Manager – 29/4/16

Audit Manager Comment:
The Community Safety Manager left the Council on 6th May 2016 
and the Council has recruited a new officer in place. Internal Audit 
will liaise with the new manager to progress this recommendation; 
and will advise the Audit Board accordingly, at the meeting in 
January 2017.



APPENDIX B

Audit: Valuation & Property Services 2015/16

Recommendation Priority/ 
ranking

Original response Latest position + (source) Revised Implementation Date

1. Management should 
investigate why the 
valuation section of the 
Estates module of Uniform 
has not been appropriately 
updated and rectify the 
situation. This needs to be 
done to provide a full and up 
to date record of property 
valuation for management 
and financial reasons.  

Medium Agreed Action:  The 
Property Information 
Manager will liaise with 
Financial Services to 
obtain a copy of their 
property valuation 
records, which they hold 
for accounting 
purposes, to enable the 
valuation section of the 
Estates module in 
Uniform to be updated.

Responsible Officer:  
Property Information 
Manager

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 
31/12/15

Although some progress has 
been made with this 
recommendation, current 
changes to Land Charges and 
VAT have meant that it is unlikely 
to be fully implemented until after 
the end of July 2016.

Property Information Manager – 
3/6/16

Audit Manager Comment:
In view of the latest comment 
from management, Internal Audit 
will continue to liaise with the 
Property Information Manager 
regarding progress of this matter 
and will advise the Audit Board 
further, at the September meeting 
of the Board.



APPENDIX B

Audit: Data Protection & Freedom of Information 2015/16

Recommendation Priority/ 
ranking

Original response Latest position + (source) Revised Implementation Date

1. Every 6 months a report 
should be issued to Service 
Directors and/or Heads of 
Service which shows which 
officers have completed the 
training module for DPA and 
FOI awareness.

The report will allow 
management to identify 
DBC employees who have 
not yet completed the on 
line training. Measures can 
then be taken to ensure 
employees comply with the 
Council’s mandatory training 
requirements.

Medium Agreed Action:  
Agreed

Responsible 
Officer:  HR 
Business Advisor. 
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)

Recommendation 
Implementation 
Date: December 
2015

The HR Business Advisor advised that the 
current contract with Lexus Learning 
(Ivysoft) is due for renewal in October 
2016 and therefore she is currently 
sourcing alternative providers to see 
whether there is any benefit in changing.
 
HR Business Advisor – 26/5/16

The HR Business Advisor 
informed Internal Audit that she 
will not be in a position to give a 
further update until October 2016, 
as both recommendations will be 
dependent on the outcome of 
market testing the benefits of 
sourcing alternative providers.   

HR Business Advisor – 26/5/16

Audit Manager Comment:
In view of the latest comment 
from management, Internal Audit 
will continue to liaise with the HR 
Business Advisor regarding 
progress of this matter and will 
advise the Audit Board further, at 
the January 2017 meeting of the 
Board.



APPENDIX B

3. The current on line 
training modules for DPA 
and FOI need to be 
reviewed to see if they are 
still fit for purpose and meet 
the Council’s needs.

Medium Agreed Action 
Agreed 

Responsible 
Officer:  ICT 
Manager. HR 
Business Advisor 
.Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)

Recommendation 
Implementation 
Date: December 
2015

As above. As above.





AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED SINCE LAST MEETING OF THE 
BOARD

1. Summary

1.1 This report is to inform Audit Board Members of the outcomes of the audits 
completed since the previous report to the Board on 23 March 2016 and to 
provide Members with the opportunity to request clarification or further 
information, if considered necessary.  

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That Members review the summary details of audits completed.

2.2 That Members consider whether they require clarification or further information 
at the next meeting of the Board.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. In addition to the approval of the Annual Internal Audit Plan and 
consideration of progress of the Audit Plan, the terms of reference of 
the Audit Board also requires the Board to consider the outcome of 
Internal Audit Report findings.

3.2. To this effect, the Board receives reports on the outcomes of 
completed  audit reviews at each meeting and is able to seek further 
details and/or explanations from managers, where required.

3.3. Appendix A of this report sets out details of four reports finalised since 
the last meeting of the Board. Members can be provided with copies of 
full final audit reports on request.

The Opinion breakdown of the reports are as follows:

 Framework - Good - 4. 
 Compliance – Good 3; Satisfactory - 1

In addition to the above, ten recommendations were agreed with management 
regarding the four reports, of which six were medium risks and four low risk.

3.4. The standard definition of opinions used by the Internal Audit Section is 
provided at Appendix B for information. The process involves two 
opinions, Framework and Compliance. Framework refers to the 
framework of controls in place to manage the risks of non-delivery of 
objectives, whilst Compliance refers to the degree of compliance with 
established controls.



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan
4.1 Not applicable.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None

Staffing Implications None

Administrative Implications None

Risk Assessment The Board is required to receive and consider 
reports from the Audit Manager on progress of 
the Internal Audit Plan. This report addresses the 
risk of non-compliance with the Board’s terms of 
reference; and demonstrates that the Council’s 
Internal Audit Function is fulfilling its role as a 
provider of independent assurance to the Board 
and the Council, regarding the Council’s 
arrangements to manage identifiable risks in 
delivering Council objectives.

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix A - Final audit reports issued since the last meeting of the       
Board

 DBC1-15/16 Car Parking 2015/16
 DBC7-15/16 New Banking Contract 2015/16
 DBC19-15/16 Safeguarding 2015-16
 DBC18-15/16 Procurement (Contract Waivers) 2015/16         

Appendix B & C - Definition of Audit Opinions

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Internal Audit Plan 2015/16 March 
2015

Bami Cole 
(01322) 343023

Internal 
Audit/ 
Strategic 
(Internal 
Services)

N/A



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016





APPENDIX A

FINAL AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED SINCE THE LAST MEETING OF THE BOARD

Recommendation Risks

Audit title Final 
Report 
Issued

Opinion
Framework/Compliance

Comments Where Opinion is 
Below Satisfactory

High Medium Low

Framework: Good1 DBC1-15/16 Car 
Parking Services 
2015/16

27.4.16

Compliance: Satisfactory
None 0 1 3

Framework: Good2 DBC7-15/16 New 
Banking Contract 
2015/16

6.5.16
Compliance: Good

None 0 1 0

Framework: Good3 DBC19-15/16 
Safeguarding 
2015/16

13.5.16
Compliance: Good

None 0 2 0

Framework: Good4
DBC18-15/16 
Procurement 
(Contract Waivers) 
2015/16

25.5.16

Compliance: Good

None 0 2 1





APPENDIX B

AUDIT OPINIONS

 

Framework – the systems in place and controls within it.  

The first opinion refers to the framework of controls in place to manage the risks. 
This refers to the controls in place established by management to manage the risks 
which could prevent the achievement of service objectives.  The review of the 
framework is designed to identify areas where there are control gaps, or a need to 
enhance existing controls. It will then make recommendations for additional or 
improved controls.

Effectiveness – the effectiveness of the controls in place.

This opinion refers to the effectiveness of existing controls.  This refers to the 
degree of compliance with established controls. Compliance with established 
controls is what makes a system effective, assuming that the controls are strong 
enough to facilitate the effective management of identifiable risks and the delivery 
of objectives. Substantive testing is undertaken to assess the degree of 
compliance. The higher the degree of compliance, the more effective the system 
would be in delivering objectives. Testing will identify where controls are not 
achieving the required outcomes, or where they are not being followed.  
Recommendations will then be made to either strengthen or enforce compliance 
with existing controls.

No compliance testing will be undertaken where no framework exists.  However, 
weakness or threat testing may be undertaken, in order to establish the extent of 
the risk, or the potential loss to the Council.

Additionally, to support this new approach, the opinions have been redefined and 
the revised definitions are below.



APPENDIX C

DEFINITION OF AUDIT OPINIONS

Opinion Framework  Compliance (Effectiveness)

Excellent … innovative frameworks 
are in place, which 
demonstrate efficiencies 
and excellent value for 
money, whilst ensuring the 
achievement of service 
objectives, good corporate 
governance and high level 
of protection for the 
council against 
foreseeable risks.

… there is full compliance with the 
framework of controls and the risk 
management process is considered to 
be fully effective. There is evidence of 
notable practice and no areas of 
concern were identified.

Minimum 
requirement

All controls are in place All controls are fully implemented

Good … a high level of control 
framework is in place to 
ensure the achievement of 
service objectives, good 
corporate governance and 
to protect the Council 
against foreseeable risks.  

… the framework of controls is 
substantially being complied with and 
risk management process is considered 
to be good. Only minor errors or 
omissions identified

Minimum 
requirement

All controls are in place 51% or above of risks examined are low 
and the remainder are medium. Limited 
room for further development

Satisfactory … controls exist to enable 
the achievement of 
service objectives, obtain 
good corporate 
governance and mitigate 
against significant 
foreseeable risks.  

… occasional instances of failure to 
comply with the control process were 
identified and opportunities still exist to 
mitigate further against potential risks.

Minimum 
requirement

Control requirements are 
substantially met

Up to 50% of risks examined are 
medium or low. Opportunities for further 
developments exists requiring 
constructive proposals for management 
consideration

Un- 
satisfactory

… limited controls are in 
place but there are gaps in 
the process, which leave 
the service exposed to 
foreseeable risks. Hence 
further development in 
framework is needed to 

... there is an urgent need to introduce 
additional controls and improve 
compliance with existing controls, to 
reduce the risk exposure to the Council.



APPENDIX C

make the system effective.

Minimum 
requirement

Control requirements are 
patchy  and unreliable

Testing results identified one or more 
high risk

Un- 
acceptable

… controls are considered 
to be inadequate or non-
existent with the absence 
of at least one critical 
control mechanism.   An 
urgent need exists to 
introduce appropriate level 
of controls without delay.

… failure to urgently improve controls 
leaves the Council exposed to significant 
risk, which could lead to major financial 
loss, embarrassment, or failure to 
achieve key service objectives.
Note: compliance testing in this 
circumstance may not add value. 
However, there would be some value in 
conducting weakness testing in some 
circumstances to determine the level of 
“threat” or “loss” to the Council. Hence 
an opinion for compliance may not be 
given where the framework is 
“unacceptable”

Minimum 
requirement

No evidence of controls 
exist

Testing results identified one or more 
very high risk





AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS

1. Summary

1.1 During the January 2016 meeting of the Board, Members selected five 
creditor payments for checking. This report summarises the findings of this 
exercise and provides the opportunity for Members to select further payments 
for audit checking. The results were originally to be reported at the March 
meeting of the Board, but due to capacity issues the report was deferred to 
this meeting (June 2016) 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That Members note the content of this report and request any further 
explanations required.

2.2 That Members select further payments for checking by Internal Audit, under 
the confidential section of the agenda.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. It is a regular feature of the Audit Board’s work for Members to select a 
sample of payments made by the Council for review by Internal Audit, 
and to receive a report on the findings of these checks at the next 
meeting of the Board.  This is intended to provide Members with 
reasonable assurance that goods and services commissioned or 
procured, for which payments have been made, are in compliance with 
Council procedures. In particular, that they have been properly 
authorised, requisitioned, ordered and received, prior to making the 
appropriate payments.

3.2. During the meeting of the Board on 13 January, Members selected the 
following five payments for checking:

 Earth Anchors Ltd £828.00 (Gross)
 Edwardes Brothers Ltd £97.50 (Gross)
 Express Lifts Alliance Group (ELA) £2654.40 (Gross)
 Environment Media Group Ltd £204.00 (Gross)
 Everything Everywhere (EE) £1685.74 (Gross)

4. Summary of Findings

4.1 The results of the Internal Audit review, confirmed that all the spend 
decisions made were appropriate and in compliance with Council 
procedures. Detailed summaries of the outcome of each payment are 
set out below.



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

5. Detailed Findings

5.1 Earth Anchors Ltd (£828.00) – This payment was for the supply of 
Wheelistats to Darenth Country Park in September 2015. Wheelistats 
are secure stations which hold two wheelie bins. A purchase order 
(P016508) was raised through e-procurement, on 18/9/15 for 10 
Wheelistats, following a quotation, from Earth Anchors, on 17/9/15, in 
accordance with financial procedures. An invoice was received on 
25/9/15 and payment was promptly made on 8/10/15. The Internal 
Audit review confirmed that the purchase was justified and in 
compliance with Council procedures. 

5.2 Edwardes Brothers Ltd (£97.50) - This payment was for the provision 
of fluorescent lamps and light bulbs for various offices throughout the 
Civic Centre.  A purchase order via e-financials was not required in this 
instance as the job was raised through the Academy system instead, 
by the Corporate Maintenance Department.  To achieve the best value 
for money, it is sometime necessary to order in complete pack sizes, 
which means that although they are common items it can lead to a 
residue stock. To prevent over-ordering and achieve best value for 
money Internal Audit have recommended that appropriate records are 
kept of this residue stock. The invoice was paid promptly and the 
Internal Audit review confirmed that the payment was justified and in 
compliance with Council procedures.

5.3 Express Lifts Alliance Group (ELA) (£2654.40) – This payment was for 
remedial works to the lifts at the Civic Centre in October 2015.  The 
required work was identified during the monthly inspection visit and a 
quotation was provided in accordance with financial procedures. The 
invoice was received on 14/12/15 and paid promptly on 22/12/15.  The 
Internal Audit review confirmed that the purchase was justified and in 
compliance with Council procedures. 

5.4 Environment Media Group Ltd (£204.00) – This payment was for the 
Recycling Advisor to attend the Annual forum for Waste and Recycling 
Officers, in Nottingham on 14 and 15 October 2015. A purchase order 
was raised through e-procurement on 1/10/15 in accordance with 
financial procedures. The invoice was received on 2/10/15 and 
payment was made promptly on 12/10/15. The Internal Audit review 
confirmed that the purchase was justified and in compliance with 
Council procedures. 

5.5 Everything Everywhere (EE) (£1685.74) – This payment was the 
monthly payment for the corporate mobile phones usage throughout 
the Council. A detailed report is provided to the Council showing 
usage, listed by phone number. The relevant costs are then journaled 
to each business unit. A contract was entered into in 2011 and is due 
to be re-let this year.  The tendering process using the Crown 
Commercial Services Framework is hoped to commence in June 2016. 
A purchase order was not necessary in this instance, in accordance 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

with the Purchase Orders Exemption List. The invoice was paid 
promptly and in compliance with Council procedures.

6. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

Not applicable

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None

Staffing Implications None

Administrative Implications None

Risk Assessment Obtaining goods and services on behalf of the 
Council carries potential inherent risks of fraud, 
or misappropriation. The Selective Invoice 
Checks process is one of many steps employed 
by the Council to manage fraud risks and to 
ensure value for money.

8. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

9. Appendices

None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

N/A Bami Cole 
01322 343023

Internal 
Audit / 
Strategic 
(Internal 
Services)

N/A





 
AUDIT BOARD

29 JUNE 2016

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2015-16

1. Summary

Dartford Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public 
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. In discharging this 
overall responsibility, the Council has to ensure that it has good governance 
arrangements and that it operates a sound system of internal control and 
that it reviews them annually. This report considers the governance 
arrangements and the system of internal control which operated during 
2015-16 and the review that has taken place. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1That the review of the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements be 
noted.

2.2That the Annual Governance Statement at Appendix A to the report be 
approved for inclusion in the Annual Statement of Accounts. 

2.3 That the 2016-17 Corporate Governance Action Plan at Appendix D to the 
report be approved.

3. Background and Discussion  

3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the Council 
prepares an annual governance statement;

3.2 The Council is also obliged to conduct a review at least once in a year, of 
the effectiveness of its system of internal control and to include a 
statement in the annual accounts. When preparing the annual statement of 
accounts, the Council has to follow the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting. 

3.3 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 place a duty on the Council to 
ensure that the findings of the review are considered by Members who 
must approve the annual governance that has been prepared in 
accordance with proper practices.

3.4 Senior Officers (the Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer, Head of Legal 
Services and the Financial Services Manager) have reviewed the Council’s 
arrangements against the CIPFA Code. Management Team have also 
approved the review and the draft Annual Governance Statement and have 
agreed that the Statement should be referred to the Board for approval. 



 
AUDIT BOARD

29 JUNE 2016

The Annual Governance Statement for the year ended 31 March 2016 is 
attached at Appendix A. 

3.5 Appendix B, details the review process. The first page of the Appendix lists 
the 8 objectives and key areas to be considered during the review.  The 
remainder of this Appendix details the elements of good governance, gives 
examples of the principal sources of assurance, notes the current 
arrangements that the Council has in place and finally, identifies gaps and 
areas for development. 

3.6 Appendix C gives an update on the 2015/16 Action Plan. Appendix D is the 
recommended Action Plan for 2016/17. It is in two parts. The first parts, 
actions 1 to 3, are the actions required to improve the principles of the 
Council’s governance arrangements as noted in the final section of the 
Annual Governance Statement. The second part, actions A to H, are 
process improvements that will improve the arrangements and are 
generally matters that the Council is actioning already but which require a 
review or update. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

The production of the Annual Governance Statement is a statutory requirement 
and supports the Council’s Performing Strongly theme.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None
Legal Implications See paragraphs 3.1 to 3.3
Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment If the Council does not approve an 

Annual Governance Statement, for 
inclusion in the annual Statement of 
Accounts, the external auditor will give a 
qualified opinion on the accounts. If the 
Statement does not accord with “proper 
practice” the auditor may make 
comment on it in his report to the 
Council on the audit of the accounts. 

Appendices

Appendix A - Annual Governance Statement – 2015/16
Appendix B - Review of the Council’s Governance Arrangements – 2015/16
Appendix C – 2015/16 Governance Action Plan – Progress Review
Appendix D – 2016/17 Governance Action Plan



 
AUDIT BOARD

29 JUNE 2016

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

June 
2016  

Tim Sams
343148

Financial 
Services/ 
Internal 
Services

N/A





APPENDIX A

Page 1 of 12

 
Annual Governance Statement – 2015/16



APPENDIX A

Page 2 of 12

FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016

1.1 SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

1.1.1 Dartford Borough Council (the Council) is responsible for ensuring that its 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and 
that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. The Council 
also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 (as amended) to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

1.1.2 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for 
implementing proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, the 
stewardship of the resources at its disposal and facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of 
risk.

1.1.3 The Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate 
Governance (the Local Code), which is consistent with the principles and 
reflects the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government.  The Local Code is published on the 
Council’s website at www.dartford.gov.uk. 

1.1.4 This statement explains how the Council has complied with the Local Code 
and with meeting the requirements of regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 to review and report on the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control. 

1.1.5 The Council has in place appropriate management and reporting 
arrangements to enable it to satisfy that its approach to corporate governance 
is adequate and effective in practice.  

1.1.6 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for 
ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the 
effective exercise of the Council's functions, and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk.

1.2 THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

1.2.1 The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture 
and values by which the Council is directed and controlled, and by which it, 
through its activities, can account to, engage with and lead the community.  
The governance framework enables the Council to monitor the achievement 
of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to 
the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 

http://www.dartford.gov.uk/


APPENDIX A

Page 3 of 12

1.2.2 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is 
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of 
internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and 
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the 
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively 
and economically. 

1.2.3 This Annual Governance Statement is produced for the year 1 April 2015 to 
31 March 2016 and includes the period up to the date of approval of the 
statement of accounts. 

1.3 THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

1.3.1 The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council’s 
governance arrangements are summarised below:

Identifying and communicating our vision and outcomes for citizens and 
service users 

The Corporate Plan 2014-2017 has been approved by the General Assembly 
of the Council [22 January 2015 Min 104]. The Corporate Plan is published 
on the Council’s website.  

Reviewing our vision and its implications for our governance arrangements 

Progress towards the achievement of the objectives is monitored through the 
Performance Management Framework, with performance reports to 
Management Team, Cabinet and Policy Overview Committee, and through 
other internal review mechanisms.

                        Measuring the quality of services for users, to ensure that they are delivered 
in accordance with the Council’s objectives and for ensuring that they 
represent the best use of resources

                        The Council measures the quality of service to users through a number of 
mechanisms including:

                        
                        Customer surveys
                        Comments, compliments and complaints
                        Monitoring against targets and indicators
                        Reviews by the Scrutiny Committee and the Policy Overview Committee
                        Comparison with similar authorities



APPENDIX A

Page 4 of 12

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of our 
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging 
open consultation

The Council has developed a Consultation and Engagement Strategy to 
meet its duty to inform, consult and involve people in the delivery of Council 
services. An Equalities Scheme has been developed to meet the Council’s 
obligations under the Equality Act 2010. The Statement of Community 
Involvement sets out how the community will be involved in decisions about 
the Council’s Local Plan.

Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, 
non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation 
arrangements and protocols for effective communication 

The Council has an adopted Constitution which details how the Council 
operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are to be 
followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to 
local people.  The Constitution defines the terms of reference for all Council 
committees. The Cabinet (exercising the executive functions of the Council) 
is responsible for most decisions.  The Cabinet is made up of the Leader and 
Six Councillors. The Council elects the Leader and the Leader appoints the 
Cabinet. Major decisions are published in advance, in the Regulation 9 
Notice, and will generally be discussed in a meeting open to the public.  All 
decisions must be in line with the Council's overall policies and budget.  Any 
decisions the Cabinet wishes to take outside the budget or policy framework 
must be referred to the General Assembly of the Council to decide.  There is 
a Scrutiny Committee that scrutinises the work of the Cabinet, presenting 
challenge and the opportunity for a decision to be reconsidered. Most 
scrutiny is undertaken post-decision but a "call-in" procedure allows Scrutiny 
Committee to also review Cabinet decisions before they are implemented.

                        The Policy Overview Committee reviews general policies and makes 
recommendations on future policy options to Cabinet. 

                        A Scheme of Delegation to Officers is approved by the General Assembly of 
the Council. This defines the framework and limits within which officers can 
take decisions.



APPENDIX A

Page 5 of 12

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the 
standards of behaviour for members and staff 

The standards of conduct and personal behaviour expected of Council 
Members and Officers, its partners and the community are defined and 
communicated through codes of conduct and protocols.  These include:

 Member Code of Conduct 
 Employee Code of Conduct
 Regular performance appraisals for staff linked to corporate and 

service objectives
 An Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy
 Member/Officer Protocol
 Whistleblowing Policy
 Annual Monitoring Officer report
 An Audit Board to oversee and monitor the Member Code of Conduct

                        

Whistleblowing and receiving and investigating complaints from the public

The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed each year and provides for 
confidential reporting on matters of concern. Informants are requested to be 
open in their disclosure, but it is recognised that on occasions, informants will 
wish to remain anonymous.

The Council has an effective Corporate Complaints Procedure. A report is 
submitted annually to the Audit Board on corporate complaints.  

Reviewing and updating standing orders, financial instructions, scheme of 
delegations and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define 
how decisions are taken and the processes and controls required to manage 
risks

Standing Orders, Contract Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and the 
Scheme of Delegations to Officers are regularly reviewed as are supporting 
procedures and manuals. 

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful 

The Council has a duty to ensure that it acts in accordance with the law and 
various regulations in the performance of its functions.  It has developed 
policies and procedures for its Officers and Members to ensure that, as far 
as possible, they understand their responsibilities both to the Council and to 
the public. Key documents and procedures include:

 Standing Orders
 Contract Standing Orders
 Procurement Guide



APPENDIX A

Page 6 of 12

 Finance Guidance Manual incorporating Financial Regulations
 Money Laundering procedures
 Committee reporting procedure including requirements for the 

monitoring of legal and financial implications
 Regular training on new legal requirements
 Regular updates from the Head of Legal Services for Members and 

Officers on key changes to the local authority legal framework
                     

Other key corporate policies on a range of topics such as Equalities, 
Customer Care, Data Protection, Freedom of Information and Fraud have 
been adopted.  All policies are subject to internal review, to ensure they are 
adequately maintained and fit for purpose. 

Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in 
accordance with our objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best 
use of resources

The Council, through its budgetary monitoring and control processes, 
ensures that financial resources are being used in accordance with the 
budget and corporate policy via regular management reporting to Directors, 
the Finance Portfolio Member and Cabinet.

Financial planning is underpinned by service planning and annual budget 
reviews to ensure that individual service plans and service improvements are 
in line with corporate objectives. 

Through performance reports, corporate and key service objectives are 
monitored to ensure that performance targets and indicators are being 
achieved. 

Economic, effective and efficient use of resources is subject to review 
through the work of the Scrutiny and Policy Overview Committees, Internal 
and External Audit and annual budget reviews.

Financial Management

Responsibility for ensuring that an effective system of internal financial control 
is maintained and operated rests with the Section 151 Officer.  The systems 
of internal financial control provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are authorised and properly 
recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or 
would be detected within a timely period.

                        The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer is reported to 
the General Assembly as part of the annual budget report. The Council meets 
all the governance requirements contained in the statement.

Internal financial control is based on a framework of management information, 
financial regulations and administrative procedures, which include the 
segregation of duties where practical, management supervision and a system 



APPENDIX A

Page 7 of 12

of delegation and accountability. 

In particular, the process in 2015/16 included: 
 The setting of a one year detailed budget and Medium Term Financial 

Plan;
 Monitoring of actual income and expenditure against the annual 

budget;
 A detailed budget review by officers and Members
 Setting of financial and performance targets;
 Regular reporting of the Council's financial position to Members;
 Clearly defined capital expenditure guidelines;
 Managing risk in key financial service areas.

Effectiveness of Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Team reports to the Managing Director and Management 
Team, operating under a Charter, which defines its relationship with Council 
Officers and the Audit Board.  The main responsibility of the Internal Audit 
Team is to provide assurance and advice on the internal control system of the 
Council to the Management Team and Members.  Internal Audit reviews, 
appraises the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of internal control within 
systems and recommends improvement.  It also supports management in 
developing systems, providing advice on risk and control.  The controls 
created by management are evaluated to ensure:

 Council objectives are being achieved;
 Economic and efficient use of resources;
 Compliance with policies, procedures, laws and regulations;
 The safeguarding of Council assets; and
 The integrity and reliability of information and data.

As part of the wider annual review of the governance arrangements and in 
particular, the system of internal control, the Council is required to undertake 
an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit.  This 
review is undertaken annually by the Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager and 
considered by the Managing Director. The review has highlighted an area 
where the Council has not fully complied with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS). The PSIAS require the Internal Audit activity to be 
independent and objective, however, during the year the Chief Audit 
Executive for the Council was the S151 Officer who was not entirely 
independent due to her operational responsibilities. 

This arrangement was of a temporary nature to allow the Audit, Risk and Anti-
Fraud Manager to concentrate on implementing the improvements identified 
within the External Review carried out by PWC in the previous year. 
Appropriate mitigating actions were put in place to ensure there was no threat 
to independence from this arrangement. These included ensuring that the 
Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager had access to both the Managing 



APPENDIX A

Page 8 of 12

Director and the Audit Chair and ensuring that all internal audit reviews 
carried out during the year were summarised for the Audit Board within the 
Internal Audit progress report. A number of audits were undertaken within the 
area of responsibility of the S151 Officer, however, she had no direct 
involvement in these audits other than reviewing the final reports. Moving 
forward, the Chief Audit Executive role will pass to the Audit, Risk and Anti-
Fraud Manager which will ensure the independence and objectivity of the 
role. Progress has been made against the PWC improvement plan, with a 
number of the actions now having been implemented. These improvements 
now need to be fully embedded within the organisation. A follow up review is 
planned during 2016/17. Full details of the external review and progress 
made has been reported to the Audit Board. Based on the internal and 
external reviews the Managing Director has assessed the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control as “satisfactory” – indicating that there are proper 
arrangements in place.  The full details of the  internal  review has been 
reported to the Audit Board, alongside this Annual Assurance Statement, as it 
is a key element of the review of the system of internal control and 
governance framework.

Undertaking the core functions of an Audit Board, as identified in CIPFA's 
Audit Boards – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities 

It is a responsibility of the Audit Board (as detailed in the Constitution) to 
monitor the work of Internal Audit and to ensure that any actions agreed are 
implemented. Its Terms of Reference are outlined in the Council's 
Constitution and are reviewed annually.

Performance and Risk Management

                       The following is the normal procedure for the review of risk:

 Reports on performance, which include performance indicators and 
monitoring of key objectives and targets, are regularly provided to 
management.

 The Council’s risk management processes are regularly reviewed and 
reported to the Audit Board and Cabinet, as appropriate. 

 Strategic risk is aligned to corporate priorities and reports are 
produced for Management Team and Members.

                       A revised risk management process was implemented in 2013/14 and it has 
been reviewed by senior managers in 2015/16.

The development needs of Members and senior officers in relation to their 
strategic roles, supported by appropriate training 

Members receive training during the year on key topics or where significant 
changes have occurred or new legislation introduced. Training for officers is 
considered at the annual appraisal meeting and also during the year, if 
required. 



APPENDIX A

Page 9 of 12

1.4 REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

1.4.1 Dartford Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, 
a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the 
system of internal control.  This review is informed by:
 The work of Internal Audit and the Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud 

Manager's Annual Report.

 The work of senior managers within the Council who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment.

 The work of the Senior Information Risk Owner

 The opinion of the external auditors as expressed in their annual 
report to the Audit Board.

 The detailed review which is undertaken on behalf of the Management 
Team.

 The overview provided by the Management Team.

 The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report to the Audit Board.

1.4.2 The following processes have been applied in maintaining and reviewing the 
effectiveness of the governance framework: 

Council

The Corporate Plan, Constitution, budget and other strategies and polices 
are approved and reviewed by the General Assembly of the Council.  

Cabinet 

The Cabinet receives reports on financial performance.

                        Scrutiny Committee and Policy Overview Committee 

These Committees have respectively a role in (a) reviewing/scrutinising 
action and decisions taken and (b) advising on policy.

Audit Board

The Audit Board receives quarterly updates on the assurance which can be 
placed on various systems and processes during the year, along with an 
annual assessment at the year end. 

The Audit Board reviews reports presented to it by the Audit, Risk and Anti-
Fraud Manager on the review of internal control.  The Board receives a 



APPENDIX A

Page 10 of 12

summary of all internal audit reports and keeps a check on those areas that 
were assessed as unsatisfactory.  Additionally, it reviews the effectiveness of 
the Council’s risk management arrangements.

The Audit Board receives an annual report from the Monitoring Officer on 
ethical governance arrangements and on the effectiveness of the Corporate 
Complaints Procedure. 

Ethics is a key element of governance and the purpose of the Monitoring 
Officer’s annual review of the Council’s ethical governance is to ensure that 
robust arrangements are in place and that the Council continues to develop 
and improve management and reporting arrangements so as to satisfy itself 
that its approach to ethical governance is both adequate and effective in 
practice.  

Senior Information Risk Officer

The ICT Manager has been designated as the Senior Information Risk 
Officer (SIRO), a role as recommended by LGA and Information 
Commissioner with responsibility for ensuring that information governance is 
embedded into the organisation. The SIRO should also ensure that 
management of personal data related risks are weighed alongside the 
management of other risks facing the Council, such as financial, legal and 
operational risk.

Internal Audit

Based on the work completed in 2015-16 and other sources of assurance 
available to the function, the Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager’s overall 
annual assurance opinion is that the Council’s arrangements for internal 
control, risk management, governance and anti-fraud during the period is 
“effective”.

                       

1.5 SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES  

1.5.1 As highlighted earlier within this report, the Chief Audit Executive role should 
be independent and objective, however, during 2015/16 this role has sat with 
the S151 Officer who is not independent due to her operational 
responsibilities. Appropriate steps have been taken to mitigate this potential 
threat to independence and, consequently, this has not prevented the 
Council’s corporate governance arrangements from operating effectively 
during the year. A review of this role has already been undertaken and 
moving forward the role will pass to the Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager 
to ensure the role is both fully independent and objective. On the basis of the 
detailed review undertaken and consideration of that review by the Managing 
Director, the Council is satisfied that there are no other significant governance 
matters that need to be brought to the immediate attention of Members and 
that the Council’s corporate governance arrangements are adequate and 
operating effectively.



APPENDIX A

Page 11 of 12

1.5.2 However, the following areas have been highlighted as requiring improvement 
and/or further development:

 Additional Review of Financial Regulations.
 Review of the Corporate Code of Governance to consider recently 

published CIPFA document - Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government.

 Workforce Strategy

An action plan has been developed to deliver these and other less significant 
improvements.

1.5.3 Over the ensuing year, the Council will take steps to address the above 
matters to further enhance its governance arrangements.  We are satisfied 
that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in 
our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and 
operation as part of our next annual review. 

Signatures: Date:
Leader of the Council

Date:
Managing Director



APPENDIX A

Page 12 of 12



APPENDIX B

Page 1 of 55

 Review of Annual Governance Statement and the Assurance Gathering Process – 2015/16

Establish principal statutory 
obligations and organisational 

objectives
Objective 1

Identify principal risks to achievement of objectives

Identify and evaluate key controls to manage principal risks

Obtain assurances on effectiveness of key controls

Evaluate assurances and identify gaps in control/assurances

Action plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system of Corporate Governance

Annual Governance Statement

Report to Cabinet/Executive Committee

Objective 2

Objective 3

Objective 4

Objective 5

Objective 6

Objective 7

Objective 8

Apply the Six CIPFA/SOLACE 
Core Principles



APPENDIX B

Page 2 of 55

OBJECTIVE 1: Establishing principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives

STEP 1: Mechanism established to identify principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives  

Possible sources of 
assurance:

Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. Responsibilities for 
statutory obligations are 
formally established

 Documents (e.g. 
constitution) recording 
individual officer and 
member responsibilities 

 Minutes of delegations to 
officers and committees

 Committee terms of 
reference

 Job descriptions of key 
officers 

 Structure charts
 Policies and procedures

Committee framework including the Policy 
Overview Committee and the Scrutiny Committee
Constitution (recording of responsibilities)
Financial Regulations
Gifts and Hospitality Registers (Members and 
Officers respectively)
Human Resources Policies and Procedures
Scheme of Delegations to Officers
Standing Orders 
Statutory Officers’ roles and responsibilities 
documented
Structure/Organisational Charts
Terms of Reference of Committees
Contracts Standing Orders
Procurement Guide
Committee reports and minutes
Monitoring Officer Annual report 
Legal implications in committee reports
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Policy - 
regular review 
Partnerships’ Code of Practice Review
Data Protection Policy
Guidance on how to deal with and avoid Data 
Security Breaches
Information Sharing Arrangements
Equalities Monitoring 
Treasury Management Panel 
Contract conditions 
Transparency agenda compliance

The review of HR 
policies including 
codes of conduct is 
continuing.

2. Record held of statutory 
obligations

 Accessible record of 
statutory obligations (e.g. 
central registry or legal 
library, intranet)

Law library
Intranet
Web based subscription services e.g. Westlaw,  
etc. 



APPENDIX B

Page 3 of 55

Possible sources of 
assurance:

Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

3. Effective procedures to 
identify, evaluate, 
communicate, implement, 
comply with and monitor 
legislative change exist 
and are used

 Review of established 
processes in place

 Appointment of suitably 
qualified and experienced 
employees, selected 
against accurate and 
specific job descriptions 
and person specifications

 Evidence of effective 
arrangements for internal 
and external 
communication (e.g. by 
review of communication 
of recent legislation to 
relevant officers and 
members)

 Appropriate induction 
training has been given to 
specific post holders

 Awareness training 
tailored to job profiles has 
been provided

 Inspection of reports to 
members on implications 
of new legislation

 Evidence that assurance 
has been given to Chief 
Executive (or equivalent) 

Internal Audit reports
External Audit reports
Monitoring Officer Annual Report
Corporate Complaints Officer Annual Report
Ombudsman Annual Letter
Appropriately qualified heads of 
departments/teams with relevant 
professional/educational qualifications and career 
history and appropriate experience
Job Profiles and Competencies
Continuing Professional Development support

Induction
Management Team Minutes
Member Information Bulletin
Minutes of Committees
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to the Audit 
Board
Publication of minutes on the Council’s website
Regular training on DPA and FOI/EIR
Regular review of procurement procedures etc.
Quarterly procurement debriefs
Reports to Council, committees etc. on 
implications of new legislation
Section 151 Officer Statement of Assurance 
Audit Board Statement of Assurance (ethical 
governance related matters) through Monitoring 
Officer’s Report

Induction procedures
Statutory Officer appointments

Reports to Council, committees etc. on 
implications of new legislation
Reports and minutes publicised on the Council’s 
website and the intranet

Induction process to 
be updated



APPENDIX B

Page 4 of 55

Possible sources of 
assurance:

Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

that all relevant legislative 
changes have been 
reported and addressed

Assurance Statement
Audit Board Statement of Assurance (ethical 
governance related matters) 
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to the Audit 
Board

4. Effective action is taken 
where areas of non-
compliance are found in 
either mechanism or 
legislation

 Review of evidence to 
demonstrate that action 
has been taken to 
overcome identified areas 
of non-compliance, for 
example:
o Internal /external audit 

reports to audit 
committee or 
equivalent;

o Monitoring reports on 
progress on delivering 
action plans in 
response to identified 
legal/statutory risks in 
risk register (e.g. on 
implementation of 
Freedom of 
Information Act 2000)

o Evidence of corrective 
action being taken in 
response to upheld 
complaints against 
the authority

Corporate Complaints Procedure
Covalent logging of complaints and responses 
and analysis of complaints and corrective action 
taken
Quarterly reports to Management Team and 
Policy Overview Committee on complaints
FOI procedures
Data Protection procedures
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
procedures
Internal Audit/External Auditor reports
Ombudsman decisions
Monitoring Officer Section 5 reports
Risk Management Procedures
Section 151 Officer reports
Capability Procedure
Disciplinary Policy and Procedure
Code of Conduct respectively for Members and 
Officers
Contract Standing Orders
HR policies

Voluntary reporting to the Information 
Commissioner of data security breaches  

The review of HR 
policies including 
codes of conduct is 
continuing.



APPENDIX B

Page 5 of 55

OBJECTIVE 1: Establishing principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives 

STEP 2: Mechanism in place to establish organisational objectives

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. Consultation with 
stakeholders on priorities and 
objectives

 Results from internal 
and/or external 
consultation exercises 
have been analysed 
and published

Consultation Strategy agreed 11 June 2015.
Annual Budget Consultation.

2. The authority’s priorities and 
organisational objectives have 
been agreed (taking into 
account feedback from 
consultation).

 Authority’s approved 
and published 
strategic plan takes 
account of all 
consultation and local 
and national priorities

 Priorities and 
objectives in strategic 
partnerships are 
aligned with corporate 
priorities and 
objectives  

Consultation responses on priorities are reported 
to Cabinet.

The Corporate Plan 2014-2017 was approved by 
Cabinet in January 2015.

3. Priorities and objectives are 
aligned to principal statutory 
obligations and relate to 
available funding

 Corporate priorities 
and objectives are 
clearly set out in the 
strategic plan

 Strategic plan takes 
account of annual 
budget and medium 
term financial plan

 Financial plans take 
account of strategic 
partnership 
contributions and 
income streams

Corporate Plan
Medium Term Financial Strategy
Annual budget review
Service Plans

These are linked to the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and the budget reflects the priorities as 
set out in the Plan.

The budget reflects partner contributions to 
projects and services

4. Objectives are reflected in 
departmental plans and are 

 Clear terms of 
reference are set for 

Service Plans flow from the Corporate Plan, with 
defined linkages.



APPENDIX B

Page 6 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

clearly matched with 
associated budgets

the preparation of 
departmental and/or 
service plans

 Departmental and/or 
service plans clearly 
reflect corporate 
objectives and match 
approved funding  

 Annual reports are 
produced on the 
outcome of 
departmental and/or 
service plans

Covalent reporting on status of PIs
Integrated service planning and budget process

The Council has Service Plans which
link to the Corporate Plan and individual 
performance assessments.
Service Plans are monitored through the 
Council’s performance management system - 
Directors, Management Team and Cabinet/Policy 
Overview reports 

5. The authority’s objectives are 
clearly communicated to staff 
and to all stakeholders, 
including partners.

 A communication 
strategy in respect of 
the corporate 
objectives has been 
developed, approved 
and implemented

 Documented meetings 
across departments to 
discuss key objectives 
in corporate and 
departmental and/or 
service plans 

 Corporate objectives 
and aims are set out in 
key documents on the 
authority’s website and 
intranet site

Consultation and Engagement Strategy 2015-
2018.

Corporate Plan 

MD briefings 
Service Plans
Senior Manager meetings
Staff Appraisals
Partnerships’ Code of Practice
Information Sharing arrangements
Data Handling Guidelines
MoU between Crime and Disorder (Overview and 
Scrutiny) Committee and Community Safety 
Partnership 

Community Right to Challenge procedures 
implemented and publicised on the Internet

OBJECTIVE 1: Establishing principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives



APPENDIX B

Page 7 of 55

STEP 3: Effective corporate governance arrangements are embedded within authority 

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. Code of corporate 
governance established

 A Code of Corporate 
Governance in line 
with the 
CIPFA/SOLACE 
guidance relevant to 
the type of authority 
has been adopted by 
the authority.

 A communication 
strategy in relation to 
the Code has been 
developed, approved 
and implemented 

Approved by Cabinet in May 2008

An Addendum to the framework was issued by 
CIPFA in 2012. It only contained minor 
amendments that have been adopted.

Code of Corporate 
Governance to be 
reviewed in line with new 
guidance published by 
CIPFA in April 2016. 

2. Review and monitoring 
arrangements in place

 The Code itself 
incorporates a review 
date and/or a system 
for continuous update 
in response to 
changed requirements

 There are clear 
arrangements for 
continuously 
monitoring compliance 
with the Code e.g. 
reports on compliance 
are regularly submitted 
to the committee 
charged with corporate 
governance 
responsibility

 An annual report on 
compliance with the 
Code of Corporate 

Ethical Governance framework Internal/External 
audit reports on adequacy of corporate 
governance arrangements
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to Audit Board
Annual Corporate Complaints Report to Audit 
Board
Annual Review of Whistleblowing Policy by Audit 
Board.
Scrutiny Committee draw downs
Audit Board functions on ethical governance 
framework
Partnerships’ Code of Practice

Annual review of governance arrangements 
reported to MT for approval before submitting to 
Audit Board

Corporate Governance Action Plan agreed by 
Audit Board



APPENDIX B

Page 8 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

Governance is 
prepared and 
submitted to members

 Internal/external audit 
reports on adequacy of 
corporate governance 
arrangements

 An action plan is 
prepared to address 
any significant 
identified weaknesses 
in complying with the 
Code and is 
continuously 
monitored by the 
authority or committee 
charged with corporate 
governance 
responsibility

As part of standard audit reviews

Submitted to Audit Board

3. Committee charged with 
governance responsibilities

 Responsibility for 
overseeing corporate 
governance has been 
formally delegated to 
an appropriate 
committee

 Committee terms of 
reference clearly 
demonstrating 
responsibility for 
corporate governance 
issues have been 
approved by the 
authority 

 Terms of reference are 
sufficiently 
comprehensive to 

Audit Board Terms of Reference incorporating 
corporate governance framework responsibilities 
approved at Annual Meeting.

Reports and Minutes



APPENDIX B

Page 9 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

ensure that all 
appropriate aspects of 
corporate governance 
are covered

 Agendas and minutes 
from the committee 
charged with corporate 
governance 
responsibility indicate 
that the responsibility 
is being discharged 
adequately in 
accordance with terms 
of reference

4. Governance training provided 
to key officers and all 
members

 Induction training for 
key new officers and 
all new members 
incorporate suitable 
coverage on corporate 
governance issues 
according to 
responsibilities

 Ongoing awareness 
training is provided as 
appropriate to key staff 
and all members to 
ensure that changes in 
the Code are made 
known within the 
authority

Governance training for new members

Update training on ethical governance

Agreed that key staff are: - Management Team, 
Statutory Officers, Financial Services Manager, 
Head of Legal Services and Policy and 
Corporate Support Manager. Not necessary for 
other senior managers to receive full training. 
Awareness provided as part of general MT 
debrief and Senior Managers’ MT meetings

5. Staff, public and other 
stakeholder awareness of 
corporate governance

 There is a general staff 
awareness training 
programme

 The Code has been 

Audit Board training on ethical governance 
framework
Scrutiny and Policy Overview Committees’ 
minutes published on the Council’s website.



APPENDIX B

Page 10 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

published and is 
accessible to all staff, 
the public and other 
stakeholders

Staff considered above

Key partners aware of Council’s governance 
arrangements and in the main have similar 
arrangements.



APPENDIX B

Page 11 of 55

OBJECTIVE 1: Establishing principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives

STEP 4: Performance management arrangements are in place 

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. Comprehensive and effective 
performance management 
systems operate routinely

 There is a clearly 
defined performance 
management 
framework that 
identifies:
o all sources of 

performance 
measures;

o who is responsible 
for achieving each 
performance 
measure;

o who is responsible 
for collating the 
data for each one;

o who determines 
and approves the 
performance 
measures;

o who receives 
reports on 
performance and 
how often;

o how data quality is 
assured;

o how performance 
data is captured 
and its integrity 
maintained;

o how poor 
performance is 
addressed;

o how performance 

Integrated Performance Management system, 
with Actions and Targets in Corporate Plan, 
flowing down to Service Plans with Actions, 
Risks and Targets
Relevant Actions flow through Staff Performance 
Appraisal process

Report made quarterly to Cabinet and Policy 
Overview

Information is held on Corporate Covalent IT 
Performance System, with nominated staff for 
data entry and data authorisation – data has to 
be added monthly and escalation triggers if not 
entered.
Covalent provides access to latest information 
for Managers at any time.
At least quarterly reports to Management Team
Data Quality Strategy, with supporting base 
data/ documentation held in note form on 
Covalent
Service targets agreed by Management Team to 
reflect aspirations and resource allocations

Benchmarking included in service reviews where 
appropriate.

Internal audit reviews include benchmarks 
where appropriate.



APPENDIX B

Page 12 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

is driven upwards 
over time

 Reports resulting from 
internal or external 
reviews of 
performance 
management 

 Year-on-year 
comparison of 
achievement against 
performance targets 
(e.g. in annual reports)

 Best value reviews, 
including 
benchmarking results

 Departmental and/or 
service benchmarking 
results

 Annual reports issued 
by, or in relation to, 
strategic partnerships

2. Key performance indicators 
are established and 
monitored

 Appropriate key 
performance indicators 
(KPIs) have been 
established and 
approved for each 
service element and 
are included in 
departmental and 
service 
business/annual plans

 KPIs have been 
developed and are 
monitored in respect of 
key partnerships

Targets in Corporate Plan, flowing down to 
Service Plans – local or Service targets included 
with Actions, Risks and Targets

Key performance indicators reported to Senior 
Management Team on a monthly basis.

Report made quarterly to Cabinet and Policy 
Overview

Covalent



APPENDIX B

Page 13 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 A robust monitoring 
system has been 
approved and 
implemented

 There are regular 
reports on progress on 
delivering approved 
KPIs

 There is an approved 
mechanism for 
reviewing the 
continuing suitability of 
KPIs and for securing 
continuous 
improvement  

Agreed actions from Service Plans geared to 
achieve key PIs are monitored and reported as 
are the key risks

3. The authority knows how well 
it is performing against its 
planned outcomes

 Regular reports are 
presented to members 
on the delivery of 
national, authority, 
departmental and 
partnership 
performance targets

 Internal and external 
auditor’s reports on 
key performance 
indicators 

 Key performance 
indicator risk 
scorecards

 Service reviews and 
progress reviews 
against the action 
plans.

 Monitoring reports on 
the achievement of 
local performance 

Budget monitoring reports
Monitoring of action plans
Covalent reports to Management Team
Annual Audit Letter
External Audit reports to Audit Board
Annual Ombudsman Letter
Performance management reports to MT 

Risk management system revised in 2013 and 
rolled out with training

PI report made quarterly to Cabinet and Policy 
Overview

Specific Action Plans produced and monitored



APPENDIX B

Page 14 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

targets in the Local 
Policing Plan

 Internal performance 
indicators 

 Regular budget 
monitoring reports 
(capital and revenue, 
current year and 
medium-term)

 Voluntary 
benchmarking 
exercises with peer 
groups 

 National comparative 
performance 
measures against 
comparable authorities

Many services will benchmark against peers but 
most will rely on national data e.g. council tax, 
benefits.

4. Knowledge of absolute and 
relative performances 
achieved is used to support 
decisions that drive 
improvements in outcomes

 Monitoring reports are 
regularly presented to 
the appropriate 
committee

 The reports include 
detailed performance 
results, both absolute 
and relative to peer 
authorities, a clear 
indication of below 
target, on target and 
at, or above, target 
results, highlighting 
areas where corrective 
action is necessary 

 Committee reports on 
below par performance 

Performance Management system
Service Plans
Annual budget review
Service Reviews
Feedback from customers
Monthly reports to Senior Management Team.
Target performance reviewed via appraisal and 
one to one process.
Housing performance reviewed 6 monthly by the 
Resident Involvement Joint Liaison Group.



APPENDIX B

Page 15 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

include ‘SMART’ 
action plans to 
improve performance

 Performance targets in 
subsequent corporate 
and departmental 
and/or service 
business plans are 
revised in the light of 
actual performance

 Continuous 
improvement is strived 
for by increasing the 
difficulty of 
performance targets 
when they have been 
met over a period (e.g. 
movements on KPI 
results)

Continuous improvement sought in those 
services where considered appropriate by 
Management Team 

5. The authority continuously 
improves its performance 
management

 The performance 
management systems 
are regularly reviewed 
and updated to take 
account of changes in 
organisational 
structure, new 
performance 
measurement 
frameworks (i.e. new 
Government initiatives, 
new internal 
performance 
measures etc.) and 
other factors

 The performance 
management 

Data Quality Strategy
Internal/External audit recommendations 
implemented
Review of Performance Management system in 
2014

Reviewed annually for lessons learnt 

Covalent performance management software



APPENDIX B

Page 16 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

arrangements are 
revised in line with 
external or internal 
review of the 
arrangements

 Performance 
management 
arrangements are 
reviewed to assimilate 
new techniques and/or 
technology e.g. 
developments in 
performance 
management 
information systems

 Performance 
management 
arrangements are 
developed and 
monitored in relation to 
key partnerships



APPENDIX B

Page 17 of 55

OBJECTIVE 1       :    Apply the six core principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework

CORE PRINCIPLE 1: Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and creating and implementing a 
vision for the local area 

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Exercising strategic 
leadership by 
developing and 
clearly 
communicating the 
authority’s purpose 
and vision and its 
intended outcome for 
citizens and service 
users.

Ensuring that users 

Develop and promote the 
authority’s purpose and vision

Review on a regular basis the 
authority’s vision for the local 
area and its implications for the 
authority’s governance 
arrangements

Ensure that partnerships are 
underpinned by a common 
vision of their work that is 
understood and agreed by all 
partners

Publish an annual report on a 
timely basis to communicate 
the authority’s activities and 
achievements, its financial 
position and performance.

Decide how the quality of 
service for users is to be 

Used as a basis for:
corporate and service 
planning
shaping the community 
strategy
local area or performance 
agreements

Annual financial statements

This information is reflected 
in the Council’s:

Articulated through the Corporate 
Plan. 

Reviewed and updated Corporate 
Plan in 2014.

Partnership Agreement principles 
agreed by Cabinet – 24 Jan 2008
Partnerships reviewed annually 
and reported to Management 
Team.

Reflected in the Corporate Plan 
and Service Plans
Complaints procedure in place 
Corporate Complaints Officer 
Annual Report to Audit Board on 
fitness for purpose of procedure

Corporate Complaints statistics to 
Policy Overview Committee.



APPENDIX B

Page 18 of 55

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

receive a high quality 
of service whether 
directly, or in 
partnership, or by 
commissioning.

measured and make sure that 
the information needed to 
review service quality 
effectively and regularly is 
available

Put in place effective 
arrangements to identify and 
deal with failure in service 
delivery

Corporate Plan
Medium Term Strategy
Resourcing Plan 
in order to ensure 
improvement

Complaints procedure

Internal Audit of Corporate 
Complaints Procedure



APPENDIX B

Page 19 of 55

CORE PRINCIPLE 2: Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles 
 

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Ensuring effective 
leadership throughout 
the authority and being 
clear about executive 
and non-executive 
functions and of the 
roles and 
responsibilities of the 
scrutiny function.

Ensuring that a 
constructive working 
relationship exists 
between authority 
members and officers 
and that the 
responsibilities of 
members and officers 
are carried out at a 
high standard.

Set out a clear statement of 
the respective roles and 
responsibilities of the 
executive’s members 
individually and the 
authority’s approach 
towards putting this into 
practice

Set out a clear statement of 
the respective roles and 
responsibilities of other 
authority members, 
members generally and of 
senior officers.

Determine a scheme of 
delegation and reserve 
powers within the 
constitution, including a 
formal schedule of those 
matters specifically 
reserved for collective 
decision of the authority, 
taking account of relevant 
legislation, and ensure that 
it is monitored and updated 
when required

Make a chief executive or 
equivalent responsible and 
accountable to the authority 
for all aspects of operational 
management

Constitution
Record of decisions and 
supporting materials
Key Decisions

Constitution
Conditions of employment

Scheme of Delegation
Statutory provisions
Constitution

Job descriptions/specification
performance management 
system

Cabinet Portfolio responsibilities 
approved at Annual Meeting
Conditions of employment for staff
Constitution 
Contract Standing Orders and 
Procurement Guide
Job Profiles and Competencies for 
Officers
Member/Officer Protocol
Record of decision making
Scheme of Delegations to Officers
Scrutiny Committee Terms of 
Reference and Protocol
Crime and Disorder Committee 
(Overview and Scrutiny) 
Committee Terms of Reference 
and Protocol
Statutory Officers’ roles and 
responsibilities documented
Terms of Reference for committees
Politically Restricted Posts 
Guidance/Procedure
Key Decisions’ procedure

Job Profile for Statutory Officers. 
Delegations to Managing Director 
as Head of Paid Service– updated 
to reflect flexibility for Joint 
Working.

The review of 
HR policies 
including 
codes of 
conduct is 
continuing.



APPENDIX B

Page 20 of 55

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Develop protocols to ensure 
that the leader and chief 
executive (or equivalent) 
negotiate their respective 
roles early in the 
relationship and that a 
shared understanding of 
roles and objectives is 
maintained

Make a senior officer (the 
S151 officer) responsible to 
the authority for ensuring 
that appropriate advice is 
given on all financial 
matters, for keeping proper 
financial records and 
accounts, and for 
maintaining an effective 
system of internal financial 
control

Make a senior officer 
(usually the monitoring 
officer) responsible to the 
authority for ensuring that 
agreed procedures are 
followed and that all 
applicable statutes and 
regulations are complied 
with.

Section 151 responsibilities
S112/114 Local Gov’t Finance 
Act 1988
Statutory provision
Statutory reports
Budget documentation
Job description/specification

Monitoring Officer provisions
Statutory provision
Job description/specification

Appointments Panel for Directors 
and Statutory Officers
The leader has regular meetings 
and contact with Management 
Team
  
Statutory Officer designations 
approved at Annual Meeting
Constitution outlines Head of Paid 
Service, Section 151 Officer and 
Monitoring Officer responsibilities

Established procedures for reports, 
delegations and actions



APPENDIX B

Page 21 of 55

CORE PRINCIPLE 3: Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding 
high standards of conduct and behaviour 

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Ensuring authority 
members and officers 
exercise leadership 
by behaving in ways 
that exemplify high 
standards of conduct 
and effective 
governance.

Ensure that the authority’s 
leadership sets a tone for the 
organisation by creating a 
climate of openness, support 
and respect

Ensure that standards of 
conduct and personal 
behaviour expected of 
members and staff, of work 
between members and staff  
and between the authority, its 
partners and the community 
are defined and communicated 
through codes of conduct and 
protocols

Put in place arrangements to 
ensure that members and 
employees of the authority are 
not influenced by prejudice, 
bias or conflicts of interest in 
dealing with different 
stakeholders and put in place 
appropriate processes to 
ensure that they continue to 
operate in practice.

Member Code of Conduct
Employee Code of Conduct
Member/Officer Relations’ 
Protocol
Performance Management 
Framework
Performance appraisals
Complaints procedures
Anti-fraud and Corruption 
Policy
Contract Standing Orders
Procurement Guide
Financial Regulations

Member/Officer Relations’ Protocol
Codes of Conduct. 
Employee Handbook
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy
HR Dignity at Work Policies
Appraisal process
Financial Regulations
Contract Standing Orders
Procurement Guide
Registers of Interests (Members 
and Officers)
Gifts and hospitality Registers 
(Members and Officers)
Declarations of Interest at 
committee meetings and records 
thereof published on the Council’s 
website
Probity in Planning Protocol
Probity in Licensing Protocol 
Whistleblowing Policy
Corporate Complaints Procedure
Related Party Transactions

Formal declarations of interest at 
meetings and under scheme of 
delegations.

Clearer and 
concise  
Financial 
Regulations 
will be 
developed in 
2016.

Ensuring that 
organisational values 
are put into practice 
and are effective

Develop and maintain shared 
values including leadership 
values for both the 
organisation and staff 
reflecting public expectations, 

Codes of conduct Codes of Conduct
Ethical standards training for 
Members
Whistleblowing Policy
Monitoring Officer annual report to 



APPENDIX B

Page 22 of 55

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

and communicate these with 
members, staff, the community 
and partners

Put in place arrangements to 
ensure that systems and 
processes are designed in 
conformity with appropriate 
ethical standards, and monitor 
their continuing effectiveness 
in practice

Develop and maintain  
effective ethical governance 
arrangements

Use the organisation’s shared 
values to act as a guide for 
decision making and as a 
basis for developing positive 
and trusting relationships 
within the authority

In pursuing the vision of a 
partnership, agree a set of 
values against which decision 
making and actions can be 
judged. Such values must be 
demonstrated by partners’ 
behaviour both individually and 
collectively.

Codes of conduct
Appointment of Independent 
Person

Terms of reference
Regular reporting to the 
authority
Localism Act 2011 standards 
functions delegated to the 
Audit Board 

Protocols for partnership 
working

Audit Board
Member/Officer Relations’ Protocol
Audit Board Terms of Reference
Hearing Panel (Member conduct)
Standards for England Partnership 
Behaviour Protocol

Guidance on Outside Bodies  



APPENDIX B

Page 23 of 55

CORE PRINCIPLE 4: Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk 

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Being rigorous and 
transparent about 
how decisions are 
taken and listening 
and acting on the 
outcome of 
constructive scrutiny

Develop and maintain an 
effective scrutiny function 
which encourages constructive 
challenge and enhances the 
authority’s performance overall 
and that of any organisation for 
which it is responsible

Develop and maintain open 
and effective mechanisms for 
documenting evidence for 
decisions and recording the 
criteria, rationale and 
considerations on which 
decisions are based

Put in place arrangements to 
safeguard members and 
employees against conflicts of 
interest and put in place 
appropriate processes to 
ensure that they continue to 
operate in practice

Develop and maintain an 
effective audit committee (or 
equivalent) which is 
independent of the executive 
and scrutiny functions or make 
other appropriate 

Scrutiny is supported by 
robust evidence and data 
analysis

Decision making protocols 
record of decisions and 
supporting materials

Community Right to Bid 
procedures

Member Code of Conduct
Employee Handbook &
Employee Code of Conduct 

Terms of reference
Training for committee 
members

Scrutiny Committee and Crime and 
Disorder Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Terms of Reference 
and Protocol
Reports and Minutes of Scrutiny 
Committee

Constitution  - record of all 
decisions
Registers of Interest
Declarations of Interest at meetings
Audit Board Terms of Reference
Related Party Transactions

Cabinet/Committee/GAC reports 
must contain relevant supporting 
information

Audit Board Terms of Reference

Compliance with Local 
Government Transparency Code 
and The Openness of Local 
Government Bodies Regulations 

Employee 
handbook 
update is in 
draft but needs 
finalising



APPENDIX B

Page 24 of 55

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

arrangements for the 
discharge of the functions of 
such a committee

Ensure that effective, 
transparent and accessible 
arrangements are in place for 
dealing with complaints

Complaints procedure
Corporate Complaints Procedure
Publicised on the Council’s website 
and intranet and through leaflets

Having good quality 
information, advice 
and support to ensure 
that services are 
delivered effectively 
and are what the 
community 
wants/needs.

Ensure that those making 
decisions whether for the 
authority or the partnership are 
provided with information that 
is fit for the purpose – relevant, 
timely and gives clear 
explanations of technical 
issues and their implications

Ensure that proper 
professional advice on matters 
that have legal or financial 
implications is available and 
recorded well in advance of 
decision making and used 
appropriately.

Members’ induction scheme
Training for committee chairs

Record of decision making 
and supporting materials

Reports to committee contain 
relevant information

Member induction and function 
specific training provided where 
appropriate.

Treasury Management Panel 
Training

Finance, Legal and Human 
Resources vetting of all committee 
reports – specific section within 
report

Updated website information

  

Ensuring that an 
effective risk 
management system 
is in place.

Ensure that risk management 
is embedded into the culture of 
the authority, with members 
and managers at all levels 
recognising that risk 
management is part of their 
jobs

Risk management protocol
financial standards and 
regulations

Risk management awareness in all 
committee reports

Whistleblowing Policy reviewed 
and adopted by the Audit Board 
2015.
Referred to in Contract Standing 
Orders and Purchasing Orders 
terms and conditions



APPENDIX B

Page 25 of 55

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Ensure that effective 
arrangements for whistle-
blowing are in place to which 
officers, staff and all those 
contracting with or appointed 
by the authority have access.

Whistleblowing Policy

Communicated to staff on an 
annual basis

Publicised on the Council’s website 
and intranet 



APPENDIX B

Page 26 of 55

CORE PRINCIPLE 5: Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective 

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Making sure that 
members and officers 
have the skills, 
knowledge, 
experience and 
resources they need 
to perform well in 
their roles.

Provide induction programmes 
tailored to individual needs and 
opportunities for members and 
officers to update their 
knowledge on a regular basis

Ensure that the statutory 
officers have the skills, 
resources and support 
necessary to perform 
effectively in their roles and 
that these roles are properly 
understood throughout the 
authority

Training and development 
plan
Induction programme
Update courses/information

Job description/personal 
specifications membership of 
top management team

Members receive update training 
on key topics during the year as 
appropriate.

Record of attendance at training
Officer appraisals

Performance Management 
framework for officers

Induction 
Programme to 
be reviewed

Training 
Programme to 
be developed

Developing the 
capability of people 
with governance 
responsibilities and 
evaluating their 
performance, as 
individuals and as a 
group.

Assess the skills required by 
members and officers and 
make a commitment to 
develop those skills to enable 
roles to be carried out 
effectively

Develop skills on a continuing 
basis to improve performance, 
including the ability to 
scrutinise and challenge and to 
recognise when outside expert 
advice is needed

Ensure that effective 
arrangements are in place for 
reviewing the performance of 
the executive as a whole and 
of individual members and 
agreeing an action plan which 

Training development plan

Performance management 
system

Record of attendance at training
Officer appraisal
Performance Management 
Framework

Scrutiny Committee



APPENDIX B

Page 27 of 55

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

might, for example, aim to 
address any training or 
development needs.

Encouraging new 
talent for membership 
of the authority so 
that best use can be 
made of individuals’ 
skills and resources 
in balancing 
continuity and 
renewal.

Ensure that effective 
arrangements are in place 
designed to encourage 
individuals from all sections of 
the community to engage with, 
contribute to and participate in 
the work of the authority

Ensure that career structures 
are in place for members and 
officers to encourage 
participation and development.

Strategic partnership 
framework, stakeholders 
forums’, terms of reference,
area forums’ roles and 
responsibilities
residents panel structure

Succession planning

Scrutiny Committee Protocol
Policy Overview Committee 
Protocol with Housing Resident’s 
Rep
Crime and Disorder (Overview 
and Scrutiny) Committee Protocol
Development Control Board 
public participation
Scrutiny with public participation
Policy review with public 
participation

Career structures for officers

Cabinet Member and Lead 
Members provide support and 
guidance to other members. 
Other Groups provide their own 
member development.

 



APPENDIX B

Page 28 of 55

CORE PRINCIPLE 6: Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability 

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Exercising leadership 
through a robust 
scrutiny function 
which effectively 
engages local people 
and all local 
institutional 
stakeholders, 
including 
partnerships, and 
develops constructive 
accountability 
relationships.

Make clear to themselves, all 
staff and the community to 
whom they are accountable 
and for what

Consider those institutional 
stakeholders to whom the 
authority is accountable and 
assess the effectiveness of the 
relationships and any changes 
required

Produce an annual report on 
the activity of the scrutiny 
function.

Community Consultation

Annual report

Responsibilities for Leading 
Group, Opposition Members and 
Reps on Outside Bodies detailed 
in Council Annual Meeting 
agenda
Promotion of Cabinet Members’ 
role in press releases
Partnerships’ Code of Practice
SFE Partnerships Behaviour 
Protocol

Specific consultation on 
initiatives, policies and strategies.

Annual report to Scrutiny then 
GAC 

Taking an active and 
planned approach to 
dialogue with and 
accountability to the 
public to ensure 
effective and 
appropriate service 
delivery whether 
directly by the 
authority, in 
partnership or by 
commissioning.

Ensure clear channels of 
communication are in place 
with all sections of the 
community and other 
stakeholders, and put in place 
monitoring arrangements and 
ensure that they operate 
effectively

Hold meetings in public unless 
there are good reasons for 
confidentiality

Ensure that arrangements are 
in place to enable the authority 
to engage with all sections of 

Community Consultation Communications channels 
decided for specific activity in 
accordance with Consultation and 
Engagement Strategy 

Specific consultation on 
initiatives, policies and strategies. 
– Cabinet/GAC decide on 
priorities



APPENDIX B

Page 29 of 55

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

the community effectively. 
These arrangements should 
recognise that different 
sections of the community 
have different priorities and 
establish explicit processes for 
dealing with these competing 
demands

Establish a clear policy on the 
types of issues they will 
meaningfully consult on or 
engage with the public and 
service users about including a 
feedback mechanism for those 
consultees to demonstrate 
what has changed as a result

On an annual basis, publish a 
performance plan giving 
information on the authority’s 
vision, strategy, plans and 
financial statements as well as 
information about its 
outcomes, achievements and 
the satisfaction of service 
users in the previous period

Ensure that the authority as a 
whole is open and accessible 
to the community, service 
users and its staff and ensure 
that it has made a commitment 
to openness and transparency 
in all its dealings, including 
partnerships, subject only to 

Partnership framework
Communication strategy

Reported annually on 
website 

Constitution
Standing Orders
Protocols for O&S 
Committees

Compliance with Local 
Government Transparency Code 
and The Openness of Local 
Government Bodies Regulations



APPENDIX B

Page 30 of 55

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Making best use of 
human resources by 
taking an active and 
planned approach to 
meet responsibility to 
staff.

the need to preserve 
confidentially in those specific 
circumstances where it is 
proper and appropriate to do 
so.

Develop and maintain a clear 
policy on how staff and their 
representatives are consulted 
and involved in decision 
making.

Develop 
Workforce 
Strategy



APPENDIX B

Page 31 of 55

OBJECTIVE 2: Identifying principal risks to achievement of objectives

STEP 1: The authority has robust systems and processes in place for the identification and management of strategic and operational 
risk 
Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 

develop
1. There is a written strategy 

and policy in place for 
managing risk which:
 Has been formally 

approved at political and 
risk management board 
(or equivalent) level

 Is reviewed on a regular 
basis

 Has been 
communicated to all 
relevant staff

 Includes partnership 
risks

 Existence of approved 
strategy and policy 
document 

 Evidence of formal 
approval (e.g. 
management 
board/committee 
minutes)

 Evidence of formal 
review (e.g. 
management 
board/committee 
minutes, document 
version number and 
date)

 Evidence of 
communication 
strategy, possibly 
covered in strategy 
document

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
policy and strategy 
published on intranet, 
strategic diagnostic 
questionnaire results

 Partnership risk 
registers

Risk Management process updated in 2016 
As above

Risk Strategy has been communicated to all 
managers.



APPENDIX B

Page 32 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

2. The authority has 
implemented clear structures 
and processes for risk 
management which are 
successfully implemented 
and:
 Management board and 

elected members see 
risk management as a 
priority and support it by 
personal interest and 
input

 Decision making 
considers risk

 A senior manager has 
been appointed to 
“champion” risk 
management

 Roles and 
responsibilities for risk 
management have been 
defined

 Risk management 
systems are subject to 
independent 
assessment

 Risk management is 
considered in the 
annual business 
planning process

 Risk management 
extends to partnership 
risks

 Management 
board/committee 
minutes

 Job descriptions of 
senior and operational 
managers and 
corporate risk 
manager

 Internal audit reports 
and external audit 
comments on risk 
management system  

 PPAF review 
comments on risk 
management

 Annual business 
plans

 Link between 
internal audit and risk 
management 
functions is clearly 
defined in terms of 
reference of internal 
audit 

 Responsibility for 
risk management 
function, including 
partnership risk 
management, is set at 
appropriate senior 
level 

 Committee reports 
setting out options for 
change include an 
appropriate risk 
assessment, including 

Updated risk strategy was agreed by Cabinet in 
October 2015.

Risk assessment referred to in committee reports

Roles and responsibilities defined in Risk 
Management Strategy

Risk management subject to regular review by 
internal audit 

Risk is key element in Service Plans and reports 
to committee.

Budget report considers the key financial risks to 
the authority



APPENDIX B

Page 33 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

the ‘no change’ option
 The corporate 

business plan and 
financial plan assess 
risks as appropriate 
and in particular take 
account of new and 
emerging risks facing 
the authority

 Partnership risks are 
assessed before 
agreements are 
signed

3. The authority has developed 
a corporate approach to the 
identification and evaluation 
of risk which is understood by 
all staff

 Systematic 
procedures for risk 
identification and 
evaluation have been 
agreed and are 
consistently applied 
across all business 
units and partnerships

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
strategic diagnostic 
questionnaire results

Part of Risk Strategy and included in Service 
Plans Partnerships’ Code of Practice
Contract Conditions

Briefings and discussions held with all senior 
managers 

Health & Safety risks 
associated with no 
inspections of 
commercial properties 
to be reviewed.

Review whether 
opportunity cost of 
financial resources tied 
up in land and buildings 
are minimised and that 
capital and revenue 
expenditure on the 
portfolio is directed 
efficiently and 
effectively to provide 
value for money.



APPENDIX B

Page 34 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

4. The authority has well defined 
procedures for recording and 
reporting risk

 Evidenced by review 
of risk management 
strategy and policy

 Examination of 
corporate and 
partnership risk 
registers 

 Key risk indicators 
have been determined 
and there is evidence 
of monitoring against 
these risks

 Evidence of regular 
and frequent reporting 
of risk to political and 
management board 
level

 Evidence of risk 
based auditing being 
carried out

 Evidence of risks not 
properly addressed 
identified in internal 
audit reports etc. 
being fed into the risk 
management process

Risk Strategy

Service Plans and Covalent

Audit Board, Management Team

Back up analysis to the Audit Plan

     

5. The authority has well-
established and clear 
arrangements for financing 
risk

 Evidence that the 
authority’s policy for 
risk financing is 
regularly reviewed in 
the light of costs and 
alternative risk 
mitigation strategies

 All legal requirements 
for insurance are met

Main financial risk is considered annually as part 
of the budget report.

Zurich Insurance policies



APPENDIX B

Page 35 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Evidence that self-
insurance provisions 
are subject to annual 
independent actuarial 
valuation and that 
contributions to the 
fund are adjusted 
accordingly

 Insurance claims 
being managed in 
accordance with 
‘Woolf’ principles

 Evidence of 
monitoring the 
incidence of 
successful and 
unsuccessful claims 
and of feeding the 
results back into the 
policy for risk 
financing accordingly

Not applicable other than excess on policies

Insurance files

Yes to monitoring but no to feeding back into 
financing risk policy – our claims are of low order



APPENDIX B

Page 36 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

6. The authority has developed 
a programme of risk 
management training for 
relevant staff

 Training programme 
for risk management

 Training needs 
analysis (both 
specialist staff 
development and 
general awareness)

 Regular newsletter or 
other means of 
communicating risk 
management issues 
to staff 

 Induction programme 
includes risk 
management

 Appropriate 
responsibilities for risk 
management 
incorporated into job 
descriptions and 
appraisals

Training provided in 2013 alongside updated 
process and Management Team strategic risk 
work in 2016.

A presentation on risk was also given to Audit 
Board

Zurich risk updates and anything from Kent Audit 
and Risk Managers (KARM) is communicated to 
relevant staff

7. The corporate risk 
management board (or 
equivalent) adds value to the 
risk management process by: 
 Advising and supporting 

corporate management 
team on risk strategies 

 Identifying areas of 
overlapping risk

 Driving new risk 
management initiatives

 Communicating risk 
management and 
sharing good practice

 Corporate risk 
management board or 
equivalent terms of 
reference 

 Minutes of corporate 
risk management 
board 

 Reports to corporate 
management team

Management Team fulfils this role. 

Audit Board have reviewed the strategic risk 
register and will receive updates to the register



APPENDIX B

Page 37 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Providing and reviewing 
risk management 
training

 Regularly reviewing the 
risk register(s)

 Coordinating the results 
for risk reporting

8. A corporate risk officer has 
been appointed with the 
necessary skills to analyse 
issues and offer options and 
advice and:
 Support decision 

making and policy 
formulation

 Provides support in the 
risk identification and 
analysis process

 Provides support in 
prioritising risk 
mitigation action

 Provides advice and 
support in determining 
risk treatments

 Inspires confidence in 
managers

 Job description of 
corporate risk officer

 Key task matrix of 
corporate risk officer

 Evidence of the 
corporate risk officer 
reporting to corporate 
management team on 
risk management 
issues

 Evidence of training 
on current risk 
management topics / 
membership of 
appropriate 
organisations (e.g. 
ALARM)

 Use of consultancy as 
appropriate

Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager 

Officer attendance at KARM

Zurich for initial RM process

9. Managers are accountable for 
managing their risks

 Evidence of manager 
involvement in risk 
identification and 
analysis process

 Risk owners detailed 
in corporate 
/departmental risk 
register(s)

 Risk owners assigned 
in relation to key 

Senior managers responsible for service risk 
assessment



APPENDIX B

Page 38 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

partnerships
 Job descriptions of 

managers outline their 
risk management 
responsibilities

 Evidence of (at least) 
annual review of risk 
at service/operational 
levels and of 
partnership risks

 Analysis of completed 
control and risk self-
assessment 
questionnaires

10. Risk management is 
embedded throughout the 
organisation 

 Evidence of a general 
risk management 
culture at all levels

 Risk management 
training programme

 Evidence of managers 
involvement in risk 
management aspects 
of business planning

 Results of strategic 
diagnostic survey to 
ascertain the extent to 
which risk 
management is 
understood by each 
category of officer 
(senior management, 
operational managers 
etc.) and members

See 2 above

11. Risks in partnership working 
are fully considered 

 Evidence of risk 
assessments being 
undertaken before the 

Yes for major projects and all Committee reports 
include section for risk



APPENDIX B

Page 39 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

commencement of 
major projects, 
preferably in the 
report on which the 
decision to proceed is 
based

 Evidence that risk 
assessment are 
regularly reviewed 
during the project 
period

 Evidence that 
potential partners are 
required to produce 
and submit risk 
assessments

 Evidence that 
partnership 
arrangements are 
reviewed in terms of 
risk before they are 
entered into and, 
subsequently, that the 
risks are reviewed

 Evidence that there 
are effective 
arrangements in place 
for risk sharing (e.g. in 
the partnering contract 
terms and conditions 
or agreement)

Capital Projects Working Group

Part of Prince 2 arrangements for larger/complex 
projects – e.g. IT projects

Key partnerships reviewed annually

Partnerships’ Code of Practice

12. Where employed, risk 
management information 
systems meet users’ needs

 Evidence of risk 
information being 
updated promptly

 Review of accuracy 
and usefulness of 

Operational and 
Strategic Risks to be 
added and monitored 
through the Covalent 
system



APPENDIX B

Page 40 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

output from 
information systems

 Evidence that users 
were/are consulted on 
initial implementation 
and further 
development

 Interviews with users 
to assess suitability of 
the system for their 
needs



APPENDIX B

Page 41 of 55

OBJECTIVE 3: Identify and evaluate key controls to manage principal risks

STEP 1: The authority has a robust system of internal control which includes systems and procedures to mitigate principal risks 

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. There are written financial 
regulations in place which 
have been formally approved, 
regularly reviewed and widely 
communicated to all relevant 
staff:
 Authority has adopted 

CIPFA Code on 
Treasury Management 

 Compliance with the 
Prudential Code

 Financial regulations 
and instructions exist 
& are reviewed & 
updated regularly

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible in finance 
manuals and/or on 
intranet site

 Reports to audit 
committee or 
equivalent confirming 
compliance or 
identifying extent of 
non-compliance with 
regulations and 
instructions

 Report approving 
annual treasury 
management and 
investment strategy

 Outturn report on 
treasury mgt.

 External audit 
assessment of 
compliance with 
Prudential Code

Updated 2010 and reviewed in 2015

Referred to in updates of Financial Guidance 
Manual 

Included as part of each audit report 

Budget report

Treasury Management Panel 

June Cabinet

As part of annual audit

Clearer and concise  
Financial Regulations will 
be developed in 2016.

2. There are written contract  Standing orders exist, Contract Standing Orders Subject to annual 



APPENDIX B

Page 42 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

standing orders in place 
which have been formally 
approved, regularly reviewed 
and widely communicated to 
all relevant staff

are reviewed and 
updated regularly to 
cover new procedures 
such as partnering 
arrangements and on-
line tendering

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
communication and 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible in finance 
manuals and/or on 
intranet site 

review under Managing Director delegated 
authority
Publicised on the Council’s website and intranet
Training attendance records 
Procurement Guide reviewed regularly

3. There is a whistle blowing 
policy in place which has 
been formally approved, 
regularly reviewed and widely 
communicated to all relevant 
staff

 Whistle blowing policy 
exists and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
communication and 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible on website 
and intranet site 

 Evidence of 
effectiveness of policy 
(e.g. reports on 
incidence of usage, 
evidence on annual 
declarations on fraud 
to Audit Commission)

Audit Manager Report on fitness for purpose of 
Whistleblowing Policy.

Whistleblowing Policy reviewed and adopted by 
the Audit Board January 2015 and updated 
annually.

Publicised on the Council’s website and intranet

Referred to in Contract Standing Orders and 
Purchasing Terms and Conditions



APPENDIX B

Page 43 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

4. There is a counter fraud and 
corruption policy in place 
which has been formally 
approved, regularly reviewed 
and widely communicated to 
all relevant staff

 Counter fraud and 
corruption policy exists 
and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
dissemination 
(briefings, induction, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible on website 
and intranet site 

 Evidence of 
effectiveness of policy 
(e.g. reports on 
identified frauds; 
annual AF70 returns to 
Audit Commission, 
reports on results of 
National Fraud 
Initiatives)

 Review of register of 
gifts and hospitality

Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy 
Register of Gifts and Hospitality (Members)
Register of Gifts and Hospitality (Officers)
Monitoring Officer review of Member Register of 
Gifts and Hospitality
Protocols/guides on Member Gifts, Benefits and 
Hospitality Register
Protocols/guides publicised on the Council’s 
website and the intranet
Member Code of Conduct training 
Member training attendance records
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to the Audit 
Board

Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption strategy 
needs updating.



APPENDIX B

Page 44 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

5. There are codes of conduct in 
place which have been 
formally approved and widely 
communicated to all relevant 
staff

 Codes of conduct have 
been agreed, including 
national schemes (e.g. 
police officers)

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible on intranet 
site 

Employment Code of Conduct updated in 2013
Member Code of Conduct approved by Council 
July 2012
Member Code of Conduct training
Member training attendance records
Member Code of Conduct publicised on 
Council’s website and intranet

Review of  Employee 
Code of Conduct  to 
ensure consistency with 
Member Code where 
applicable.

6. A register of interests is 
maintained, regularly updated 
and reviewed

 Inspection of register 
of interests (members 
and staff)

 Evidence of regular 
updating and review 
by senior officer(s) 

HR Policies and Procedures on declarations of 
Officer interests
Officer Register of Interests
Member Register of Interests
Member Code of Conduct training
Member training attendance records
Protocols/guidance on Member declarations of 
interests
Review of Member Register of Interests by 
Monitoring Officer

Compile declarations of 
Interests at appraisals 
into specific register.

7. Where a scheme of 
delegation has been drawn 
up, it has been formally 
approved and communicated 
to all relevant staff

 Scheme of Delegation  
to Officers 
incorporates adequate 
controls and sanctions

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
communication and 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible on intranet 
site 

Constitution
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to Audit Board
Publicised on the Council’s website and intranet
Scheme of Delegations to Officers approved by 
Council 2011 and reviewed annually under 
Managing Director’s delegated authority



APPENDIX B

Page 45 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Regular reports on the 
operation of the 
scheme (e.g. 
compliance, budget 
monitoring, year-end 
balances)

8. A corporate procurement 
policy has been drawn up, 
formally approved and 
communicated to all relevant 
staff

 Procurement policy 
exists and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly to take 
account of new 
initiatives e.g. drive 
towards wider 
consortia 
arrangements, shared 
services

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible on intranet 
site 

 Evidence of 
effectiveness of policy 
(e.g. benchmarking 
results, best value 
review, internal/ 
external audit review)

Procurement Strategy approved 2015

Briefings on specifics that are relevant e.g. 
Bevan Brittan and Crown Commercial Services.

Refresher training initiatives

Procurement Group meets regularly

9. Business/service continuity 
plans have been drawn up for 
all critical service areas and 
the plans: 
 Are subject to regular 

testing

 Current 
business/service 
continuity plans exist 
covering all critical 
service areas and are 
readily accessible

Plans in place.

Ongoing programme of training 

Business continuity exercise carried out in 

Actions from business 
continuity exercise to be 
completed.



APPENDIX B

Page 46 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Are subject to regular 
review

 Evidence of regular 
testing

 Evidence of regular 
review in the light of 
the results of testing 
and for changes in 
structures, 
procedures, 
information systems, 
responsibilities etc.

March 2016. 

10. The corporate/departmental 
risk register(s) includes 
expected key controls to 
manage principal risks

 Risk register sets 
out principal risks and 
sets out appropriate 
key controls to 
manage them.

 Key controls are 
monitored, reviewed 
and updated regularly

 Use of risk 
management 
workshops to 
underpin the process 
and review of register 
and key controls

 Risk owners are 
assigned to manage 
principal risks

 Partnership risks are 
considered

This is incorporated in revised risk management 
process.

11. Key risk indicators have been 
drawn up to track the 
movement of key risks and 
are regularly monitored and 
reviewed.

 Appropriate key risk 
indicators are 
documented

 Evidence of regular 
monitoring

 Evidence of changes 

Strategic risks taken to Audit Board in Jan 2016, 
who will regularly monitor them.



APPENDIX B

Page 47 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

in risk indicators (and 
reasons for change) 
emanating from 
appropriate 
information sources 
(e.g. where internal 
audit findings are 
used to change the 
perceived level of risk) 

12. The authority’s internal control 
framework is subject to 
regular independent 
assessment

 Internal audit plans 
and reports

 Annual report/opinion 
of Audit Manager

 External audit reports
 Use of 

Resources/PURE 
assessment reports

External Audit reports
Internal Audit reports
Reports and minutes of Audit Board
Internal audit plans and reports
Audit Plan is based on risk assessment, and 
discussed with Directors who consider corporate 
and service specific risks.



APPENDIX B

Page 48 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

13. A corporate health and safety 
policy has been drawn up, 
formally approved, is subject 
to regular review and has 
been communicated to all 
relevant staff

 Health & safety policy 
exists and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly

 Policy covers 
partnerships

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
inclusion of policy on 
website and intranet 
site

 Evidence of 
effectiveness of policy 
e.g. number of cases 
investigated by Health 
& Safety Executive – 
and the number of 
cases proven

 Review of number of 
reported incidences 
and ‘near misses’

Health and Safety Policy on intranet. Policy last 
reviewed August 2014.

Included in Employee Handbook

Corporate Wellbeing Group meets quarterly to 
consider H&S issues, changes in legislation etc. 
and review accidents and near misses. Group 
reports to MT. 

14. A corporate complaints 
policy/procedure has been 
drawn up, formally approved, 
communicated to all relevant 
staff, the public and other 
stakeholders is regularly 
reviewed

 Complaints 
policy/procedure 
exists and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly

 Procedure is 
compliant with all 
relevant statutory 
requirements

 Evidence of formal 
approval

Corporate Complaints Procedure publicised on 
the Council’s website, intranet, main service 
points and in other parts of the Borough such as 
at Parish/Town Council Offices, Museum and 
Library
Leaflets and guidance for public
Audit Board approval
Management of complaints on Covalent
Corporate Complaints Officer Annual Report to 
the Audit Board
Satisfaction surveys 



APPENDIX B

Page 49 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
inclusion of policy on 
website and intranet 
site

 Leaflets/posters 
highlighting 
complaints procedure

 Complaints files
 Committee reports 

summarising 
complaints dealt with 
analysed by outcome

Annual review to ensure fitness for purpose
Monitoring reports to MT and annual report to 
Cabinet



APPENDIX B

Page 50 of 55

OBJECTIVE 4: Obtain assurance on the effectiveness of key controls 

STEP 1: Appropriate assurance statements are received from designated internal and external assurance providers 

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. The authority has determined 
appropriate internal and 
external sources of assurance

 Minutes of committee 
at which report on 
assurances was 
considered

 Sources of assurance 
are appropriate to the 
authority

Annual Assurance report from Audit, Risk and 
Anti-Fraud Manager
External Auditor report
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to the Audit 
Board
Management Team consider the review of the 
governance arrangements and their acceptance 
of the review and the governance statement 
provides the necessary level of assurance 

2. Appropriate key controls on 
which assurance is to be 
given have been identified 
and agreed 

 Briefing notes, 
guidance, instructions 
etc. given to 
appropriate managers 
regarding what is 
expected of them

Annual External Audit Plan
Internal Audit Plan
Risk Register
Assurance Statements
Contract Standing Orders, Financial Regulations 
and Officer delegations
Regular Audit Board Invoice checks

3. Departmental assurances are 
provided

 Departmental heads 
sign off on adequacy 
of controls (i.e. 
provide annual 
governance 
assurance 
statements)

 Supporting 
documentation 
provided by 
departmental heads re 
review and monitoring 

An appropriate approach has been adopted with 
statements signed by Service Managers and 
relevant managers. 

Monitoring Officer Annual Report to Audit Board.



APPENDIX B

Page 51 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

arrangements that key 
controls have been in 
operation for the 
period and will 
continue to operate 
until accounts signed 
off.

(Structured process and 
standard documentation to 
ensure consistency of 
coverage and common 
understanding of level of 
assurance given)
 Completed Control & 

Risk Self-Assessment  
questionnaires

 Annual governance 
assurance statements 
evaluated by officer 
team or committee 
charged with the 
responsibility of 
preparing the AGS.  
Evaluation to include 
‘reality checking’ of 
sample of assurance 
statements

4. External assurance reports 
are collated centrally 
 Reports are reviewed by 

relevant senior 
management team and 
reported to appropriate 
committee

 Action plans are 
prepared and approved 

 Sources of external 
assurance relevant to 
authority are identified 
and agreed, including 
partnerships

 External assurance 
reports will vary 
according to type of 
authority and could 

Audit Plan
Annual Audit letter

All reported to Audit Board

Reports to Management Team and Audit Board 

Action plans produced if required and monitored



APPENDIX B

Page 52 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

as appropriate
 Follow up reports on 

recommendations are 
requested and reviewed 
by relevant senior 
management team and 
progress is regularly 
reported to relevant 
committee

include comment and 
input from the 
following (the list is not 
exhaustive):

 Audit Commission 
 External Auditor (either 

from direct audit work 
or from work jointly 
commissioned

 Social Services 
Inspectorate

 PURE assessment 
(police service)

 HMIC
 Police Standards Unit
 Home Office 

commissioned reports
 Senior management 

team minutes
 Follow up reports to 

appropriate committee
5. Internal Audit Arrangements  Reports of Audit 

Manager to Audit 
Board or equivalent 
throughout the year

 Annual report of Audit 
Manager, including 
opinion on internal 
control and risk 
management 
framework

Regular report to Audit Board
Risk based audit priorities across Council, 
including Partnerships

Annual Report to Audit Board

External Audit Review

6. Corporate Governance  Annual corporate Report to Audit Board – June each year



APPENDIX B

Page 53 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

Arrangements governance assurance 
statement

 Internal or external 
audit review of 
corporate governance 
arrangements

 Monitoring reports to 
committee on delivery 
of action plans in 
response to reviews of 
corporate governance

Regular internal audit review 

External Audit review as part of the annual audit

7. Performance monitoring 
arrangements

 Annual and in-year 
reports on delivery of 
key performance 
indicators by internal 
and/or external review 
agencies

Reviews of performance
Performance Management Framework
Internal Audit reports to Audit Board
Policy Overview Committee reviews
Service Plans



APPENDIX B

Page 54 of 55

OBJECTIVE 5: Evaluate assurances and identify gaps in control/assurances

STEP 1: The authority has made adequate arrangements to identify, receive and evaluate reports from identified internal and external 
assurance providers to identify areas of weakness in controls 

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. Responsibilities for the 
evaluation of assurances are 
clearly defined throughout the 
organisation.

 Minutes of committee 
meetings

 Training plans
 Job descriptions
 Committee terms of 

reference
 Annual assurance 

statement of ethical 
governance to Audit 
Board

Committee reports and minutes
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to the Audit 
Board
Terms of Reference of committees
Statutory Officers’ defined roles
Job Profiles
Management Team minutes  

2. Mechanism established for 
collecting governance 
assurances
 Overall responsibility 

allocated to governance 
senior officer group

 Required assurances 
are agreed and 
recorded

 Central record of all 
assurances (either 
evidence file, or 
showing clear link to 
where evidence is held)

 Clear guidance as to 
evaluation procedure 
including assurance 
over risks, 
independence and 
objectivity of 

 Terms of 
reference and key 
responsibilities

 Record of 
assurances required 
and received is held 
and is complete

 Approved 
written guidance re-
evaluation procedure

 Scoring 
matrix/methodology 
(Not all assurances 
are suitable for 
grading; many will be 
subjective anyway.  
Key points are that 
there is a consistent 
and reliable 
assessment process 

Audit Board Terms of Reference
Internal audit function
External auditor reports
Risk Management Strategy
Management Team
Monitoring Officer Annual Report



APPENDIX B

Page 55 of 55

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

assurances
 Defined evaluation 

mechanism
 Timetable for 

completion by statutory 
deadline 

 Gap assessment – 
performed and 
challenged

and that the 
conclusions drawn are 
in line with the 
evidence produced)

 An agreed 
timetable, allowing for 
in-year evidence 
gathering and 
assessment and for 
the period between 
the year-end and the 
date of the 
governance 
assurance statement 
(timetable driven by 
that for the production 
of the annual 
statement of 
accounts)

 Gap 
assessment results 
and actions arising 
there from

 Minutes of 
meetings

 Annual report 
of Audit Manager – 
including opinion on 
internal control and 
risk management 
framework

 Reports of 
external auditor and 
other external review 
agencies





Governance Action Plan 2015/16 – Progress Review Appendix C
         

Action - Principles Milestones Date Lead 
Officer(s)

Progress

1 Complete Review of Financial 
Regulations.

Report to Management 
Team

Report to the GAC

Sept 2015

Oct 2015

Financial 
Services Manager

Regulations have been reviewed 
and updates identified. However, 
the review identified a need for a 
more concise set of regulations. 
Other examples have been 
obtained so that best practice 
can be followed and a revised 
concise set of regulations will be 
developed in the summer.

2 Review of the Corporate Code of 
Governance

Report to Management 
Team

Report to Audit Board

Oct 2015

Dec 2015

Financial 
Services Manager

The code underwent an initial 
review and no changes were 
identified. However, CIPFA 
published a new code in April 
which will be used to compare to 
the current code.



Governance Action Plan 2015/16 – Progress Review Appendix C
         

Action - Process Milestones Original 
Date Lead Officer(s)

Progress

A Finalise the review and update of 
HR policies and employee 
handbook

Programme for each 
policy

Final sign off by MD

Current to 
Sept 2015

Oct 2015

HR Business Advisor Employee Handbook drafted 
and Policies and Procedures 
being updated at present.  
Will be published one by one 
as approved.

B Update Contracts Standing Orders 
to reflect requirements of the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015

Report to the GAC July 2015 Head of Legal 
Services

Updated

C Update procedural Standing 
Orders to reflect the requirements 
of the Local Authorities (Standing 
Orders) (England)(Amendment) 
Regulations 2015

Report to the GAC July 2015 Head of Legal 
Services

Updated to meet legal 
requirements 

D Update the Procurement Guide to 
reflect requirements of Equality 
standards and the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015

Initial Review 
completed

Sign off by managers

June 2015

Sept 2015

Principal Finance and 
Procurement Officer

Relevant updates have been 
identified and will be included 
in advice to officers.

E Service management overviews to 
be reviewed with links to the 
Corporate Plan as appropriate

Initial Review 
completed

Report to Management 
Team

Sept 2015

Oct 2015

Policy and Corporate 
Support Manager

A report was prepared and 
submitted to Management 
Team, however it was felt 
that more work needed to be 
done and it is now going to 
be combined with a revised 
Service Plan template.

F Strategic Risks to be reviewed and 
presented to management team 
and Audit Board

Report to Management 
Team

June 2015

Sept 2015

Audit and Anti-Fraud 
Manager

The Strategic Risks Register 
has been refreshed and 
updated and was presented 



Governance Action Plan 2015/16 – Progress Review Appendix C
         
Report to Audit Board to the January Audit Board. 

In addition to the above, the 
Council’s Risk Management 
Strategy was signed off by 
the MD and approved by 
Cabinet on 22 October 2015.

G Agree Internal Audit Review Action 
Plan

Report to Management 
Team

Audit Board

May 2015

June 2015

Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)

The action plan has been 
agreed by Management 
Team. Members have seen 
the summary PWC report 
and have approved the 
action plan.

H Review business continuity plans 
and set up IT recovery site at 
Fairfield leisure once completed

Report to Management 
Team

Dec 2015 ICT Manager Reviews carried out at 
service level and work on the 
setting up of an IT recovery 
site at Fairfield leisure is well 
advanced. Once the external 
data link has been installed 
by Open Reach the 
remaining IT work can be 
completed out and tested.  
Completion by June 2016.

I Report on agreed performance 
indicators

Report to Cabinet June 2015 Policy and Corporate 
Support Manager

Report made quarterly to 
Cabinet and Policy Overview

J Staff briefing on Corporate 
Governance

Briefing Produced Sept 2015 Monitoring Officer and 
Section 151 Officer

Briefing produced and 
published on the intranet

K Develop Workforce Strategy Report to Management 
Team

Dec 2015 HR Business Advisor This has been delayed due 
to time having to be spent on 
BT issues.



Governance Action Plan 2015/16 – Progress Review Appendix C
         

L Management of land and property 
assets
 related risks to be reviewed
 review whether opportunity cost 

of financial resources tied up in 
land and buildings are minimised 
and that capital and revenue 
expenditure on the portfolio is 
directed efficiently and 
effectively to provide value for 
money

Report to Management 
Team

Dec 2015 Head of Legal 
Services, Asset 
Holding Department 
Managers & Financial 
Services Manager

Will be addressed in the 
Asset Management Review 
report to Cabinet taking into 
consideration relevant 
DCLG, RICS etc. guidance

M Implementation of Internal Audit 
Action Plan

Mid-Year Review

End of Year Review

Sept 2015

March 
2016

Audit and Anti-Fraud 
Manager

The Internal Audit Action 
Plan is progressing well, with 
most of the actions already 
implemented, but some of 
these will take time to embed 
within the organisation 
before they are fully 
effective. 

N Review officer code of conduct 
alongside member protocols

Report to Management 
Team

Dec 2015 HR Business Advisor See action A



Governance Action Plan 2016-17 Appendix D
         

Action - Principles Milestones Date Lead 
Officer(s)

1 Complete revised set of Financial 
Regulations.

Report to Management 
Team

Report to the GAC

Sept 2016

Oct 2016

Financial 
Services Manager

2 Review of the Corporate Code of 
Governance in the light of revised 
CIPFA publication.

Report to Management 
Team

Report to Audit Board

Oct 2016

Dec 2016

Financial 
Services Manager

3 Develop Workforce Strategy Report to Management 
Team

Dec 2016 HR Business 
Advisor



Governance Action Plan 2016-17 Appendix D
         

Action - Process Milestones Date Lead Officer(s)

A Finalise the review and update of 
HR policies and employee 
handbook including statutory 
officer disciplinary procedures and 
codes of conduct.

Programme for each 
policy

Final sign off by MD

Oct 2016 HR Business Advisor

B Service management overviews to 
be reviewed with links to the 
Corporate Plan as appropriate

Initial Review 
completed

Report to Management 
Team

Sept 2016

Oct 2016

Policy and Corporate 
Support Manager

C Establish IT recovery capability at 
Fairfield leisure 

Report to Management 
Team

July 2016 ICT Manager

D Asset Management Review Report to Management 
Team

Dec 2016 Head of Legal 
Services 

E Update Induction Process Report to Management 
Team

July 2016 HR Business Advisor

F Training Programme to be 
developed

Report to Management 
Team

Oct 2016 HR Business Advisor

G Update Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
strategy 

Report to Management 
Team

Report to Audit Board

August 
2016

September 

Audit, Risk and Anti-
Fraud Manager



Governance Action Plan 2016-17 Appendix D
         

2016

H Compile staff declarations of 
interest into central register

Report to Management 
Team

October 
2016

Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)





AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16

1. Summary

1.1 This report provides Members with a summary of the work of the Internal Audit 
Service during 2015-16.  The report outlines the achievements of the Section 
during the year and, based on the work completed, informs the Board of the 
Chief Audit Executive’s overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the internal control environment, which is timed to support the Annual 
Governance Statement.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Members note the content of the Annual Internal Audit Report and 
support the work undertaken by the Internal Audit Service during 2015-16.

2.2 That Members support the conclusion of the Chief Audit Executive, that the 
Council had effective internal controls, risk management and governance 
arrangements in place for delivering its objectives and the management of its 
business risks during the period 1 April 2015 to end of 31 March 2016.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 Members will be aware that Internal Audit reports annually to the  
Board, to outline the audit work completed during the year. This is the 
sixth annual report following the commencement in 2010, of the shared 
services with Sevenoaks District Council. 

3.2 The Internal Audit Annual Report for 2015-16 is attached at Appendix 
A.  The report follows a similar format to that presented to the Board 
last year and informs Members of the audit work completed during the 
year, in addition to information on developments and initiatives 
affecting the Internal Audit function.  

3.3 Members are requested to note the work undertaken by the Internal 
Audit Section during 2015-16 and to support the Chief Audit 
Executive’s overall conclusion that the Council had sound systems of 
internal controls, risk management and governance arrangements 
operating during the period 1 April 2015 to end of 31 March 2016.  

3.4 The report was prepared in compliance with the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 and professional guidance issued by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The report also 
took account of the outcome of the review of effectiveness of the 
Internal Audit Function which is attached as a separate agenda item for 
this meeting. Members should note that this report also supports the 
Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) which will also be 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

considered by the Board at this meeting, along with the Financial 
Statements. 

4. Summary of Issues Raised Within the Report

4.1 Appendix A sets out the Council’s arrangements for delivering an 
adequate and effective Internal Audit Function and details the work 
done in completing the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2015-16, 
including the outcome of each audit review. 

4.2. Based on the work completed in 2015-16 and other sources of 
assurance available to the function, the Chief Audit Executive’s overall 
annual assurance opinion is that the Council’s arrangements for 
internal control, risk management, governance and anti-fraud during 
the period is “effective” (see paragraph 2.3 of the Appendix) for 
regulatory purposes. 

5. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

5.1 The work of the Internal Audit Section contributes to the achievement 
of the Council’s aims under its two corporate values, Quality Service 
and Corporate Health.

6. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None

Staffing Implications None

Administrative Implications None

Risk Assessment The report addresses the risk associated with 
non-compliance with the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 and the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 2013. It is management’s view 
that the relevant risks are effectively being 
managed.

7. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

8. Appendices

Appendix A Internal Audit Annual Report for 2015-16



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

1.The Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015

2.The Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 2013 

3. Internal Audit Plan 2015-16
4. Reports to the Audit Board 

during 2015-16

Sarah Martin
01322 343402

Internal 
Audit

N/A





APPENDIX A

June 2016

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16



1

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background to Internal Audit

1.1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, Regulation 5
(1), requires the Council to “undertake an effective internal audit to 
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, and taking into account public sector internal 
audit standards or guidance”. 

1.1.2 The Internal Audit Service is provided through a shared services 
agreement with Sevenoaks District Council.  During the relevant period, 
the Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager reported to the Section 151 
Officer and Chief Audit Executive on operational matters and in turn, to 
the Managing Director.  Both the Chief Audit Executive and the Audit, 
Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager report formally to the Audit Board and 
have direct access to the Chair of the Audit Board.

1.1.3 The team works in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) 2013. The PSIAS Code reflects the requirements 
set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and outlines the 
proper practices that Internal Audit should follow.  The Code requires 
that Internal Audit provide a formal report to “those charged with 
governance”, which should include an opinion on the overall adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment.  For the 
purposes of this report, ‘internal control environment’ means the system 
of internal control, risk management and governance processes. The 
purpose of this report, therefore, is to inform Board Members of the 
Chief Audit Executive’s Annual Opinion on the overall effectiveness of 
the Council’s internal control environment and to provide a summary of 
the Internal Audit work completed, to support that opinion.

2. OPINION ON THE  CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

2.1 Purpose of the control environment

2.1.1 The internal control environment is based on an on-going process to 
identify, evaluate and manage the risks to the Council in the 
achievement of its objectives.  It is management’s responsibility to 
establish, maintain and ensure compliance with the internal control 
system.  Assurance of the effective operation of the system of internal 
control can be sought from the work of Internal Audit, external audit, 
risk management processes, other review bodies and the Annual 
Governance Statement.

2.1.2 The internal control environment  should:

 Set out clear responsibility for policy and decision-making;
 Establish the Council’s objectives;



2

 Identify, evaluate and manage the risks which may impact on 
the Council’s ability to meet its objectives;

 Ensure compliance with law, regulations, policies and 
procedures;

 Ensure the economic, efficient and effective use of resources;
 Ensure the accuracy and reliability of financial statements and 

other published information;
 Ensure that proper arrangements are in place to safeguard the 

Council’s assets and the prevention of fraud, bribery and 
corruption.

2.2 Basis of the opinion on the Council’s internal control environment

2.2.1 The Chief Audit Executive’s opinion on the Council’s internal control 
environment is primarily based on the work of the Internal Audit Section 
during 2015-16, details of which can be found in Section 4 of this report 
(page 3).

2.3 Opinion on the Council’s internal control environment

Whilst it was identified that management had, in the main, established an 
effective control environment within the areas reviewed by Internal Audit 
during 2015-16, there were areas which presented opportunities for further 
improvement within the control environment, or where compliance with 
existing controls could be enhanced, to reduce the financial, legal or 
reputational risk to the Council.  Where such findings were identified, 
recommendations were agreed with management to further strengthen the 
controls within the systems/processes they affect.

The control environment is designed to manage risks to a reasonable level 
rather than to eliminate all risks of failure to achieve policies, aims and 
objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness.

Based on the work done throughout the year, responses to the audit 
recommendations and  fraud and irregularity investigations; and having 
regard to other sources of assurance; in my opinion as Chief Audit 
Executive, Dartford Borough Council’s Control Environment contributes 
effectively to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources 
in achieving the Council’s objectives.  This opinion is based on the work of 
the Internal Audit Service during 2015-16 and having regard to the work of 
the External Auditors and other sources of assurance. ‘Control 
environment’ means the entire system that contributes towards, identifying 
and delivering organisational objectives (In particular, internal control 
processes, risk management and governance).

3. STAFFING

3.1 Internal Audit staff resource



3

3.1.1 During the year, the team had two vacancies, one of which was the 
Principal Auditor. Temporary agency cover was used for these 
vacancies for some of the time. The vacancies were filled later in the 
year. The team has now been fully staffed since November 2015.    

3.2 Net staff out-turn

3.2.1 Net staff resources for the year allocated to Dartford Council (as 
detailed in Appendix 1) amounted to 762 productive days.  The planned 
net resources for the year, was 828 days. The shortfall in productive 
days is mainly due to the vacancies.

3.2.2 Absence as a result of sickness totalled 18 calendar days.  This was 
mainly due to one member of staff being on long term sick. The total 
average sickness, without long term sickness, is 5.67 days which 
compares favourably against the Council’s average sickness level of 
8.23 days.

4. DETAILS OF AUDIT WORK COMPLETED TO SUPPORT THE OPINION ON 
THE INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

4.1 Programmed audits

4.1.1 Each year, the programmed work of the Internal Audit Team is based 
on the Annual Internal Audit Plan approved by senior management and 
the Audit Board.  The original Annual Audit Plan for 2015-16 was 
approved by the Audit Board on 25 March 2015 and contained 27 
reviews for 2015-16. The plan was revised for operational reasons and 
to reflect changes in assurance requirements for 2015-16.  The revised 
plan contained 21 reviews. Six reviews were deferred and carried 
forward to the 2016/17 Annual Audit Plan. A summary of the reviews 
carried out during the year and details of the audit opinions are 
included in Appendices 2 and 3 below. In addition to planned reviews, 
one review was requested by senior management.

4.1.2  Reviews in the revised Audit Plan were completed, to either draft or 
final report stage.  Appendix 3 sets out details of reviews finalised and 
their opinions.

4.1.3 56 audit recommendations were agreed with management in final 
reports issued to date during 2015-16; some of the reports relate to 
reviews carried out within the 2014/15 Annual Audit Plan. Management 
undertook to implement the agreed recommendations within agreed 
timescales. 

4.1.4 To date, 40 recommendations (71.43%) have been implemented, 26 of 
which relate to the 2015-16 Annual Audit Plan and the remaining 16 are 
not yet due for implementation. The recommendations agreed would 
further strengthen the Council’s internal control arrangements.  It 
should be noted that the number of recommendations made do not fully 



4

reflect all system and procedural enhancements implemented by 
management during the course of internal audit work, as on-going 
advice provided during the audit process, or separately, are not 
included in this figure. 

4.1.5 The Internal Audit team operate an audit follow-up process whereby 
recommendations agreed with management are revisited within a given 
timescale (usually 3 to 6 months) after the agreed implementation date, 
to obtain confirmation from management regarding the effectiveness of 
the recommendations implemented.

4.2 Fraud, irregularity and special projects

4.2.1 From time to time, Internal Audit is asked to investigate allegations of 
fraud and corruption, or to conduct special projects on behalf of 
management. One investigation was carried out in 2015/16, but there 
was no evidence to substantiate the allegations.  

4.3 Advice on controls and risk issues

4.3.1 A key role of Internal Audit is to provide advice and guidance to other 
departments within the Council on internal control and risk.  Five key 
requests for ad-hoc advice were received and responses were provided 
promptly to management, as necessary.

4.4 Selective invoice checks

4.4.1 At each of its quarterly meetings the Board selects a small sample of 
payments made by the Council for checking by Internal Audit – hence 
the term ‘selective invoice checks’. 

4.4.2 These checks, colloquially known as ‘Cardiff checks’, entail tracking 
payments back to the source order/requisition in order to  provide 
Members with a level of assurance that goods or services for which 
payments have been made, have been properly ordered, authorised 
and received for the benefit of the Council. Tests carried out during the 
year, confirmed that Council procedures were being complied with.

5. INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE DURING 2015-16

5.1 Client satisfaction exercises

5.1.1 A client satisfaction questionnaire is issued after the completion of each 
programmed audit assignment to obtain feedback from audit clients 
regarding the effectiveness of the audit process and client’s perception 
of the value added to their service.  The purpose of this questionnaire is 
to enable monitoring of the audit process, to provide assurance that 
individual audits have been conducted in a professional manner; that 
reported findings and recommendations are soundly based; and that 



5

the audit client has been appropriately consulted during the audit 
process.

5.1.2 During 2015-16, 18 client satisfaction questionnaires were issued, of 
which; 13 completed questionnaires have been returned to date (72% 
response rate).  Feedback from the questionnaires indicates that clients 
were satisfied with the audit process and outcomes, in 98% of cases. 
An analysis of the responses to client satisfaction questionnaires is 
attached as Appendix 4.

5.2 Quality Assessment 

5.2.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requires the Internal Audit 
Service to carry out an annual self-assessment of compliance with the 
standards, and an external review by an independent firm every five 
years. The outcome of this year’s annual review is set out as a 
separate agenda item at this meeting. The external review was carried 
out in 2014 and an action plan produced to address areas identified for 
further improvements. Substantial progress has been made in 
delivering the action plan. A separate report on the action plan will be 
presented at this meeting, by the Chief Audit Executive.    

5.3 Performance measures

5.3.1 The team were measured against performance indicators approved by 
the Board in March 2015. Details of these and the achievement for 
2015-16 are set out in Appendix 5.  The key measure of performance 
which impacts on the team’s ability to provide an appropriate level of 
assurance is the completion of the Internal Audit Annual Plan.  The 
team successfully completed the reviews within the revised plan for 
2015/16 to either draft or final report stage.

6. AUDIT SECTION DEVELOPMENT

6.1 Training

6.1.1 Auditors are required to engage in continuing professional development 
in order to maintain their professional competence and keep up with 
technical developments.  During the year, staff received training 
relevant to their roles in the following areas:

 Team Mate Demonstration
 MKInsight Demonstration
 Internal Audit Development Day
 Excel
 CIPFA – Introduction to Internal Audit
 Channel General Awareness
 KAG Conference
 CIPFA – Audit Conference
 Security Training



6

 Disability Awareness 
 Customer Care
 Leadership Master Classes
 Coaching 
 Personal Best
 Ivy soft (In-house on-line training on a range of subjects)

6.1.2 The section also participated in the following County Wide or 
professional group meetings where best practice is discussed and 
disseminated: 

o Kent Audit Group meetings – Heads of Audit
o London Audit Group meetings on selected topics.

6.2  Internal Audit development

6.2.1 It is important that the Internal Audit team continuously reviews and 
develops its approach and working practices to ensure that the team 
meets both the changing needs of the Council and the developing 
requirements of proper practice guidance.

6.2.2 The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager completed a self-assessment 
of Internal Audit practices against the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards 2013, which requires that an annual self-assessment of the 
service is carried out to ascertain compliance with the Standards. The 
outcome of the review is presented at this meeting under a separate 
agenda item. 

6.2.3 The action plan from the separate independent review carried out by  
PriceWaterHouseCoopers in order to facilitate full compliance with 
Standards is progressing satisfactorily. The Internal Audit team has 
been implementing the action plan over the year and substantial 
progress has been made towards delivering the action plan, including 
the appointment of the new Principal Auditor and filling the existing 
Internal Auditor vacancy. Also, the agreement for new audit 
management software (Team Mate) which will be implemented at the 
end of June is now in place. In addition, the team plans to activate 
IDEA, an internal audit interrogation programme, following the 
implementation of Team Mate. The combination of these two 
applications will provide appropriate functionality to facilitate more 
effective and seamless working of the audit team, which is anticipated, 
will lead to further improvements in both quality and efficiency of the 
audit service and the way it is delivered. 

6.2.4 Since 1 April 2016, the Internal Audit Service is now required to comply 
with new Public Sector Internal Audit Standards which came into effect 
on 1 April 2016.  A summary of the key differences between the 2013 
and 2016 standards will be presented to the next Board meeting in 
September 2016. 



7

6.3 Partnership working 

6.3.1 This is the sixth annual report following the shared services 
arrangement with Sevenoaks District Council for the provision of a joint 
Internal Audit service. During the year, all auditors from both Councils 
were given the opportunity of experiencing working at both sites and 
have been involved in developing best practices from this experience, 
thus contributing towards a more effective assurance process.  As part 
of the arrangement, the team has assumed the lead role for Risk 
Management within Dartford Borough Council.  

6.4 Liaison with other authorities

6.4.1 Dartford Borough Council is represented at meetings of the Kent Audit 
Group (KAG), which involves all local authorities in the County, 
including KCC and Medway.  Meetings are held four times a year, 
during which developments affecting Internal Audit and assurance 
matters in local government are discussed and opportunities for greater 
co-operation and shared best practice are explored.

7. INTERNAL AUDIT SUMMARY 

7.1 Summary

7.1.1 During 2015-16 the Internal Audit team continued to provide support to 
the Council in ensuring the on-going robustness of its internal control 
arrangements.  The work of the team during the year enabled the Chief 
Audit Executive to deliver the opinion that Dartford Borough Council’s 
system of internal control effectively contributes to the proper, 
economic, efficient and effective use of resources in achieving the 
Council’s objectives.  

7.1.2 A summary of resources and the work completed are attached as 
appendices 1 to 3 below.



APPENDIX 1

USE OF INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES TO 31 MARCH 2016

Actual Expected

Total workdays from April 2015 762 828

LESS:
Bank holidays and authorised leave 103 145
Staff development & training 60 29
Sick leave 18 18

Total 181 192

AUDIT DAYS AVAILABLE 581 636

Audits 345 320
Fraud, irregularity and special projects 20 30
Contract audit 1 5
Systems advice and selective invoice 
checks

19 45

General administration/Board 
reporting/service development/risk 
management/joint working

151 202

Audit management 45 34

Total 581 636

Note:
The above relates only to Dartford Borough Council



APPENDIX 2
PROGRESS AGAINST 2015-16 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

PROGRESS AGAINST 2015-16 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN                   Status at 1/6/16                                                   

System audited Final 
report 
issued

Draft 
report 
issued

Feedback 
process in 
progress

Fieldwork 
in 

progress

Brief 
issued

Cancel or 
Defer to 
2015/16

1 Car Parks x
2 Risk Management x

3 Performance Management x
4 Key Financial Systems x
5 Payroll x
6 Human Resources x
7 New Banking Contract x
8 Business Rates x
9 Council Tax & Housing Benefits x
10 Fraud & Error Reduction Scheme x
11 Capital Building Programme x
12 Fairfield Pool x
13 Disabled Facilities Grants x
14 Natural Theatre & Hesketh Park 

Cricket Pavilion
x

15 Data Protection & FOI. x
16 Implementing CIL x
17 Waste & Recycling x
18 Procurement x
19 Safeguarding Arrangements x
20 Regeneration & Planning x
21 Grounds Maintenance Contract x
22 Valuation & Property Services x

23 Environmental Health x

24 Electoral Services x

25 SLA with UDC x

26 Corporate Fraud x

27 Debt Collection & Enforcement x

28 Significant Contracts* x

Total 13 9 0 0 0 6

*Additional audit, requested by management.



APPENDIX 3

PROGRAMMED AUDIT WORK COMPLETED DURING 2015-16
FINAL REPORTS ISSUED DURING 2015-16 RELATING TO THE 2014-15 AUDIT PLAN

Audit title Report to Audit 
Board

Opinion

Corporate Governance & Annual 
Governance Statement 2014/15

11.6.15 Good/Satisfactory

Major Projects 2014/15 15.6.15 Good/Good

Human Resources Contracting, Including 
Payroll 2014/15

29.6.15 Satisfactory/Satisfactory

2015-16 AUDITS COMPLETED WITH FINAL REPORT ISSUED

Audit title Report to Audit 
Board

Opinion

Parks and Grounds Maintenance Contract 
2015/16

25.6.14 Good/Good

Valuation and Property Services 2015/16 16.9.15 Good/Good

Data Protection and Freedom of 
Information 2015/16

11.10.15 Good/Satisfactory

Disabled Facilities Grants 2015/16 20.11.15 Good/Good

Natural Theatre and Hesketh Park Cricket 
Pavilion 2015/16

20.11.15 Good/Good

Waste and Recycling Contract 2015/16 22.12.15 Good/Good

Performance Management Framework 
2015/16 13.1.16 Good/Good

Key Financial Systems 2015/16 22.1.16 Good/Good

Car Parking Services 2015/16 27.4.16 Good/Satisfactory

New Banking Contract 2015/16 6.5.16 Good/Good

Safeguarding 2015/16 13.5.16 Good/Good

Procurement (Contract Waivers) 2015/16 25.5.16 Good/Good

Human Resources 2015/16 31.5.16 Satisfactory/Satisfactory

Overall Opinion See Para 2.3



APPENDIX 4

ANALYSIS OF RESPONSES TO CLIENT SATISFACTION QUESTIONNAIRES 
(13 returned)

Question
Strongly

Agree Agree Slightly
Disagree

Strongly
Disagree N/A

1 I was given adequate notification and opportunity 
to contribute and comment prior to the Audit 
Brief being issued

8 5

2 Appropriate staff were interviewed 8 4

3 Audit grasped relevant issues 4 8 1

4 I am confident with the accuracy of the audit 
findings 5 8

5 I was given adequate opportunity to 
a) discuss audit findings and 

recommendations 11 2
b) my views were adequately reflected in the 

final report 6 7

6 The final audit report was 
a) timely 5 7 1
b) clear and understandable 5 8

7 The audit recommendations in the final report 
were 

a) relevant 5 7 1
b) practical 5 8
c) realistic 3 7

8 This audit has 
a) added value 1 11
b) assurance of adequacy (or not) of internal     
controls 4 9

TOTAL 73 92 4 0 0

Did this audit identify any unknown issues? Y 3 N 10



APPENDIX 5

INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE – 2015-16

Performance Measure Performance 2015-16 Performance 
2014-15

1 Production of an annual audit 
plan for approval by the Audit 
Board at its March meeting 
each year.

The annual audit plan for 
2015-16 was approved by the 
Audit Board at its meeting on 
25.3.15.
Achieved

Achieved

2 100% of audits in the agreed 
annual plan to be completed 
to draft stage (and issued to 
management) by end of 
financial year.

(Revised KAG measure:
90% of audits in the agreed 
annual plan to be completed 
to draft report stage (and 
issued to management) by the 
end of the financial year)

As at 31/3/16, 22 out of 22 
(100%) of audits of the revised 
plan were completed to final or 
draft stage. 

Achieved 

Achieved

3 Provision of an annual 
assurance on the system of 
internal control and risk 
management.

Chief Audit Executive’s annual 
report and overall opinion 
submitted to the Audit Board 
on 29.6.16.
Achieved

Achieved

4 80% of staff time (excluding 
holidays, sickness etc.) to be 
spent on productive audit 
activity (e.g. audit reviews and 
advice on risk and internal 
control).
(Revised KAG measure: 70%)

Overall performance for the 
year 89.20%.
 Achieved 

*(75.75% against KAG criteria)

Achieved

5 95% positive responses from 
clients to audits completed.
(Revised KAG measure: 90%)

98% positive responses for 
final reports issued during 
2015-16. 
*(97% against KAG target)
Achieved 

 Not Achieved



APPENDIX 5

Performance Measure Performance 2015-16 Performance 
2014-15

6 Positive statement by the 
External Auditor regarding 
satisfaction with the work of 
Internal Audit.

External Audit has been able 
to place reliance on the work 
of Internal Audit during the 
year
Achieved

Achieved

7 90% of recommendations 
made in Internal Audit reports 
to be accepted by 
management for 
implementation.

100% of recommendations 
made in final reports issued 
during 2015-16 accepted for 
implementation.
Achieved 

Achieved

Note:

*KAG – The Kent Audit Group uses a slightly different measure to Dartford. It does 
not include some unplanned productive work and work on risk management for item 
4. For item 5, the KAG criteria does not include question 7 on the Dartford 
questionnaire, which relates to client perception of the value they attached to the 
review.



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

FUTURE APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

1. Summary

1.1 This report provides an update on the arrangements for appointing 
external auditors following the abolition of the Audit Commission and the 
end of the transitional arrangements at the conclusion of the 2017/18 
audits.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That Members note the development with regard to the sector led body 
procurement option as detailed within the body of the report.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 A report was presented to the March Audit Board detailing the changes to 
the arrangements for appointing external auditors following the abolition of 
the Audit Commission and the end of the transitional arrangements at the 
conclusion of the 2017/18 audits. 

3.2 The report identified three options open to the Council by which an external 
auditor can be appointed:

 Option 1 - procuring a stand-alone appointment overseen by a specially 
set up independent Audit Panel;

 Option 2 – joining with other councils to set up a joint independent 
Auditor Panel;

 Option 3 - opt-in to a sector led body who would negotiate contracts 
and make the appointment on behalf of councils, removing the need to 
set up an independent Auditor Panel. 

3.3 The March report advised that the LGA were working on developing a 
sector led body under option 3. The LGA have now advised that they intend 
to support the appointment of Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 
(PSAA) as the sector-led body for local government to lead on the 
procurement of future audit contracts. PSAA were established by the LGA 
as an independent company to take on the management of the external 
audit contracts for local public bodies following the closure of the Audit 
Commission. 

3.4 The LGA are keen for local authorities to support the sector led body 
approach. It would lead to a simpler procurement process with no 
requirement for an independent auditor panel. The body would have the 
ability to negotiate contracts with audit firms nationally, maximising the 
opportunities for the most economic and efficient approach to the 
procurement of external audit on behalf of the whole sector.  The LGA 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

therefore asked councils to express an interest in being part of the sector 
led body approach. It was agreed with the Audit Chair that this Council 
would express an interest and therefore an expression of interest was made 
by the deadline of 30 April 2016. This is not a binding commitment. Formal 
invitations to take this approach will be issued later in the year. 

3.5 A further report will be brought back to the Audit Board once more details 
are released about the sector led option and Members will then be asked to 
decide the most appropriate procurement route for the Council. 

4. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications Current external audit fees may 
increase when the current contract ends 
in 2018. 

The cost of establishing a local or joint 
Auditor Panel under options 1 and 2 are 
not known at this stage but were one of 
these options to be taken, a budget 
would need to be identified. This would 
include the cost of recruiting 
independent members, servicing the 
Panel, running a bid and tender 
evaluation process, letting a contract 
and paying members’ fees and 
allowances. 

Option 3 would remove the need for an 
Auditor Panel and the associated costs. 
It would also allow the Council to take 
advantage of economies of scale 
through a national procurement 
exercise.

Legal Implications Section 7 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 requires a 
relevant authority to appoint a local 
auditor to audit its accounts no later 
than 31 December in the preceding 
year. 

Section 8 governs the procedure for 
appointment, including that the authority 
must consult and take account of the 
advice of its Auditor Panel on the 
selection and appointment of a local 
auditor. Section 8 provides that where a 
relevant authority is a local authority 
operating executive arrangements, the 
function of appointing a local auditor to 



AUDIT BOARD
29 JUNE 2016

audit its accounts is not the 
responsibility of an executive of the 
authority under those arrangements. 

Section12 makes provision for the 
failure to appoint a local auditor. In this 
situation, the authority must immediately 
inform the Secretary of State, who may 
direct the authority to appoint the auditor 
named in the direction or appoint a local 
auditor on behalf of the authority. 

Section 17 gives the Secretary of State 
the power to make regulations in 
relation to an ‘appointing person’ 
specified by the Secretary of state. This 
power has been exercised in the Local 
Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 
2015 and this gives the Secretary of 
State the ability to enable a Sector Led 
Body to become the appointing person.

Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment There is no immediate risk to the 

Council, however, early consideration by 
the Council of its preferred approach will 
enable detailed planning to take place 
so as to achieve successful transition to 
the new arrangement in a timely and 
efficient manner.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

- Sarah Martin
01322 343402

Strategic 
Director  
(Internal 
Services)

N/A




	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2016
	6 Report & Letter from the External Auditor
	Item 6 Audit Board Update DBC 29June2016- App A
	Item 6 Dartford BC.AuditBoard29jUNE2016. Fee Letter 2016-17 app B

	7 Anti-Fraud Team Annual Report 2015/16
	8 Update on Progress on the PWC Action Plan
	9 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the System of Internal Audit 2015-16
	Item9.MDamd.App.A.Annual Review of Efectivenes of Internal Audit 2015-16 - Appendix A updated - 25-05-16- revised 13.6.16

	10 Review of Internal Audit Recommendations - Progress Report
	Item 10 Appendices A & B Recommendations Outstanding - V1.3.1 - as Issued to MD  07-06-16

	11 Audit Reports Issued Since Last Meeting of the Board
	Item 11 App. A Reports Issued Since Last Meeting Appendix V1
	Item 11 App. B-C Reports Issued Since Last Meeting V1.2

	12 Selective Invoice Checks
	13 Annual Governance Statement
	Item 13.A Annual Governance Statement - 2015-16 - APP A
	Item 13.B corp Gov review App B
	Item 13.C 2015-16 action plan with updates March - app C
	Item 13.D Annual Governance Statement - 2016-17 PLAN APP C

	14 Internal Audit Annual Report 2015-16
	Item14.App.A[MKS.amd] Internal Audit Annual Report 2015-16 Appendix A V1.6 - 08-06-16 (3)

	15 Future Appointment of External Auditors

